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PART |

Item 1. Business
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report which are not purelydnisal facts or which necessarily depend upon gigwents, including statements
regarding our anticipations, beliefs, expectatidrages, intentions or strategies for the futurey bmforward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangteoA1934, as amended. All forward-looking statataen this report are based upon
information available to us on the date of thisorepWe undertake no obligation to publicly updateevise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future ¢éseor otherwise. Any forward-looking statementdman this report involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual events aitset® differ materially from the events or resudiescribed in the forward-looking statements.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamtieese forward-looking statements. In additioa) statements made by our directors,
officers and employees to the investment communigglia representatives and others, depending tngdnntature, may also constitute
forward-looking statements. As with the forwardioa statements included in this report, these &daooking statements are by nature
inherently uncertain, and actual results may diffiaterially as a result of many factors. Furthéorimation regarding the risk factors that could
affect our financial and other results are includedtem 1A of this annual report on Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a leading supplied amnufacturer of structural and related buildingdoicts for residential new
construction. We have operations principally in $bethern and eastern United States with 56 digtab centers and 55 manufacturing
facilities, many of which are located on the samenpses as our distribution centers. In this annegbrt, references to the “company,” “we,”
“our,” “ours” or “us” refer to Builders FirstSourcénc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unleksmtise stated or the context otherwise

requires.

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a Delaware corporafmrmed in 1998, as BSL Holdings, Inc. On Octob&r1999, our name changed to
Builders FirstSource, Inc. Our common stock ielisobn the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under the tickgmbol “BLDR”.

OUR INDUSTRY

We compete in the professional segment (“Pro Setineithe U.S. residential new construction buildiproducts supply market.
Suppliers in the Pro Segment primarily focus owisgrprofessional customers such as homebuildetsemodeling contractors. The Pro
Segment consists predominantly of small, privateiyed suppliers including framing and shell cordtan contractors, local and regional
materials distributors, single or multi-site lumy@nds, and truss manufacturing and millwork operegi Because of the predominance of
smaller privately owned companies and the overadl and diversity of the target customer market,Rho Segment remains fragmented. Ther
were only eight non-specialty building product siigas in the Pro Segment that generated more tbaa #illion in sales according to
ProSalesmagazine’s 2013 ProSales 100 list. On this listywgee the third largest building product supplier.

Our industry is driven primarily by the residentiew construction market, which is in turn dependgron a number of factors,
including demographic trends, interest rates, eymplnt levels, supply and demand for housing stae#ilability of credit, foreclosure rates,
consumer confidence and the economy in generalhdheebuilding industry experienced a significanvdturn which began in 2006. During
the downturn, many homebuilders significantly dasel their housing starts because of lower demaehd aurplus of both existing and new
home inventory. The weakness in the homebuildidgstry resulted in a significant reduction in deoh&or our products and services.
Beginning in late 2011, the industry began to ditsband housing activity has strengthened oveptst three years. According to the Nationa
Association of Homebuilders (“NAHB”), the singlenfdy residential construction market was an ested&t191.4 billion in 2014, which was
12.1% higher than 2013, though still down signifita from the historical high of $413.2 billion R006.

Beginning in 2007, the mortgage markets experiescbdtantial disruption due to increased defapiimarily as a result of credit
quality deterioration. This disruption resultedaistricter regulatory environment and reduced aflsdity of mortgages for potential
homebuyers due to an illiquid credit market andemestrictive standards to qualify for mortgagesrigage financing and commercial credit
for smaller homebuilders continue to be constragiméuch is slowing a recovery in our industry. Hoeg we believe there are several
meaningful trends that indicate U.S. housing demwitidikely continue to recover to levels consistavith the historical average of the past
fifty years. These trends include relatively loveirest rates, the aging of housing stock, and adiounl growth due to immigration and birthrate
exceeding death rate. U.S. single-family housiagistncreased 4.8% in 2014 compared to 2013. HidBNis predicting that U.S. single-
family housing starts will increase to approximat@03,500 in 2015, which would represent a 24.2étcase from 2014 actual NAHB U.S.
single-family housing starts of 646,800.




OUR CUSTOMERS

We serve a broad customer base ranging from priogiuicomebuilders to small custom homebuilders. \&elze we have a diverse
geographic footprint as we serve 34 markets irafest Based on 2014 U.S. Census data, we haveiopera 18 of the top 50
U.S. Metropolitan Statistical Areas, as rankedibgle family housing permits in 2014. In additi@pproximately 47% of U.S. housing pern
in 2014 were issued in states in which we operate.

Our customer mix is a balance of large national éouiiders, regional homebuilders, and local bugd@ur customer base is highly
diversified. For the year ended December 31, 26a#top 10 customers accounted for approximately®of sales, and no single customer
accounted for more than 8% of sales. Our top 1@ouss are comprised primarily of the largest potidun homebuilders, including publicly
traded companies such as Beazer Homes USA, IrR.,Hbrton, Inc., Hovnanian Enterprises, Inc., StaddPacific Corporation., and The
Ryland Group, Inc.

In addition to the largest production homebuilders,also service and supply regional and localasugtomebuilders. Custom
homebuilders require high levels of service; olesteam must work very closely with the desigmera day-to-day basis in order to ensure
the appropriate products are produced and delivemet@ne to the building site. To account for thes@eased service costs, pricing in the
industry is tied to the level of service providediahe volumes purchased.

Our primary focus has been, and continues to bejrgie-family residential new construction. Howewee have recently acquired
companies with multi-family manufacturing capalm to further diversify our customer base. We wadlhtinue to identify opportunities for
profitable growth in the multi-family and light canercial markets.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We offer an integrated solution to our customeowjoling manufacturing, supply, and installatioradull range of structural and related
building products. We provide a wide variety oflding products and services directly to homebuikletomers. We also manufacture floor
trusses, roof trusses, wall panels, stairs, milkwasindows, and doors. In addition to our comprediem offering of products that includes
approximately 73,000 stock keeping units (“SKUs#g also provide a full range of construction segidNe believe our broad product and
service offering, combined with our scale and eiqrexed sales force, has driven market share gathdath large and small homebuilders.

We group our building products and services inte firoduct categories: prefabricated componentsdovis & doors, lumber & lumber
sheet goods, millwork, and other building prodgtservices. For the year ended December 31, 20irdca@mbined sales of prefabricated
components, windows & doors and millwork produdegaries represented 52.8% of total sales. Eatiinesk categories includes both
manufactured and distributed products. Productiseéee categories typically carry a higher margith provide us with opportunities to cross-
sell other products and services, thereby incrgasiistomer penetration. As we continue to emphdsgteer margin product lines, we expect
these categories to increasingly contribute tosales and overall profitability. Sales by produategory for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 can be found under the cafilanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations
contained in Item 7 of this annual report on ForKL

Prefabricated Component®refabricated components are factory-built sulgstit for job-site framing and include floor trusse®f
trusses, wall panels, stairs, and engineered wuattdite design, cut, and assemble for each homem@nufactured prefabricated components
allow builders to build higher quality homes moficgently. Roof trusses, floor trusses, wall panahd stair units are built in a factory
controlled environment. Engineered floors and bearascut to the required size and packaged fogithen application at many of our
locations. Without prefabricated components, bugdmnstruct these items on site, where weathewanadble labor quality can negatively
impact construction cost, quality and installatimne. In addition, engineered wood beams have greatuctural strength than conventional
framing materials, allowing builders to frame hauséth more open space creating a wider varietyoofse designs. Engineered wood floors
are also stronger and straighter than conventipfralined floors.

Windows & Doors.The windows & doors category comprises the marufarg, assembly and distribution of windows, ane t
assembly and distribution of interior and extedoor units. We manufacture aluminum and vinyl wiwdan our plant in Houston, Texas
which allows us to supply builders, primarily iretiiexas market, with cost-competitive products. @erhung interior and exterior doors
consist of a door slab with hinges and door janttached, reducing on-site installation time andvjatimg higher quality finished door units
than those constructed on site. These productsaiypirequire a high degree of product knowledge taining to sell.

Lumber & Lumber Sheet Goodsumber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaddar, plywood and oriented strand board (“OBB”
products used in on-site house framing. In 201i4,dhoduct line was 32.6% of our total sales, &2decrease from 2013. We expect the
lumber & lumber sheet goods business to remaialdestevenue source in the future.
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Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, domns and posts that we distribute, as well aoougtxterior features that we
manufacture under the Synbo&irand name. Synboard is produced from extruded &wCoffers several advantages over traditional wood
features, such as greater durability and no ongmiagitenance such as periodic caulking and painting

Other Building Products & Service©ther building products & services consist of @as products, including hardware, composite
materials, roofing and insulation. This categoigoahcludes services such as turn-key framing) sbebtruction, design assistance and
professional installation of products spanningall product categories. We provide professiondhliaion and turn-key services as a solution
for our homebuilder customers. Through our instialfaservices program, we help homebuilders reaffieiencies through improved
scheduling, resulting in reduced cycle time andebetost controls. By utilizing an energy efficigranftware program, we also assist
homebuilders in designing energy efficient homesrifer to meet increasingly stringent energy rateguirements. Upgrading to our premium
windows, doors, and insulating products reducesadiveost to the homebuilder by minimizing coststoé required heating/cooling system.
work closely with the homebuilder to select therappiate mix of our products in order to meet catrend forthcoming energy codes. We
believe these services require scale, capital aplistication that smaller competitors do not pess&/e will continue to pursue profitable
business in this category.

MANUFACTURING

Our manufacturing facilities utilize the latesthiaology and the highest quality materials to imgrpvoduct quality, increase efficiency,
reduce lead times and minimize production errors.fi&nufacture products within three of our proaategories: prefabricated components,
millwork, and windows and doors.

Prefabricated Components — Trusses and Wall Parigisss and wall panel production has two steps sigtieand fabrication. Each
house requires its own set of designed shop drawimlgich vary by builder type: production versustom builders. Production builders use
prototype house plans as they replicate houses€eTt@use plans may be minimally modified to sudhiiual customer demand. The number
of changes made to a given prototype house, anauttmder of prototype houses used, varies by budlddrtheir construction and sales
philosophy. We maintain an electronic master filérasses and wall panels for each builder’'s pygethouses. There are three primary
benefits to master filing. First, master filingdsst effective as the electronic master file isdusgher than designing the components
individually each time the prototype house is bukcond, it improves design quality as a housesigth is based on the proven prototype
except for any minor builder modifications. Thirdaster filing allows us to change one file and updal related prototype house designs
automatically as we improve the design over timasthe builder modifies the base prototype hod&edo not maintain a master file for
custom builders who do not replicate houses, iasiot cost effective. For these builders, the congmts are designed individually for each
house.

After we design shop drawings for a given housedosenload the shop drawings into a proprietaryveafe system to review the design
for potential errors and to schedule the job fadupiction. The fabrication process begins by cutiimtividual pieces of lumber to required
lengths in accordance with the shop drawings. Wenttmad the shop drawings from our design departieeabmputerized saws. We assembl
the cut lumber to form roof trusses, floor trussewall panels, and store the finished componeytsduse awaiting shipment to the job site.

We generate fabrication time standards for eachpom@nt during the design step. We use these stsitameasure efficiency by
comparing actual production time with the calcudadtandard. Each plastperformance is benchmarked by comparing effigiecoss plant:

Prefabricated Components — Engineered Wo#s with trusses and wall panels, engineered wandponents have a design and
fabrication step. We design engineered wood flogisg a master filing system similar to the trusg wall panel system. Engineered wood
beams are designed to ensure the beam will bestally sound in the given application. After thesthn phase, a printed layout is generated.
We use this layout to cut the engineered woodéadiguired length and assemble all of the compaeriatd a house package. We then install
the components on the job site. We design anddateriengineered wood at many of our distributi@afions.

Prefabricated Components — Stait/e manufacture box stairs at some of our locatiafter a house is framed, our salesman takes
measurements at the job site prior to manufactudrazcount for any variation between the blueprartd the actual framed house. We
fabricate box stairs based on these measurements.

Custom Millwork. Our manufactured custom millwork consists prinyaoil synthetic exterior trim, custom windows, fe&tsiand box
columns that we sell under our Synboard brand reamdethroughout our company.

We sand, cut, and shape sheets of 4 foot by 18 évd@ Celuka-blown, extruded PVC, or Synboardytaduce the desired product. We
produce exterior trim boards by cutting the Syndaato the same industry-standard dimensions useddod-based exterior trim boards. We
form exterior features by assembling pieces of $gnh and other PVC-based moldings that have been cu
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heated and bent over forms to achieve the dedirages For custom windows, we build the frame fromi®ard and glaze the glass into place
We fabricate box columns from sections of PVC #ratcut on a 45 degree angle and mitered together.

Windows. We manufacture a full line of traditional aluminwamd vinyl windows at an approximately 200,000 sgdaot manufacturing
facility located in Houston, Texas. The processigely purchasing aluminum and vinyl lineal extans. We cut these extrusions to size and
join them together to form the window frame anchs&¥e then purchase sheet glass and cut it to\iezecombine two pieces of identica
shaped glass with a sealing compound to creatasa ghit with improved insulating capability. Wenhnsert the sealed glass unit and glaze |
into the window frame and sash. The unit is congglethen we install a balance to operate the winaiesvadd a lock to secure the window
closed position.

Pre-hung Doors.We pre-hang interior and exterior doors at mangwflocations. We insert door slabs and pre-cot gambs into a
door machine, which bores holes into the doorgHerdoor hardware and applies the jambs and hitogd door slab. We then apply the
casing that frames interior doors at a separat®staxterior doors do not have a casing, anceadimay have sidelights applied to the side
the door, a transom attached over the top of tloe doit and a door sill applied to the threshold.

OUR STRATEGY

Our long-term strategy is to leverage our compatifitrengths to grow sales, earnings, and cashdtawemain a preferred supplier to
the homebuilding industry. We modified our strat@gyesponse to the extended downturn that affestedndustry. During that time, our goal
was to maximize financial performance without intjpag our ability to compete and create long terrugaWe implemented that strategy
through generating new business, controlling caliligently managing working capital, improving apéng efficiencies, and most importantly
conserving cash. While we continue to focus ondlasas, we also plan to prudently utilize our iowpd liquidity to support anticipated sales
growth as the housing industry recovers. As thesimguindustry and our sales improve, we believeoparating leverage will also enhance oul
financial results.

We intend to build on our strong market positiond ancrease our sales and profits by pursuingdheviing strategies:

Utilize our strengths to capitalize on housing nwrtecovery and growthWe intend to utilize our leading market positi@ms
integrated product and service offerings to caigigabn the housing market recovery and to captdditianal market share. The NAHB
forecasts that U.S. single-family housing starté gvow by 24.2% and 36.9% in 2015 and 2016, retpely. We believe that our scale, local-
market presence and our customers’ desire to $estkgic relationships with a limited number oflflihe suppliers position us to increase our
market share and benefit from the expected comgnrgcovery in new home construction.

Maximize our “share of wallet” with individual cusiners and across our served markdt®mebuilding customers of the Pro Segment
continue to emphasize the importance of competfinigng across a broad product portfolio, salesddknowledge, osite services and over
“ease-of-use” of their building products supplidrsour ongoing pursuit to increase our market shae will continue to look for ways to
enhance our “one-stop shop” strategy by bolstesingservice offerings and manufacturing capabditieways that will drive additional pull
through of our products. We believe that homebuddell continue to place an increased value osehmapabilities, which should further
differentiate us from most of our competitors.

Optimize cash flow with highly scalable cost stmwet Through the downturn we focused on standardipiogesses and technology-
based workflows to maximize operational efficies¢ieeduce costs and enhance working capital efitgieOur focus on cost controls, working
capital and operating improvements proved to bealdé during the downturn and will be an integiattf our strategy going forward.
Industry forecasters are predicting that singleiffiahousing starts will show continued improvemeimt2015, which could require us to
increase our operating expenses, headcount andngarépital in order to support the additional dachaVe will work to minimize these
increases to ensure that we prudently adjust aisbla costs with the change in sales volumesyvahdemain extremely focused on expenses
and working capital. Our cost structure is scalabe we expect these efficiencies will drive ertdeahprofit margins and cash flow conversior
as we grow with improving market conditions.

Continue to leverage our strategic vendor relatiuips. We strive to continually enhance our role asedgsred channel partner for our
building products vendors. Our size, liquidity gimsi and access to the capital markets addresga oencern for many vendors, who
otherwise must invest significant time and effortonitor the creditworthiness of a large numbesrogller customers. Our relative size and
strong homebuilder relationships also provide amrdors access to a large customer base with signifpurchasing power. This channel
strength and our financial position allow us to otéggte favorable pricing (including back-end relsq@nd to receive a higher priority with our
vendors when product supply is limited. Furthermorg broad product portfolio, which includes aiggr of higher-margin specialty products,
enhances our preferred partner status, enablibg participate in mutually beneficial, joint markeg programs with our vendors. We anticig
our strategic vendor relationships will become ewame critical in the event that demand exceeddymrbavailability and vendors will need to
prioritize their partners and product allocations.

Selectively pursue opportunities for organic growattd strategic acquisitionsThe fragmented nature of our industry providemerous
organic growth and strategic acquisition opporigsitWe plan to continue to grow our business lrgsting in our
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existing sales force and by adding talented new Ibeesnto our sales force. We also plan to grow loyising suppliers in our existing markets
and by selectively entering new markets throughothening of new facilities or acquiring existingopliers. When adding facilities, we seek to
leverage our strong brand name and economies lef tcancrease our profitability and expand our keapenetration. Furthermore, from time
to time, our customers request that we enter nexketato support their growth. We assess potenéial markets while adhering to a
disciplined selection process by analyzing demdgagconomic and competitive factors, while alsousing on site selection and the long-
term profit opportunity in such market. Accordinglye plan to continue to take a disciplined appia@acorganic growth and strategic
acquisitions that strengthen our business, broadeproduct and service offerings, leverage ousteg infrastructure and enhance our exis
customer and vendor relationships.

SALES AND MARKETING

We seek to attract and retain customers througbpgimal customer service, leading product qualitpad product and service
offerings, and competitive pricing. This strategycentered on building and maintaining strong austorelationships rather than traditional
marketing and advertising. We strive to add vatuettie homebuilders through shorter lead timesetawaterial costs, faster project
completion and higher quality. By executing thim&gy, we believe we will continue to generate hewxsiness.

Our experienced, locally focused sales force thatore of our sales effort. This sales efforbimes deploying salespeople who are
skilled in housing construction to meet with a hbwnéler’'s construction superintendent, local pusthg agent, or local executive with the
goal of becoming their primary product supplierséfected by the homebuilder, the salesperson iarat her team review blueprints for the
contracted homes and advise the homebuilder irs ageh as opportunities for cost reduction, in@éasnergy efficiencies, and regional
aesthetic preferences. Next, the team determimespibcific package of products that are neededrplete the project and schedules a
sequence of site deliveries. Our large delivergtfEnd comprehensive inventory management systatsieens to provide “just-in-time”
product delivery, ensuring a smoother and fastedygetion cycle for the homebuilder. Throughout ¢bastruction process, the salesperson
makes frequent site visits to ensure timely dejivard proper installation and to make suggestiongfficiency improvements. We believe t
level of service is highly valued by our customansl generates significant customer loyalty. At Deloer 31, 2014, we employed
approximately 458 sales representatives, who giealy paid a commission based on gross margitaotollected and work with
approximately 242 sales coordinators and produstigpsts.

BACKLOG

Due to the nature of our business, backlog infoiznais not meaningful. While our customers may fuewvan estimate of their future
needs, in most cases we do not receive a firm drderthem until just prior to the anticipated deliy dates. Accordingly, in many cases the
time frame from receipt of a firm order and shipingoes not exceed a few days.

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS

We purchase inventory primarily for distributiolmnse of which is also utilized in our manufacturplgnts. The key materials we
purchase include dimensional lumber, plywood, O8SRjineered wood, windows, doors, and millwork. @ugest suppliers are national
lumber and wood products producers and distribigoch as Boise Cascade Company, U.S. Lumber G&argpr Corporation, Georgia-
Pacific Building Products, BlueLinx Holdings Inand Weyerhaeuser Company and building products faetmers such as Masonite
International Corporation, M | Windows and Doors;., Gilman Building Products, and Norbord, Inc. W&dieve there is sufficient supply in
the marketplace to competitively source most ofrequirements without reliance on any particulgpdier and that our diversity of suppliers
affords us purchasing flexibility. Due to our cetited oversight of purchasing and our large lungset OSB purchasing volumes, we believe
we are better able to maximize the advantagestbfduar, and our suppliers’, broad footprints andatite purchases in multiple markets to
achieve more favorable contracts with respectimepterms of sale, and supply than our regionaipetitors. Additionally, for certain
customers, we institute purchasing programs onmaderials such as OSB to align portions of our prement costs with our customer pricing
commitments. We balance our lumber and OSB purshagh a mix of contract and spot market purchasessure consistent quantities of
product necessary to fulfill customer contractssdarce products at the lowest possible cost, @anaitiimize our exposure to the volatility of
commodity lumber prices.

We currently source products from approximatel08,Suppliers in order to reduce our dependencengrsiagle company and to
maximize purchasing leverage. Although no purch&®ses any single supplier represented more than @béar total materials purchases in
2014, we believe we are one of the largest custefioermany suppliers, and therefore have signifipamchasing leverage. We have found
using multiple suppliers ensures a stable sourgeanfucts and the best purchasing terms as thdisxgppompete to gain and maintain our
business.

We maintain strong relationships with our suppliersd we believe opportunities exist to improvecpasing terms in the future,
including inventory storage or “just-in-time” dedigy to reduce our inventory carrying costs. We wdlhtinue to pursue additional procurement
cost savings and purchasing synergies which wauttiér enhance our margins and cash flow.
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COMPETITION

We compete in the Pro Segment of the U.S. resialemtw construction building products supply markée have and will continue to
experience competition for homebuilder businesstdube highly fragmented nature of the Pro Segmdany of our competitors in the Pro
Segment are small, privately owned companies, @ietuframing and shell construction contractorsaland regional materials distributors,
single or multi-site lumberyards, and truss mantufideg and millwork operations. Most of these comipa have limited access to capital and
lack sophisticated information technology systemd large-scale procurement capabilities. We beleedave substantial competitive
advantages over these smaller competitors duertimg-standing customer relationships, local market keole and competitive pricing. C
largest competitors in our markets include 84 Lunm®e. and Pro-Build Holdings, Inc., which are ptelg held, as well as Stock Building
Supply, which is publicly held.

Our customers primarily consist of professional kboilders and those that provide construction sesvio them, with whom we have
developed strong relationships. The principal mashaf competition in the Pro Segment are the dgweémnt of long-term relationships with
professional builders and retaining such custorgmelivering a full range of high-quality products time and offering trade credit,
competitive pricing, flexibility in transaction pressing, and integrated service and product paskageh as turn-key framing and shell
construction, as well as prefabricated componemdsstallation. Our leading market positions ia thighly competitive Pro Segment create
economies of scale that allow us to cost-effecfigelpply our customers, which both enhances phifityaand reduces the risk of losing
customers to competitors.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2014, we had approximately 3,80&ifue equivalent employees, none of whom wereesented by a union. We
believe that we have good relations with our empésy

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS

Our primary enterprise resource planning (“ERP’ten, which we use for operations representingequpiately 97% of our sales, is a
proprietary system that has been highly customimedur computer programmers. The system has besgrael to operate our businesses in ¢
highly efficient manner. The materials requiredtfowusands of standard builder plans are storaddgystem for rapid quoting or order entry.
Hundreds of price lists are maintained on thousaf@®KUs, facilitating rapid price changes in amfliag product cost environment. A
customer’s order can be tracked at each stagesgifrtitess and billing can be customized to redursmer’s administrative costs and spee
payment.

We have a single financial reporting system thatlieen highly customized for our business. Conawdlifinancial, sales and workforce
reporting is integrated using Hyperion Businesslligience system, which aggregates data from ol®? BRtems along with workforce
information from our third-party payroll administoa. This technology platform provides managemeitt wobust corporate and location level
performance management by leveraging standardizédas and analytics allowing us to plan, track eggbrt performance and compensation
measures.

We have developed a proprietary program for ugeiimcomponent plants. This software reviews prodesigns for errors, schedules
the plants and provides the data used to measame gfficiency. In addition, we have purchased ss\software products that have been
integrated with our primary ERP system. These @ograssist in analyzing blueprints to generate niahtists and in purchasing lumber
products at the lowest cost.

SEASONALITY AND OTHER FACTORS

Our first and fourth quarters have historically he@nd are generally expected to continue to beeradly affected by weather causing
reduced construction activity during these quarteraddition, quarterly results historically haeflected, and are expected to continue to
reflect, fluctuations from period to period arisiftigm the following:

e The volatility of lumber prices

e The cyclical nature of the homebuilding indus

e General economic conditions in the markets in wiiehcompete
e The pricing policies of our competitol

e The production schedules of our customers;

e The effects of weathe

The composition and level of working capital tygigahange during periods of increasing sales asavey more inventory and
receivables. Working capital levels typically ingse in the second and third quarters of the yeatalhigher sales during the
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peak residential construction season. These inesd@s/e in the past resulted in negative operatsy flows during this peak season, which
historically have been financed through availalalghcand our borrowing availability under creditiliies. Collection of receivables and
reduction in inventory levels following the peakilding and construction season have in the pastipely impacted cash flow.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetliraaccordance therewith, we
file reports, proxy and information statements atiter information with the Securities and Excha@genmission (“SEC”). Our annual reports
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, cotrreports on Form 8-K, proxy and information stagéats and other information and
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyausto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 are available through
the investor relations section of our website urilerlinks to “Financial Information.” Our Internatldress is www.bldr.com. Reports are
available on our website free of charge as soorasonably practicable after we electronically filem with, or furnish them to, the SEC. In
addition, our officers and directors file with tB&C initial statements of beneficial ownership atedements of change in beneficial ownershiy
of our securities, which are also available onwebsite at the same location. We are not incluthirgor any other information on our website
as a part of, nor incorporating it by reference,ihis Form 10-K or any of our other SEC filings.

In addition to our website, you may read and capiylip reports we file with or furnish to the SECtla¢ SEC’s Public Reference Room
at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Yoy pi#tain information on the operation of the Puliteference Room by calling the SEC
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internetlisitecontains our reports, proxy and informatiatesnents, and other information that we
electronically file with, or furnish to, the SECwtvw.sec.gov.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Floyd F. Sherman, Chief Executive Officer and Dinecage 75.Mr. Sherman has been our Chief Executive Officet a director since
2001, when he joined the company. He served asderdéf the company from 2001 until October 2066 also served from February 2008
until November 2014. Prior to joining the compahg,spent 28 years at Triangle Pacific/Armstrongfiw, the last nine of which he servel
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Shermagtirrently a director of PGT, Inc. Mr. Sherman basr 40 years of experience in the
building products industry. A native of Kerhonksdfew York and a veteran of the U.S. Army, Mr. Shamis a graduate of the New York
State College of Forestry at Syracuse Universiyal$o holds an M.B.A. degree from Georgia Stativésgity.

M. Chad Crow, President, Chief Operating Officeda@hief Financial Officer, age 46Mr. Crow joined the company in September
1999 as Assistant Controller. He served as Viceiéeat — Controller of the company from May 2000 aras promoted to Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer in Novemb@®2. In November 2014, he was appointed to thetiposf President and Chief Operating
Officer. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Crowrged in a variety of positions at Pier One Impoks. Crow also has five years of public
accounting experience with Price Waterhouse LLP.G#ow is a C.P.A. and received his B.B.A. degreenfTexas Tech University.

Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and @ar@ounsel, age 60Mr. McAleenan has served as Senior Vice Presidedt
General Counsel of the company since 1998. Primining the company, Mr. McAleenan served as \Reesident and Deputy General
Counsel of Fibreboard Corporation from 1992 to 1997. McAleenan was also Assistant General CouaS&IT&E Corporation and spent
nine years as a securities lawyer at two New Ydtk [@w firms. Mr. McAleenan has a B.S. from Geamen University and a J.D. from New
York University Law School.

Morris E. Tolly, Senior Vice President — Operatipage 71.Mr. Tolly has served as Senior Vice President —ef@fions of the
company since January 25, 2007. Mr. Tolly has lveigmBuilders FirstSource since 1998 when the camgcquired Pelican Companies, Inc.
(“Pelican”) and has over 40 years of experiendhénbuilding products industry. He served in a mgrof roles at Pelican, including sales,
Sales Manager and General Manager. Mr. Tolly wa&raa Vice President responsible for 12 locatiartha time of Pelican’s acquisition. In
2000, he was promoted to President of the compaytgheast Group, with responsibility for 48 looas.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks associated with our business, an investrmemtiii securities, and with achieving the forwardking statements contained in this
report or in our news releases, websites, pubifgs, investor and analyst conferences or elsesyhieclude, but are not limited to, the risk
factors described below. Any of the risk factorsatbed below could cause our actual results ferdihaterially from expectations and could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition or operating results. We may nmicged in addressing these challenges anc
risks.




The industry in which we operate is dependent upothe homebuilding industry, the economy, the creditmarkets, and other important
factors.

The building products industry is highly dependaminew home construction, which in turn is depehd@on a number of factors,
including interest rates, consumer confidence, eypent rates, foreclosure rates, housing inveritugls, housing demand and the health of
the economy and mortgage markets. Unfavorable @saimgdemographics, credit markets, consumer cendigl, housing affordability, or
housing inventory levels, or a weakening of theamatl economy or of any regional or local economwhich we operate, could adversely
affect consumer spending, result in decreased defeamomes, and adversely affect our businesgiletamn of new homes may also decline
because of shortages of qualified tradesmen, rdian inadequately capitalized homebuilders anecemlbractors, and shortages of material.
The homebuilding industry is currently experiencinghortage of qualified, trained labor in many keés, including those served by us. In
addition, the homebuilding industry is subject twigus local, state, and federal statutes, ordies\ntiles, and regulations concerning zoning,
building design and safety, construction, energyseovation and similar matters, including regulasithat impose restrictive zoning and
density requirements in order to limit the numbEhn@mes that can be built within the boundariea phrticular area. Regulatory restrictions
may increase our operating expenses and limitihiadpility of suitable building lots for our custers, which could negatively affect our sale:
and earnings. Because we have substantial fixed,aefatively modest declines in our customersdpiction levels could have a significant
adverse effect on our financial condition, opemgtiesults and cash flows.

The homebuilding industry underwent a significamivdturn that began in mid-2006 and began to sizbifi late 2011. U.S.
homebuilding activity increased in 2013 and 2014gproximately 617,700 and 647,300 single-famidytst respectively, although it remains
well below the historical average (from 1959 thro@®13) of 1.0 million single-family starts per yeAccording to the U.S. Census Bureau,
actual U.S. single family housing starts in the .Wl&ing 2014 were 55.8% lower than in 2006. Weéehelthat the slow recovery of the
housing market is due to a variety of factors idolg: a severe economic recession, followed byadggll economic recovery; significant
unemployment; limited credit availability; shortagef suitable building lots in many markets; shgesof experienced labor; a substantial
reduction in speculative home investment; andsofising demand. The downturn in the homebuildimigigtry resulted in a substantial
reduction in demand for our products and serviabéch in turn had a significant adverse effect an lousiness and operating results during
fiscal years 2007 through 2012.

In addition, beginning in 2007, the mortgage masletperienced substantial disruption due to ineagfaults, primarily as a result of
credit quality deterioration. The disruption reedlin a stricter regulatory environment and redunalability of mortgages for potential
homebuyers due to a tight credit market and strgtendards to qualify for mortgages. Mortgagerfiiag and commercial credit for smaller
homebuilders continue to be constrained, whicloiwisg a recovery in our industry. Since the hogdimdustry is dependent upon the econ
as well as potential homebuyers’ access to mort§iagecing and homebuilders’ access to commercadit it is likely that the housing
industry will not fully recover until conditions ithe economy and the credit markets further improve
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If the housing market declines, we may be requiretb take additional impairment charges relating to ar operations or temporarily idle
or permanently close under-performing locations.

We recorded no goodwill or significant asset impeant charges in continuing operations in 2014 d@320f conditions in the housing
industry deteriorate, we may need to take goodawitl/or asset impairment charges relating to cedfaour reporting units. Any such non-cash
charges would have an adverse effect on our fiaanesults. In addition, in response to industrgt erarket conditions, we may have to
temporarily idle or permanently close certain féieis in under-performing markets, although we hawespecific plans to close or idle

additional facilities at this time. Any such fatjliclosures could have a significant adverse effecbur financial condition, operating results,
and cash flows.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect oability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or our industry, and prevenis from meeting our obligations under our debt insuments.

As of December 31, 2014, our debt consisted of EBB0llion of our 7.625% Senior Secured Notes du2021 (“2021 notes”). We also
have a $175.0 million senior secured revolving itrieatility (“2013 facility”). As of December 31, 2014 we had $30.0 million inrbaings, a:
well as $15.6 million of letters of credit outstamgl under the 2013 facility. In addition, we havgnéficant obligations under ongoing operat
leases that are not reflected on our balance sBeetNote 10 to the consolidated financial statésneocluded in Item 8 of this annual report on
Form 10-K.

As of December 31, 2014, the $350.0 million of 20®1es bears interest at a fixed rate, and thexgbur interest expense related to the
2021 notes would not be affected by changes in etamnkerest rates. The $30.0 million in outstagdierrowings under the 2013 facility bears
interest at a variable rate, and therefore, ifregerates rise, our interest expense could inergstsDecember 31, 2014, a 1.0% increase in
interest rates would result in approximately $0iBiom in additional annual interest expense.

Our substantial debt could have important consetpgeto us, including:
e increasing our vulnerability to general economid armdustry conditions

e requiring a substantial portion of our cash flased in operations to be dedicated to the paynfgirxipal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our liquidity endability to use our cash flow to fund our openas, capital expenditures, and
future business opportunitie

e exposing us to the risk of increased interesistadnd corresponding increased interest expeasayse future borrowings under the
2013 facility would be at variable rates of intéj

e limiting our ability to obtain additional finanay for working capital, capital expenditures, dedtvice requirements, acquisitions,
and general corporate or other purposes;

e limiting our ability to adjust to changing marlanditions and placing us at a competitive disathige compared to our competitors
who may have less del

In addition, some of our debt instruments, inclgdinose governing the 2013 facility and our 202tegspcontain crosdefault provision
that could result in our debt being declared immatally due and payable under a number of debt iments, even if we default on only one
debt instrument. In such event, it is unlikely thet would be able to satisfy our obligations uraleof such accelerated indebtedness
simultaneously.

Our financial condition and operating performanod that of our subsidiaries is also subject to ailsng economic and competitive
conditions and to certain financial, business, athér factors beyond our control. There are norasses that we will maintain a level of
liquidity sufficient to permit us to pay the pripail, premium, and interest on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capitagstructure or refinance our indebtedness. & htsrnative measures may not be successfu
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debicseobligations. In the absence of such operatisglts and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be reqdite dispose of material assets or operations ff@nt to meet our debt service and other
obligations. The agreement governing the 2013ifachd the indenture governing our 2021 notegisiur ability to dispose of assets and to
use the proceeds from such dispositions. We mapeaable to consummate those dispositions or leetatibtain the proceeds that we could
realize from them, and these proceeds may not éguade to meet any debt service obligations then du
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We may have future capital needs and may not be abto obtain additional financing on acceptable terrms.

We are substantially reliant on cash on hand amabiming availability under the 2013 facility, whidhtaled $147.2 million at December
31, 2014, to provide working capital and fund operations. Our working capital requirements areljiko grow assuming the housing market
improves. Our inability to renew, amend or repldee2013 facility or our 2021 notes when require@vben business conditions warrant coulc
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition, and results of operations.

Economic and credit market conditions, the perfaroeaof the homebuilding industry, and our finanp@tformance, as well as other
factors, may constrain our financing abilities. @bility to secure additional financing, if availaband to satisfy our financial obligations
under indebtedness outstanding from time to timed&pend upon our future operating performance abailability of credit, economic
conditions, and financial, business, and othewofactmany of which are beyond our control. Any vemiag of current housing market
conditions and the macroeconomic factors that affacindustry could require us to seek additiaragital and have a material adverse effect
on our ability to secure such capital on favordbtens, if at all.

We may be unable to secure additional financinfin@ncing on favorable terms or our operating désli may be insufficient to satisfy
our financial obligations under indebtedness ontliteg from time to time, including our 2021 notesldhe 2013 facility. The agreement
governing the 2013 facility, and the indenture gaugg the 2021 notes, moreover, restrict the amotipermitted indebtedness allowed. In
addition, if financing is not available when neededis available on unfavorable terms, we may eble to take advantage of business
opportunities, including potential acquisitionsrespond to competitive pressures, any of whichdchave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of ofi@na. If additional funds are raised through theuance of additional equity or convertible
securities, our stockholders may experience sicaniti dilution.

We may incur additional indebtedness.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the futimeluding collateralized debt, subject to the niesbns contained in the financing
agreement governing the 2013 facility and the ingiengoverning our 2021 notes. If new debt is addeslr current debt levels, the related
risks that we now face could intensify.

Our debt instruments contain various covenants thalimit our ability to operate our business.

Our financing arrangements, including the finanaggeement governing the 2013 facility and the rihagles governing our 2021 notes,
contain various provisions that limit our ability, tamong other things:

e transfer or sell assets, including the equity idés of our restricted subsidiaries, or use asdetpsoceeds
e incur additional debt

e pay dividends or distributions on our capital stockepurchase our capital sto

e make certain restricted payments or investme

e create liens to secure de

e enter into transactions with affiliate

e merge or consolidate with another company orinaatto receive the benefits of these financingragements under a “change in
contro” scenario (as defined in those agreements)

e engage in unrelated business activit

The agreement governing the 2013 facility contaifisancial covenant requiring the satisfactiomohinimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.00 to 1.00 if our excess availabilitgfiled as the sum of our net borrowing availabititys qualified cash, falls below the greater of
$17.5 million or 10% of the maximum borrowing amauks of December 31, 2014, our excess availabilig $146.1 million. Qualified cash
is defined as the amount of unrestricted cash asll equivalents held in deposit or securities attsowhich are subject to control agreements
in favor of our lenders.

These provisions may restrict our ability to expandully pursue our business strategies. Our fgtiiti comply with the agreement
governing the 2013 facility and the indenture goirg our 2021 notes may be affected by changesiimperating and financial performance,
changes in general business and economic condidverse regulatory developments, a change inaartother events beyond our control.
The breach of any of these provisions, includirgsthcontained in the 2013 facility and the indemgoverning our 2021 notes, could result in
a default under our indebtedness, which could cthase and other obligations to become due andopayih any of our indebtedness is
accelerated, we may not be able to repay it.
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We occupy most of our facilities under long-term no-cancelable leases. We may be unable to renew lessit the end of their terms. If
we close a facility, we are still obligated underhe applicable lease.

Most of our facilities are located in leased prezaisMany of our current leases are non-cancelatgaygically have initial terms
ranging from 5 to 15 years and most provide optiongnew for specified periods of time. We beli¢hvat leases we enter into in the future
likely be long-term and non-cancelable and havelaimenewal options. If we close or idle a fagilimost likely we remain committed to
perform our obligations under the applicable leadgch would include, among other things, paymdrhe base rent, insurance, taxes, and
other expenses on the leased property for the talaithe lease term. During the period from 200@ugh 2012, we closed or idled a number
of facilities for which we remain liable on the $eaobligations. Our obligation to continue makiegtal payments in respect of leases for
closed or idled facilities could have a materialexde effect on our business and results of oparatiAlternatively, at the end of the lease tern
and any renewal period for a facility, we may bahla to renew the lease without substantial additicost, if at all. If we are unable to renew
our facility leases, we may close or relocate difacwhich could subject us to construction artler costs and risks, which in turn could have
a material adverse effect on our business andtsesubperations. For example, closing a faciyen during the time of relocation, will redt
the sales that the facility would have contribut@dur revenues. Additionally, the revenue andipribfany, generated at a relocated facility
may not equal the revenue and profit generatelaeagxisting one.

We are a holding company and conduct all of our opations through our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company that derives all of owrapng income from our subsidiaries. All of ousets are held by our direct and
indirect subsidiaries. We rely on the earnings ea&h flows of our subsidiaries, which are paidgdoy our subsidiaries in the form of
dividends and other payments or distributions, &zhour debt service obligations. The ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends or make
other payments or distributions to us will dependteeir respective operating results and may beictd by, among other things, the laws of
their jurisdiction of organization (which may linthe amount of funds available for the paymentiafd@nds and other distributions to us), the
terms of existing and future indebtedness and @berements of our subsidiaries, the 2013 facifity,terms of the indenture governing our
2021 notes, and the covenants of any future outstgrnindebtedness we or our subsidiaries incur.

The building supply industry is cyclical and seasoal.

The building products supply industry is subjectyalical market pressures. Prices of building pieid are subject to fluctuations aris
from changes in supply and demand, national argriational economic conditions, labor costs, coitipat market speculation, government
regulation, and trade policies, as well as froniqaéc delays in the delivery of lumber and othesgarcts. For example, prices of wood
products, including lumber and panel products salgect to significant volatility and directly affieour sales and earnings. In particular, low
market prices for wood products over a sustainem@ean adversely affect our financial conditiopgrating results and cash flows, as can
excessive spikes in market prices. For the yeagegmecember 31, 2014, average prices for lumbehanier sheet goods were 4.9% lower
than the prior year. Our lumber and lumber sheetig@roduct category represented 32.6% of totakdar the year ended December 31, 2
We have limited ability to control the timing anchaunt of pricing changes for building productsatidition, the supply of building products
fluctuates based on available manufacturing caypagishortage of capacity or excess capacity inridestry can result in significant increases
or declines in market prices for those productgroWwithin a short period of time. Such price flations can adversely affect our financial
condition, operating results and cash flows.

In addition, although weather patterns affect querating results throughout the year, adverse wedilstorically has reduced
construction activity in the first and fourth quarg in our markets. To the extent that hurricasegere storms, floods, other natural disasters c
similar events occur in the markets in which werape our business may be adversely affected. Weifzate that fluctuations from period to
period will continue in the future.

The loss of any of our significant customers couldffect our financial health.

Our 10 largest customers generated approximatel2and 22.5% of our sales for the years endedrbeee31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. We cannot guarantee that we will ta@&mnor improve our relationships with these custosror that we will continue to supply
these customers at historical levels. Due to thakWweusing market over the past several years, mboyr homebuilder customers
substantially reduced their construction activépme homebuilder customers exited or severelyitdthuilding activity in certain of our
markets.

In addition, production homebuilders and other aomrs may: (1) seek to purchase some of the preduat we currently sell directly
from manufacturers, (2) elect to establish theindwilding products manufacturing and distributfanilities, or (3) give advantages to
manufacturing or distribution intermediaries in eiithey have an economic stake. Continued cons@idamong production homebuilders
could also result in a loss of some of our presestomers to our competitors. The loss of one aerndour significant customers or
deterioration in our relations with any of them Iebsignificantly affect our financial condition, epating
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results and cash flows. Furthermore, our custoersot required to purchase any minimum amouptaducts from us. The contracts into
which we have entered with most of our professianatomers typically provide that we supply patfacyproducts or services for a certain
period of time when and if ordered by the custorBéiould our customers purchase our products infggntly lower quantities than they have
in the past, such decreased purchases could haaéeaial adverse effect on our financial conditioperating results, and cash flows.

Our industry is highly fragmented and competitive,and increased competitive pressure may adverselyfatt our results.

The building products supply industry is highlygnaented and competitive. We face significant coitipatfrom local and regional
building materials chains, as well as from privatelvned single site enterprises. Any of these cditgre may (1) foresee the course of marke
development more accurately than we do, (2) devetogucts that are superior to our products, (3ghhbe ability to produce or supply similar
products at a lower cost, (4) develop strongetimiahips with local homebuilders, (5) adapt monekjy to new technologies or evolving
customer requirements than we do, or (6) have adodinancing on more favorable terms that wedaatain in the market. As a result, we n
not be able to compete successfully with themdiditeon, home center retailers, which have histdljcconcentrated their sales efforts on re
consumers and small contractors, may in the futtemsify their marketing efforts to professionahiebuilders. Furthermore, certain product
manufacturers sell and distribute their productedally to production homebuilders. The volume dftsdirect sales could increase in the fut
Additionally, manufacturers of products distributedus may elect to sell and distribute directihtamebuilders in the future or enter into
exclusive supplier arrangements with other distabai Consolidation of production homebuilders megult in increased competition for their
business. Finally, we may not be able to maintainoperating costs or product prices at a levdl@ahtly low for us to compete effectively.
we are unable to compete effectively, our financaidition, operating results, and cash flows maadversely affected.

We are subject to competitive pricing pressure fromour customers.

Production homebuilders historically have exertgdificant pressure on their outside suppliersdegkprices low because of their
market share and their ability to leverage suchketashare in the highly fragmented building produsipply industry. The housing industry
downturn resulted in significantly increased pricpressures from production homebuilders and athstomers. Over the past few years, thes
pricing pressures have adversely affected our tipgreesults and cash flows. In addition, contingedsolidation among production
homebuilders, and changes in production homebuilgherrchasing policies or payment practices, coegiilt in additional pricing pressure.

The ownership position of affiliates of JLL Partners Inc. and Warburg Pincus LLC limits other stockholders’ ability to influence
corporate matters.

JLL Partners Inc. (“JLL") and Warburg Pincus LLGNarburg Pincus”) together own approximately 50%waf outstanding common
stock. Five of our ten directors hold positionshnaffiliates of either JLL or Warburg Pincus. Acdimgly, JLL and Warburg Pincus have
significant influence over our management and effand over all matters requiring stockholder apakancluding the election of directors ¢
significant corporate transactions, such as a mengether sale of our company or its assets. ¢higentrated ownership position limits other
stockholders’ ability to influence corporate mattand, as a result, we may take actions that séimar stockholders do not view as beneficial.
Additionally, JLL and Warburg Pincus are in the iness of making investments in companies and mmay fime to time, acquire and hold
interests in businesses that compete directlydirgntly with us. These entities may also pursaetteir own accounts, acquisition
opportunities that may be complementary to ourress, and, as a result, those acquisition opptigamay not be available to us. Further,
certain provisions of our amended and restatedficate of incorporation and amended and restajgalws may limit your ability to influence
corporate matters, and, as a result, we may tal@nadhat some of our stockholders do not viewerseficial.

Our continued success will depend on our ability toetain our key employees and to attract and retaimew qualified employees.

Our success depends in part on our ability toetithare, train, and retain qualified managerigle@ational, sales, and other personnel.
We face significant competition for these typewiployees in our industry and from other industVge may be unsuccessful in attracting
retaining the personnel we require to conduct ampaied our operations successfully. In addition, gessonnel may leave us and compete
against us. Our success also depends to a sigrifigéent on the continued service of our senionagament team. We may be unsuccessful |
replacing key managers who either resign or refine loss of any member of our senior managemant t& other experienced, senior
employees could impair our ability to execute ousibess plan, cause us to lose customers and reducet sales, or lead to employee moral
problems and/or the loss of other key employeeaninsuch event, our financial condition, operatiegults, and cash flows could be adversel
affected.

14




The nature of our business exposes us to producability, product warranty, casualty, construction defect, vehicle and other claims and
legal proceedings.

We are involved in product liability, product wantg, casualty, construction defect, vehicle, arteotlaims relating to the products we
manufacture and distribute, and services we pravide if adversely determined, could adverselg@fbur financial condition, operating
results, and cash flows. We rely on manufacturedsather suppliers to provide us with many of thedpicts we sell and distribute. Because
do not have direct control over the quality of spebducts manufactured or supplied by such thindypguppliers, we are exposed to risks
relating to the quality of such products. In additiwe are exposed to potential claims arising ftoenconduct of our employees and
subcontractors, and homebuilders and their subactons, for which we may be contractually liabléthAugh we currently maintain what we
believe to be suitable and adequate insuranceciessxof our self-insured amounts, there can bessirance that we will be able to maintain
such insurance on acceptable terms or that suahainse will provide adequate protection againsepiil! liabilities. Product liability, product
warranty, casualty, construction defect, vehictel ather claims can be expensive to defend andlivant the attention of management and
other personnel for significant periods, regardiesthe ultimate outcome. Claims of this natureldalso have a negative impact on customer
confidence in our products and our company. Intamidiwe are involved on an ongoing basis in otfipes of legal proceedings. We cannot
assure you that any current or future claims will adversely affect our financial condition, opargtresults, and cash flows.

Product shortages, loss of key suppliers, and ourependence on third-party suppliers and manufactures could affect our financial
health.

Our ability to offer a wide variety of productsaar customers is dependent upon our ability toinkdequate product supply from
manufacturers and other suppliers. Generally, codycts are obtainable from various sources awdfficient quantities. However, the loss
or a substantial decrease in the availability addpcts from our suppliers or the loss of key sigo@rrangements could adversely impact our
financial condition, operating results, and casiw8.

Although in many instances we have agreementsauittsuppliers, these agreements are generallyriabia by either party on limited
notice. Failure by our suppliers to continue tomyps with products on commercially reasonablenteror at all, could put pressure on our
operating margins or have a material adverse efiectur financial condition, operating results, @agh flows. Short-term changes in the cost
of these materials, some of which are subjectgnificant fluctuations, are sometimes, but not gisvpassed on to our customers. Our delaye
ability to pass on material price increases toaustomers could adversely impact our financial @dd operating results, and cash flows.

A range of factors may make our quarterly revenuesind earnings variable.

We have historically experienced, and in the futuilecontinue to experience, variability in revessiand earnings on a quarterly basis.
The factors expected to contribute to this varigbihclude, among others: (1) the volatility ofiqes of lumber, wood products and other
building products, (2) the cyclical nature of thmrebuilding industry, (3) general economic condisién the various local markets in which
compete, (4) the pricing policies of our compestdb) the production schedules of our customers,(8) the effects of the weather. These
factors, among others, make it difficult to projeatr operating results on a consistent basis, wimiai affect the price of our stock.

We may be adversely affected by any disruption inwr information technology systems.

Our operations are dependent upon our informagohrtology systems, which encompass all of our nfajsiness functions. Our
primary ERP system, which we use for operationsasgmting approximately 97% of our sales, is a petgry system that has been highly
customized by our computer programmers. Our cepdalinancial reporting system currently drawsadabm our ERP systems. We rely uj
such information technology systems to manage epigmish inventory, to fill and ship customer osden a timely basis, and to coordinate
sales activities across all of our products andises. A substantial disruption in our informati@ehnology systems for any prolonged time
period (arising from, for example, system capaliityts from unexpected increases in our volumeusdibess, outages, or delays in our sen
could result in delays in receiving inventory anghglies or filling customer orders and adversefg@four customer service and relationships.
Our systems might be damaged or interrupted byralabn man-made events or by computer viruses,ipalysr electronic break-ins, or similar
disruptions affecting the global Internet. Thera ba no assurance that such delays, problemssociated costs will not have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, opemgtiesults and cash flows.
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We may be adversely affected by any natural or mamade disruptions to our distribution and manufacturing facilities.

We currently maintain a broad network of distribateind manufacturing facilities throughout the heut and eastern U.S. Any
widespread disruption to our facilities resultingrh fire, earthquake, weather-related events, anfaerrorism, or any other cause could
damage a significant portion of our inventory andld materially impair our ability to distribute oproducts to customers. Moreover, we ct
incur significantly higher costs and longer leades associated with distributing our products toaustomers during the time that it takes for
us to reopen or replace a damaged facility. Intaaidiany shortages of fuel or significant fuel tioereases could disrupt our ability to
distribute products to our customers. If any okthevents were to occur, our financial conditigrerating results, and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

We may be unable to successfully implement our gratv strategy, which includes increasing sales of oyrefabricated components and
other value-added products, pursuing strategic acqgitions and opening new facilities.

Our long-term strategy depends in part on growimgsales of prefabricated components and otheevatlded products and increasing
our market share. If any of these initiatives asesuccessful, or require extensive investmentgoowth may be limited, and we may be
unable to achieve or maintain expected levels ofvfr and profitability.

Our long-term business plan also provides for el growth through strategic acquisitions and migggrowth through the
construction of new facilities or the expansioregisting facilities. Failure to identify and acqasuitable acquisition candidates on appropriat
terms could have a material adverse effect on mwil strategy. Moreover, our reduced operatingltesluring the current slow economic
recovery, our liquidity position, or the requirentenf the 2013 facility or the indenture governowy 2021 notes, could prevent us from
obtaining the capital required to effect new acitjoiss or expansions of existing facilities. Ouildee to make successful acquisitions or to
build or expand facilities, including manufacturifegilities, produce saleable product, or meetaustr demand in a timely manner could re
in damage to or loss of customer relationshipsctvisbuld adversely affect our financial conditioperating results, and cash flows. In
addition, although we have been successful in #st ip integrating 32 acquisitions, we may not ble & integrate the operations of future
acquired businesses with our own in an efficiemt emst-effective manner or without significant distion to our existing operations.
Moreover, acquisitions involve significant risksdaincertainties, including uncertainties as tofttiare financial performance of the acquired
business, difficulties integrating acquired persarand corporate cultures into our business, thergial loss of key employees, customers or
suppliers, difficulties in integrating differentroputer and accounting systems, exposure to unfemdgbilities of acquired companies, and
diversion of management attention and resources &xisting operations. We may be unable to sucalgsiomplete potential acquisitions ¢
to multiple factors, such as issues related toleggry review of the proposed transactions. We alag be required to incur additional debt in
order to consummate acquisitions in the future ctvhiiebt may be substantial and may limit our fléijbin using our cash flow from
operations. Our failure to integrate future acqiiivesinesses effectively or to manage other comsems of our acquisitions, including
increased indebtedness, could prevent us from réengacompetitive and, ultimately, could adversefget our financial condition, operating
results, and cash flows.

Federal, state, local and other regulations couldipose substantial costs and/or restrictions on owperations that would reduce our ne
income.

We are subject to various federal, state, local,@her regulations, including, among other thimggulations promulgated by the
Department of Transportation and applicable toftmat of delivery trucks, work safety regulatiomr®mulgated by the Department of Labor’s
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, esgpient regulations promulgated by the United Statpsal Employment Opportunity
Commission, accounting standards issued by thenEiabAccounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or simiéntities, and state and local zoning
restrictions and building codes. More burdensorgeletory requirements in these or other areas mengase our general and administrative
costs and adversely affect our financial conditmpgrating results, and cash flows. Moreover, failo comply with the regulatory
requirements applicable to our business could expedo substantial penalties that could adveis#gt our financial condition, operating
results and cash flows.

We are subject to potential exposure to environmeat liabilities and are subject to environmental reglation.

We are subject to various federal, state, and lecaironmental laws, ordinances, and regulatiofthoigh we believe that our facilities
are in material compliance with such laws, ordirn@nd regulations, as owners and lessees gingadrty, we can be held liable for the
investigation or remediation of contamination ootsproperties, in some circumstances, without kgmwhether we knew of or were
responsible for such contamination. No assuranaéegrovided that remediation may not be requimgtie future as a result of spills or
releases of petroleum products or hazardous sudestatine discovery of unknown environmental cood#j more stringent standards regardin
existing residual contamination, or changes indiagjion, laws, rules or regulations. More burdens@mvironmental regulatory requirements
may increase our general and administrative costsadversely affect our financial condition, opergtesults, and cash flows.
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We may be adversely affected by uncertainty in theconomy and financial markets, including as a resubf terrorism or unrest in the
Middle East, Eastern Europe or elsewhere.

Instability in the economy and financial marketsliuding as a result of terrorism or unrest inMiddle East, Eastern Europe or
elsewhere, may result in a decrease in housintg stelnich would adversely affect our business.dditon, such unrest or related adverse
developments, including a retaliatory military lstrior terrorist attack, may cause unpredictablenfavorable economic conditions and could
have a material adverse effect on our financiabldt@m, operating results, and cash flows. Any tuges of fuel or significant fuel cost
increases related to geopolitical conditions cagdously disrupt our ability to distribute prodsitd our customers. In addition, domestic
terrorist attacks may affect our ability to keep operations and services functioning properly emad have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, operating results, and caskv.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

We have a broad network of distribution and manufaag facilities in 9 states throughout the southend eastern U.S. We have 56
distribution facilities and 55 manufacturing fatés, many of which are co-located in the followmgrkets:

Alabama Maryland/Virginia South Carolina

Auburn Baltimore/Washington Senec:

Central Alabama’ Northeast Maryland Charleston®
Columbia*

Florida North Carolina Florence

Bunnell Charlotte* Grand Strand*

Emerald Coast* Fayetteville Greenville*

Jacksonville* High Point* Southeast South Carolina

Orlando* Raleigh*

South Florida* Washington Tennessee

Tampa* Western North Carolina* Eastern Tennessee*

Wilmington Knoxville

Georgia Nashville*

Atlanta*

Central Georgia Texas

Northern Georgi; Dallas/Fort Worth*
San Antonio*
Austin*
Houston*

*Markets with manufacturing facilitie

Distribution centers typically include 15 to 25 egiof outside storage, a 60,000 square foot wasshd®d,000 square feet of office sp.
and 30,000 square feet of covered storage. Thédewuisea provides space for lumber storage analgingt area for delivery while the
warehouse stores millwork, windows and doors. Tik&idution centers are usually located in indadtaireas with low cost real estate and eas
access to freeways to maximize distribution efficieand convenience. A majority of the distribut@enters are situated on rail lines for
efficient receipt of goods.

Our manufacturing facilities produce trusses, \paltels, engineered wood, stairs, windows, pre-liaogs and custom millwork. In
many cases, they are located on the same prensises distribution facilities. Truss and panel mfaturing facilities vary in size from
30,000 square feet to 60,000 square feet withl®tacres of outside storage for lumber and fosfiad goods. Our window manufacturing
facility in Houston, Texas has approximately 200,8quare feet.

We lease 55 facilities and own 25 facilities. Thiessses typically have an initial operating leasentof 5 to 15 years and most provide
options to renew for specified periods of time. Ajarity of our leases provide for fixed annual edst Certain of our leases include provisions
for escalating rent, as an example, based on chandgke consumer price index. Most of the leasgsire us to pay taxes, insurance and
common area maintenance expenses associated wipindperties.

We operate a fleet of approximately 1,200 truckdeliver products from our distribution and mantfiging centers to job sites. Throu
our emphasis on local market flexibility and stgatally placed locations, we minimize shipping dredght costs while maintaining a high
degree of local market expertise. Through knowleafgecal homebuilder needs, customer coordinagiod rapid restocking ability, we reduce
working capital requirements and guard againstodittock products. We believe that this reliabilgyhighly valued by our customers and
reinforces customer relationships.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in various claims and lawsuitsdecital to the conduct of our business in the orglicaurse. We carry insurance
coverage in such amounts in excess of ourissifred retention as we believe to be reasonalderuthe circumstances and that may or may
cover any or all of our liabilities in respect déiens and lawsuits. We do not believe that themate resolution of these matters will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated fir@rmbsition, cash flows or operating results.

Although our business and facilities are subjedetteral, state and local environmental regulatimvironmental regulation does not
have a material effect on our operations. We belieat our facilities are in material compliancéwsuch laws and regulations. As owners an
lessees of real property, we can be held liabl¢heiinvestigation or remediation of contaminationsuch properties, in some circumstances
without regard to whether we knew of or were resjfade for such contamination. Our current expendiwith respect to environmental
investigation and remediation at our facilities ari@imal, although no assurance can be providetdtiogae significant remediation may not be
required in the future as a result of spills oeasles of petroleum products or hazardous substantes discovery of unknown environmental
conditions, or changes in legislation, laws, rdesegulations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related $tdolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Baties

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Mathk C under the symbol “BLDR”. On February 27, 80the closing price of
our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ StockkitaLLC was $6.03. The approximate number of stotiters of record of our
common stock on that date was 80, although we\etleat the number of beneficial owners of our camrstock is substantially greater.

The table below sets forth the high and low satep of our common stock for the periods indicated

High Low

2014

First quartel $ 9.1¢ $ 7.14
Second quarte $ 94C $ 6.92
Third quartel $ 792 % 5.1C
Fourth quarte $ 6.9¢ $ 4.8¢
2013

First quartel $ 6.5 $ 5.12
Second quarte $ 73 % 5.0C
Third quartel $ 6.9 $ 5.1t
Fourth quarte $ 79 % 5.5¢

We have not declared or paid cash dividends itvtleemost recent fiscal years. Any future determaratelating to dividend policy will
be made at the discretion of our board of direcamid will depend on a number of factors, includiestrictions in our debt instruments, as well
as our future earnings, capital requirements, fir@ditondition, prospects and other factors thatbmard of directors may deem relevant. The
financing agreement governing the 2013 facility #mlindenture governing our 2021 notes curremtyrict our ability to pay dividends. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations — Liquidity aalpital Resources” contained in
Item 7 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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The following graph and table demonstrate the perémce of the cumulative total return to the stadttérs of our common stock duri
the five year period in comparison to the cumufatital returns of the Russell 2000 index and #&E 800 Building Products index. The gre
and table track the performance of a $100 investimesur common stock and in each of the indexath(the reinvestment of all dividends)
from December 31, 2009 to December 31, 2014.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®
Amang Builders FirstSource, Inc, the Russell 2000 Index,
and S&F 600 Building Products Index

5250 -

§200 -

$150 -

5100

§50 -

12109 12110 1211 12112 1213 12114

—+&— Builders FirstSource, Inc. ---2#r--- Russell 2000 —-=— S&P 600 Building Products Index
Year Ended December 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Builders FirstSource, In $ 1000 $ 513C $ 531 $ 1453. $ 1856¢ $ 178.9:
Russell 200( $ 100.0C $ 126.8¢ $ 1215¢ $ 141.4! $ 196.3¢ $ 205.9¢
S&P 600 Building Product $ 100.0¢ $ 111.2: $ 100.2¢ $ 127.2¢ $ 1725¢ $ 175.1(

The information regarding securities authorizedi$suance under equity compensation plans appeats idefinitive proxy statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be heldvay 27, 2015 under the caption “Equity CompemsaRlan Information,” which
information is incorporated herein by reference.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected consolidated financial datathe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2l &0d as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 were derived from our consolidated finairstatements that have been audited by PricevmtseiCoopers LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm, and are includedtem 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K. &el@ consolidated financial data as of
December 31, 2012 and as of and for the years ebdeember 31, 2011 and 2010 were derived from onsalidated financial statements that
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLtRyrbwnot included herein.

The following data should be read in conjunctiothviManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€iondition and Results of
Operations” contained in Item 7 of this annual repa Form 10-K and with our consolidated finanattements and related notes included a
Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amount

Statement of operations data:

Sales $ 1,604,090 $1,489,89. $1,070,67¢ $ 779,090 $ 700,34
Gross margir 356,99° 319,92 214, 56t 157,94! 131,75¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 306,50t 271,88t 222,26: 192,95¢ 194,09:
Asset impairment — — 48 — 83¢
Facility closure cost 471 (7 95¢ 2,461 55¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations(1) 18,55¢ (42,36%) (54,419 (64,637) (94,297
Income (loss) from continuing operations per s— basic $ 0.1¢ $ (049 $ (057 $ (068 $ (1.09
Income (loss) from continuing operations per sl— diluted $ 0.1t $ (049 $ (0.57 $ (0.6¢) $ (2.09)
Balance sheet data (end of period

Cash and cash equivale $ 17,777 $ 54,69 $ 131,43 $ 146,831 $ 103,23:
Total assets(s 583,06! 515,83¢ 550,84 493,79: 419,08t
Total debt (including current portio 383,90 353,97: 360,95! 297,50¢ 169,10:
Stockholder equity 40,20( 15,36¢ 48,09¢ 101,22 159,50!
Other financial data:

Depreciation and amortization (excluding discongiioperations $ 9561¢ $ 9,30t $ 11,12( $ 14,04 $ 15,43

(1) Income from continuing operations includeaduction to our valuation allowance of $7.2 millidwe to the utilization of net operating
loss carryforwards to reduce taxable income foryter ended December 31, 2014. Loss from continojrggations included a valuation
allowance of $15.3 million against primarily all ofir deferred tax assets for the year ended Deaedih@013, which is exclusive of
$0.6 million related primarily to reversals of uneén tax positions due to statute expirations #ifdcted our net operating loss
carryforward and valuation allowance. Loss fromtgaring operations included a valuation allowant&19.6 million, $26.1 million an
$35.4 million against primarily all of our deferréak assets for the years ended December 31, 2012,and 2010, as discussed in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements inaluddtem 8 of this annual report on Formr-K.

(2) Loss from continuing operations for year enBetember 31, 2013 included a $39.5 million prepaynpenalty related to the early
termination of our $225.0 million fir-lien term loan due 201!

(3) Total assets for December 31, 2011 have bedassified to conform to current period preseatatin addition, amounts for
December 31, 2011 and 2010 have been revised semirasurance related receivables and payablagjooss basis. This revision
increased total assets by $4.2 million and $6.8anilrespectively
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijom with the selected financial de
and the consolidated financial statements andegtladtes contained in Iltem 6. Selected FinancighBad Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data of this annual report on Forr Lespectively. See “Risk Factors” containedtam 1A. Risk Factors of this annual
report on Form 10-K and “Cautionary Statement” eored in Item 1. Business of this annual reporForm 10-K for a discussion of the
uncertainties, risks and assumptions associatdtthdise statements.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading supplier and manufacturer of siraband related building products for residemtialv construction in the U.S. We
offer an integrated solution to our customers ming manufacturing, supply and installation of i fange of structural and related building
products. Our manufactured products include ouofgebuilt roof and floor trusses, wall panels atdirs, aluminum and vinyl windows,
custom millwork and trim, as well as engineered @vtimat we design and cut for each home. We alssndsle interior and exterior doors into
pre-hung units. Additionally, we supply our custameith a broad offering of professional grade duig) products not manufactured by us,
such as dimensional lumber and lumber sheet geadsus window, door and millwork lines, as wellabinets, roofing and hardware. Our
full range of construction-related services inckigeofessional installation, turn-key framing ahelsconstruction, and spans all our product
categories.

We group our building products into five producteggories:

e Prefabricated ComponentOur prefabricated components consist of wood faat roof trusses, steel roof trusses, wall panels,
stairs, and engineered wot

e Windows & DoorsOur windows & doors category is comprised of thenafacturing, assembly, and distribution of windcavel the
assembly and distribution of interior and extedoor units.

e Lumber & Lumber Sheet GooLumber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaldamplywood, and OSB products used in on:
site house framing

e Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, camns and posts that we distribute, as well as oustderior features that
we manufacture under the Synbo®brand name

e Other Building Products & Service®ther building products & services are comprisegroflucts such as cabinets, roofing and
insulation and services such as turn-key framihgll €onstructiongdesign assistance, and professional installatianrgpg all of ou
product categorie!

Our operating results are dependent on the follgwiends, events and uncertainties, some of whiglbe@yond our control:

e Homebuilding IndustryOur business is driven primarily by the residentialv construction market, which is in turn dependgron
a number of factors, including demographic tremuterest rates, consumer confidence, employmees rédreclosure rates, and the
health of the economy and mortgage markets. Duhiadousing downturn, which began in 2006, manydtariiders significantly
decreased their starts because of lower demandraagcess of home inventory. The housing marketest#o strengthen in 2011.
According to the U.S. Census Bureau, annual Urfgleifamily housing starts were 647,300 in 2014wkeleer, single-family
housing starts remain well below the historicalrage (from 1959 through 2013) of 1.0 million peageDue to the lower levels in
housing starts and increased competition for hoitegnbusiness, we have and will continue to exgrezé pressure on our gross
margins. We still believe there are several medulrtgends that indicate U.S. housing demand wkklly recover in the long term
and that the recent downturn in the housing ingustlikely a trough in the cyclical nature of thesidential construction industry.
These trends include relatively low interest ratiee,aging of housing stock, and normal populagjmwth due to immigration and
birthrate exceeding death rate. Industry forecastecluding the NAHB, expect to see continued iowement in housing demand
over the next few year

e Targeting Large Production Homebuildefver the past ten years, the homebuilding industisyundergone consolidation, and the
larger homebuilders have increased their markaeshde expect that trend to continue as larger hanifders have better liquidity
and land positions relative to the smaller, legatabzed homebuilders. Our focus is on maintainielgtionships and market share
with these customers while balancing the competitixessures we are facing in servicing large hoitdsys with certain
profitability expectations. Our sales to the “BitdL00,” the country’s largest 100 homebuildersreased 8.1% during 2014,
compared to a 7.7% increase in our total salethfoyear. We expect that our ability to maintanorsg relationships with the largest
builders will be vital to our ability to expand immhew markets as well as grow our market shareitidddlly, we have been
successful in expanding our custom homebuilder béndle maintaining acceptable credit standa
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e Use of Prefabricated Componeni&gior to the housing downturn, homebuilders wepedasingly using prefabricated components ir
order to realize increased efficiency and improgadlity. Shortening cycle time from start to contjgle was a key imperative of the
homebuilders during periods of strong consumer aeim@uring the housing downturn, that trend deedéat as cycle time had less
relevance. Customers who traditionally used prétabed components, for the most part, still do. ldeer, the conversion of
customers to this product offering slowed during downturn. We are now seeing the demand for priekted components increase
as the residential new construction market consirtaestrengthen and the availability of skilled swaction labor remains limite:

e Economic ConditionsEconomic changes both nationally and locally in markets impact our financial performance. Theding
products supply industry is highly dependent upew home construction and subject to cyclical macketnges. Our operations are
subject to fluctuations arising from changes in@y@and demand, national and local economic cowmiti labor costs, competition,
government regulation, trade policies and othetofacthat affect the homebuilding industry suclde@sographic trends, interest
rates, single-family housing starts, employmenelgyconsumer confidence, and the availabilityrefiit to homebuilders,
contractors, and homeowners. Beginning in 2007ntbegage markets experienced substantial disnuhile to increased defaults.
This resulted in a stricter regulatory environmamd reduced availability of mortgages for poterti@nebuyers due to an illiquid
credit market and tighter standards to qualifyrfmrtgages. Mortgage financing and commercial cfedismaller homebuilders
continue to be constrained, although there have exent signs of easing. As the housing industdependent upon the economy
as well as potential homebuyers’ access to mort§jagaecing and homebuilders’ access to commercedit it is likely that the
housing industry will not fully recover until condins in the economy and the credit markets furitmgrove.

e Cost of MaterialsPrices of wood products, which are subject to catlimarket fluctuations, may adversely impact ofyegancome
when prices rapidly rise or fall within a relatiyedhort period of time. We purchase certain malgriacluding lumber products,
which are then sold to customers as well as useélitest production inputs for our manufactured anefabricated products. Short-
term changes in the cost of these materials, sdwhich are subject to significant fluctuationse @ometimes passed on to our
customers, but our pricing quotation periods metlour ability to pass on such price changes. Vég also be limited in our abilit
to pass on increases onkiound freight costs on our products. Our inabiiitypass on material price increases to our cus®ouarld
adversely impact our operating resu

e Controlling Expense®nother important aspect of our strategy is colitrglcosts and enhancing our status as a low-agktibg
materials supplier in the markets we serve. Wegbese attention to managing our working capital apdrating expenses. We have
a “best practices” operating philosophy, which emages increasing efficiency, lowering costs, imprg working capital, and
maximizing profitability and cash flow. We constigrainalyze our workforce productivity to achieve thptimum, cost-efficient
labor mix for our facilities. Further, we pay caredittention to our logistics function and its effen our shipping and handling co

e Expand into Mul-Family and Light Commercial Busine€3ur primary focus has been, and continues to bsjrayle-family
residential new construction. However, we havemtgeacquired companies with multi-family manufaihg capabilities to further
diversify our customer base. We will continue teritify opportunities for profitable growth in theuiti-family and light commercial
markets.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Acquisitions

On June 30, 2014, the Company acquired certainsaasd the operations of Slone Lumber Company,(f&tone”) for $8.7 million in
cash. Based in Houston, Texas, Slone is a full¥iméling materials supplier. Slone’s product affgs include lumber, engineered beams,
interior and exterior door units, moulding, trinmdacabinets. Slone also offers installation ses/me exterior doors, shutters, and cabinets.

On July 31, 2014, the Company acquired certainsssel the operations of West Orange Lumber Company(“West Orange”) for
$9.8 million in cash. Based in Groveland, Floridéest Orange supplies lumber, roof and floor trussestom windows and doors, as well as
installation services, to both residential homederi$ and commercial contractors in central Florida.

On August 6, 2014, the Company acquired certaietassd the operations of Truss Rite, LLC (“Truge'lRfor $14.6 million in cash.
Based in Sherman, Texas, Truss Rite primarily mastufes wood roof and floor trusses for large rfaltily and commercial projects
throughout Texas and parts of Oklahoma. Truss@aédominately serves developers and general céotsao the multi-family residential
housing sector.

On October 1, 2014, the Company acquired certaatasind the operations of Trim Tech of Austin, (iErim Tech”) for $19.4 million
in cash. Trim Tech is based in Hutto, Texas, widcipproximately 30 miles north of downtown Ausfimim Tech is a turn-key supplier of
custom cabinets, interior and exterior doors, §taits, and custom millwork and molding.

On December 22, 2014 the Company acquired certaets and the operations of Empire Truss, Ltd. ¢fiEet) for $16.8 million in
cash. Empire is a Texas-based manufacturer of mudésigned roof trusses and floor trusses, andtalditor of
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engineered wood products with its primary operatilmtated in Huntsville, Texas, approximately 6%emnorth of downtown Houston. Emp
also operates a manufacturing facility in Ferrisxds, which is 20 miles southeast of Dallas. Eepiprimary focus is on multi-family and
light commercial customers.

On February 6, 2015 the Company acquired cert@etasnd the operations of Timber Tech Texas (fiianber Tech”)for $5.8 millior
in cash. Timber Tech is based in Cibolo, Texasctvis approximately 25 miles northeast of downtd&am Antonio. Timber Tech is a
manufacturer of roof trusses, floor trusses, wallgls and sub-components, as well as a supplgdueflaminated timber and veneer lumber
beams.

These transactions were accounted for by the dtiqnisnethod. Accordingly, the results of operationill be included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements froeir ttespective acquisition dates. The purchase pritt be allocated to the assets acquired
based on estimated fair values at the acquisitate, dvith the excess of purchase price over thimatgd fair value of the net assets acquired
recorded as goodwill.

2013 Facility Borrowing

On July 31, 2014, we borrowed $30.0 million under $175.0 million senior secured revolving creditifity (“2013 facility”) at an
interest rate of 1.98%. Amounts borrowed under2nir3 facility will be used to fund working capitaeds and potential future acquisitions.

CURRENT OPERATING CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Though the level of housing starts remains nedotigslows, the homebuilding industry has shown iayement since 2011. According
to the U.S. Census Bureau, actual U.S. single-fahtlising starts for 2014 were 647,300, an increfdeB% compared to 2013, but
approximately 55.8% lower than when the downturgdmein 2006. Actual single-family starts in the 8oRegion, as defined by the U.S.
Census Bureau and which encompasses our entireagdndg footprint, increased to 345,500 in the coiryear, up 6.0% from 2013, while
singlefamily units under construction in the South Regimreased 14.0% compared to 2013. While the hgusitustry has strengthened ¢
the past few years, the limited availability ofditdo smaller homebuilders and potential homebsiged the slow economic recovery, among
other factors, have hampered a stronger recovéry NIAHB is forecasting 803,500 U.S. single-famibuking starts for 2015, which is an
increase of 24.2% from 2014. However, our intefasdcasts are based on a more conservative 718 @&ingle-family housing starts for
2015.

We achieved a 7.7% increase in sales during 20térapared to the prior year. Excluding the impdaeoent acquisitions, we estimate
sales increased 7.9% due to increased volume, wiastpartially offset by a 2.1% decrease due tartfpact of commodity price deflation on
sales, while sales increased an additional 1.9%aluecent acquisitions during the year ended Déeer@l, 2014 compared to the prior year.
We believe our broad offering of products and sesiwill allow us to continue to gain market shamd expand our customer base. Our gross
margin percentage increased 0.8% year over yeaaply due to improved customer pricing and lowelatility in commodity lumber prices
2014 compared to 2013. We made significant chataear business during the downturn that have iwgadour operating efficiency and
allowed us to better leverage our operating cagtinat changes in sales. However, our selling, génend administrative expenses, as a
percentage of sales, increased 0.9% in the cuysamtcompared to 2013 primarily due to the negathygact of commodity price deflation on
our sales in 2014 as well as incremental experssmded with increasing our capacity in anticipatof increasing sales volumes.

We still believe the long-term outlook for the himgsindustry is positive due to growth in the urgielg demographics. We feel we are
well-positioned to take advantage of the constanctictivity in our markets and to continue to i our market share, which may include
strategic acquisitions. We will continue to focusworking capital by closely monitoring the creeiposure of our customers and by working
with our vendors to improve our payment terms amcing on our products. We will also continue torlwdiligently to achieve the appropriate
balance of short-term expense control while maigi the expertise and capacity to grow the busiassnarket conditions improve. We want
to create long-term shareholder value and avoiithgadteps that will limit our ability to compete.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the percentage ieteship to sales of certain costs, expenses amaniadtems for the years ended
December 31:

2014 2013 2012

Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 77.1% 78.5% 80.(%

Gross margir 22.2% 21.5% 20.(%
Selling, general and administrative exper 19.1% 18.2% 20.8%
Asset impairment 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Facility closure cost 0.1% 0.C% 0.C%

Income (loss) from operatiol 3.1% 3.2% (0.89%
Interest expense, n 1.S% 6.C% 4.2%
Income tax expens 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 1.1% (2.99% (5.)%
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (0.0% (0.0% (0.2)%
Net income (loss 1.1% (2.9)% (5.9%

2014 Compared with 2013

SalesSales for the year ended December 31, 2014 we6641, million, a 7.7% increase from sales of $1,888illion for 2013.
Excluding the impact of recent acquisitions ouesarew 5.8% for the year ended December 31, 20hpared to the prior year. According to
the U.S Census Bureau, actual U.S. single-familyshig starts increased 4.8% in 2014 as compar2@18. In the South Region, actual single
family starts increased 6.0% compared to 2013 samgle-family units under construction increased¥d over this same time period.
Excluding the impact of recent acquisitions, wéneate sales increased 7.9% due to increased voluhieh was partially offset by a 2.1%
decrease due to the impact of commodity price tieflaon sales, while sales increased an additibri#8 due to recent acquisitions during the
year ended December 31, 2014 compared to theywar

The following table shows sales classified by majaduct category (dollars in millions):

2014 2013
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change

Prefabricated componer $ 330« 20.6% $ 294.( 19.7% 12.5%
Windows & doors 356.¢ 22.2% 308.€ 20.7% 15.6%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 522.1 32.6% 526.¢ 35.4% (0.8%
Millwork 160.Z 10.(% 136.¢ 9.2% 17.1%
Other building products & servici 233. 14.€% 223.¢ 15.(% 4.2%
Total sales $ 1,604. 100.(% $ 1,489.¢ 100.% 7.7%

Increased sales were achieved across all prodiegaées, except lumber and lumber sheet goodsapily due to increased volume.
The decrease in sales for lumber and lumber sloeetsgs primarily attributable to the impact of aoodity price deflation, which was mostly
offset by an increase in volume, for the year erldedember 31, 2014 compared to the prior year.

Gross Margin.Gross margin increased $37.1 million to $357.0iamill Our gross margin percentage increased froisf21n 2013 to
22.3% in 2014, a 0.8% increase. Our gross margicepéage increased primarily due to improved custgonicing and lower volatility in
commodity lumber prices during the year ended Déxsgr81, 2014 compared to the prior year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expensgalling, general and administrative expenses ise@&34.6 million, or 12.7%. Our
salaries and benefits expense, excluding stock easgiion expense, was $191.1 million for 2014 narease of $19.4 million from 2013.
Delivery expenses increased $5.9 million and offjeaeral and administrative expense increasedrifli8n primarily due to increased sales
volume. Occupancy expenses increased $3.0 milliomarily due to acquisitions and expansions astig facilities.

As a percentage of sales, selling, general andrastmrsitive expenses increased from 18.2% in 201®tb% in 2014. As a percentage of
sales, salaries and benefits expense, excludicg stmpensation expense, increased 0.4%, delivestg increased by 0.1%, our office gen
and administrative expense increased 0.1% and aocyExpenses increased by 0.1%. These increaseprimarily due to the negative
impact of commodity lumber price deflation on oates during 2014.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $30.3 million in 2014, a demef $59.3 million from 2013. The decrease imarily relatec
to our refinancing in the second quarter of 2018ictvincluded $10.6 million of interest on our thantstanding
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$225.0 million first-lien term loan due 2015 (“tetoan”), the write-off of $6.8 million in unamorgz debt discount and $2.1 million of debt
issuance costs, and a $39.5 million prepaymentipramelated to the early termination of the terrario

Income Tax Expens@/e recorded income tax expense of $1.1 million 8@ million during 2014 and 2013, respectively. Weorded
a $7.2 million reduction to our valuation allowartige to utilization of net operating loss carryfards to reduce our taxable income in 2014.
We recorded an after-tax, non-cash valuation alfmgaof $15.3 million related to our net deferreddasets for 2013, which is exclusive of
$0.6 million primarily related to reversals of uneén tax positions due to statute expirations #ffgcted our net operating loss carryforward
and valuation allowance. Absent this valuationa#ince, our effective tax rate would have been 42ah%35.0% for 2014 and 2012,
respectively.

2013 Compared with 2012

SalesSales for the year ended December 31, 2013 wed8%3, million, a 39.2% increase from sales of $Q,0illion for 2012.
Actual U.S. single-family housing starts increa&&b% in 2013 as compared to 2012. In the SoutldRegctual single-family starts also
increased 15.5% compared to 2012, and single-famifys under construction increased 25.4% overdaise time period. We achieved this
increase in sales as we continued to expand otwroes base while increasing sales to current custenwe estimate sales increased 29.2%
due to volume and 10.0% due to price for the yaded December 31, 2013 compared to the year endeeniber 31, 2012.

The following table shows sales classified by majaduct category (dollars in millions):

2013 2012
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change
Prefabricated componer $  294.( 19.% $  203.% 19.(% 44.%%
Windows & doors 308.¢ 20.7% 233.] 21.8% 32.2%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 526.¢ 35.4% 348.1 32.5% 51.2%
Millwork 136.¢ 9.2% 104.- 9.7% 31.2%
Other building products & servici 223.¢ 15.(% 181.¢ 17.(% 23.2%
Total sales $ 1,489.¢ 100.% $ 1,070.° 100.(% 39.2%

Increased sales volume was achieved across aligradtegories. Commaodity prices for lumber anddansheet goods were on aver
17.8% higher in 2013 compared to 2012. During 2@ 2012, prices rose to levels not seen on astensibasis since 2005 and 2006. This
commodity price inflation contributed to sales gtovior lumber & lumber sheet goods and prefabrit@@mponents exceeding that of our
other product categories. Growth in prefabricat@hpgonents was also due to increased customer defmatiese products as builders have
become more focused on reducing construction dirole.

Gross Margin.Gross margin increased $105.4 million to $319.9ionml Our gross margin percentage increased frord%an 2012 to
21.5% in 2013, a 1.5% increase. Our gross margicepéage increased 0.9% due to improved custoneEngy 0.5% due to leveraging fixed
costs within cost of goods sold and 0.1% due tadawed sales mix.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenssslling, general and administrative expenses ise&49.6 million, or 22.3%. Our
salaries and benefits expense, excluding stock easgiion expense, was $171.7 million for 2013 narease of $34.1 million from 2012.
Delivery expenses increased $6.7 million primadilye to higher fuel costs and increased mainteneosts on vehicles as a result of increasec
sales volume. Occupancy expenses increased $1i6maihd our office general and administrative exgeeincreased $6.5 million, primarily
due to increased sales volumes in 2013.

As a percent of sales, selling, general and adiratige expenses, excluding asset impairments &t sompensation expense,
decreased from 20.4% in 2012 to 18.0% in 2013.rfealand benefits expense, excluding stock compiensaxpense, decreased 1.3% and
delivery costs decreased by 0.7%. Occupancy desntdns0.4% due to the fixed nature of the categoy our office general and
administrative expense decreased 0.1%.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $89.6 million in 2013, angase of $44.5 million primarily related to our 20#8nancing.
The increase includes $6.8 million of unamortizedtddiscount and $2.1 million of debt issuance wo#e-offs, as well as a $39.5 million
prepayment premium all related to the early tertmameof our term loan. These increases were prtiffset by a $3.5 million decrease in
fair value adjustments in 2013 from 2012 on therarmts issued as part of the term loan enteredin2011.

Income Tax Expens@/e recorded income tax expense of $0.8 million $®é million during 2013 and 2012, respectively. Weorded
an after-tax, non-cash valuation allowance of $1&ilBon related to our net deferred tax asset2fat3, which is exclusive of $0.6 million
primarily related to reversals of uncertain taxifposs due to statute expirations that affectedrmtroperating loss carryforward and valuation
allowance. We recorded an after-tax valuation adloge of $19.6 million related to our net deferrad t
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assets for 2012. Absent this valuation allowanoe edfective tax rate would have been 35.0% an8%5or 2013 and 2012, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary capital requirements are to fund wogkiapital needs and operating expenses, meet egqguaierest and principal
payments, and to fund capital expenditures andnfiatduture acquisitions. Our capital resourceBatember 31, 2014 consist of cash on han
and borrowing availability under our revolving citefdcility.

Our 2013 facility is primarily used for working dégd, general corporate purposes, and funding adtipns. Availability under the 2013
facility is determined by a borrowing base. Ourrbaring base consists of trade accounts receivablentory and other receivables, including
progress billings and credit card receivables, ¢t specific criteria contained within the crediteement, minus agent specified reserves.
Net borrowing availability is the sum of the maximiorrowing amount minus outstanding borrowings lettérs of credit

The following table shows our borrowing base ancess availability as of December 31, 2014 and Déeer81, 2013 (in millions):

As of
December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Accounts Receivable Availabilit $ 102.¢ $ 99.:
Inventory Availability 79.€ 67.€
Other Receivables Availabilit 11.5 11.C

Gross Availability 193.¢ 177.¢
Less:

Agent Reserve (8.0 (6.9
Borrowing Base 185.¢ 171.C
Aggregate Revolving Commitmer 175.( 175.(
Maximum Borrowing Amount (lesser of Borrowing Based

Aggregate Revolving Commitment 175.C 171.C
Less:
Outstanding Borrowing (30.0 —
Letters of Credi (15.6) (13.9
Net Borrowing Availability on Revolving Facilit $ 129.2  $ 157.1
Plus:
Cash in Qualified Account 16.7 54.z
Excess Availability, as define $ 146.1 % 211

As of December 31, 2014, we had $30.0 million itstanding borrowings under our 2013 facility and oet borrowing availability was
$129.4 million after being reduced by outstandittelrs of credit of approximately $15.6 million.dess availability is the sum of our net
borrowing availability plus qualified cash, definasl cash on deposit that is subject to a contralesgent in favor of the agent. Excess
availability must equal or exceed a minimum spedifamount, currently $17.5 million, or we are reedito meet a fixed charge coverage ratic
of 1 to 1. At December 31, 2014, our excess aviithalwvas $146.1 million, including $129.4 millioin net borrowing availability and $16.7
million in qualified cash. We were not in violatiof any covenants or restrictions imposed by angusfdebt agreements at December 31,
2014.

Liquidity

Our liquidity at December 31, 2014 was $147.2 wrilliwhich includes $129.4 million in net borrowiagailability under the 2013
facility and $17.8 million of cash on hand. We arpecting increased stability and continued impnoeet in the housing industry in 2015.
Beyond 2015, it is difficult for us to predict whatll happen as our industry is dependent on a remobfactors, including national economic

conditions, employment levels, the availabilitycoédit for homebuilders and potential home buythes level of foreclosures, existing home
inventory, and interest rates.

We believe our liquidity is sufficient to meet augeds in 2015. We expect to generate cash of ajppaitedy $10-$30 million in 2015
and to end the year with (i) cash of $25-$45 milland (ii) liquidity of approximately $160-$180 toh. This forecast is based on 715,000
U.S. single-family housing starts for 2015, marnietes for commodity products remaining relativeigible for the year, improvement in gross
margin, an operating expense structure consistithtowrrent levels, and capital expenditures of
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approximately $25-$30 million. We considered vasi@sgenarios when evaluating our liquidity for 20b8Juding housing starts consistent
with 2014. We do not expect working capital to teoarce of funds for the next twelve months.

In the event that housing starts or sales volum@®a5 are higher or lower than expected, or itotissumptions used in our forecasting
differ from actual results, our forecasted cashlgasand liquidity levels may change. Should theentrmdustry conditions deteriorate or we
pursue acquisitions, we may be required to raisitiadal funds through the sale of common stocKett in the public capital markets or in
privately negotiated transactions. There can bassorance that any of these financing options wioeldvailable on favorable terms, if at all.
Alternatives to help supplement our liquidity pasitcould include, but are not limited to, idling mermanently closing additional facilities,
adjusting our headcount in response to currenniegsiconditions, attempts to renegotiate leasdsjigasting of non-core businesses. There
are no assurances that these steps would provessiictc

Since the beginning of the housing downturn, a grinfocus has been on protecting our liquidity. @ction plan, which consisted of
generating new business, reducing physical capadfysting staffing levels, implementing cost @minent programs, managing credit
tightly, raising additional capital when neededj aonserving cash allowed us to mitigate the effe€the difficult industry conditions. While
we continue to focus on these areas, we also plarudently utilize our liquidity to support anpeited sales growth, primarily related to our
working capital, delivery fleet and staffing levefdso, we have and will likely continue to seleelly pursue strategic acquisitions, which may
impact our liquidity.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $27.59ionilin 2014 compared to cash used in operatiniyities of $47.6 million in 2013.
The change of $75.1 million was primarily due to efinancing in the second quarter of 2013 andimproved financial performance in 20
Cash interest payments were $28.3 million in 20d#gared to $78.2 million in 2013. The $78.2 milliarcash interest payments in 2013
included a $39.5 million prepayment penalty reldtethe termination of our term loan. In additiony working capital only increased $7.8
million compared to an increase in working capita$31.8 million in 2013.

Cash used in operating activities was $47.6 miliad $66.9 million for 2013 and 2012, respectiv€ljthe cash used in operating
activities, approximately $78.2 million and $37.8lion were cash interest payments in 2013 and 20dshectively. The $78.2 million in cash
interest payments for 2013 includes a non-recu$B@5 million prepayment premium related to threnieation of our term loan. In addition,
approximately $31.8 million and $34.0 million oktlash used in operating activities were due teases in working capital for 2013 and
2012, respectively. The increases in accountsvabks and inventory were partially offset by anrease in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. For 2013 and 2012 these increasesadrkimg capital and cash interest payments weregtigroffset by a reduction in cash used in
operations primarily due to increased sales andawgul profitability.

Cash used in investing activities increased $95ldbmin 2014 compared to 2013. The increase imprily due to $69.3 million in cash
used for acquisitions in 2014 and a $10.7 milliecréase in capital expenditures in 2014 compar@®18. The remaining change is primarily
due to a decrease of $13.0 million in restrictesha@lated to the transfer of our outstanding fetbé credit from the previous facility to our
new letter of credit sub-facility, which eliminatedr cash collateral requirement for outstandirtgete of credit in 2013. The increase in capita
expenditures during 2014 primarily relates to thechase of facilities in Greensboro, NC, Conroe, @Xd Schertz, TX, improvements related
to the relocation of two facilities, as well as ghaising machinery and equipment to support satesthrand to increase capacity at existing
locations.

Cash provided by investing activities was $0.6iomllin 2013 compared to cash used in investingigiets of $9.0 in 2012. The change
was primarily due to a decrease of $11.9 milliongstricted cash during 2013 compared to 2012 asash collateral requirement for
outstanding letters of credit was eliminated. Pedsefrom the sale of property, plant and equiprmeeased by $2.4 million in 2013 compa
to 2012. Partially offsetting these changes, opitahexpenditures increased $4.7 million in 20b8pared to 2012 primarily related to
purchasing a facility in Knoxville, TN as well agnghasing machinery and equipment to support spiesth and to increase capacity at
existing locations.

Cash provided financing activities for 2014 was .838@illion compared to cash used in financing atiés in 2013 of $29.7 million.
Cash provided by financing activities for 2014 paity relates to our $30.0 million borrowing undee 2013 facility. Cash used in 2013
primarily relates to our refinancing in the secapugrter of 2013. In the second quarter of 2013sseaed $350.0 million of 7.625% senior
secured notes due 2021 (“2021 noteandl repaid our $225.0 million term loan and $13#illion of our second priority senior secured fioaf
rate notes due 2016 (“2016 notes”). The remainivange is primarily due to $15.6 million in paymeotsieferred loan costs related to our
2013 facility and 2021 notes.
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Cash used in financing activities was $29.7 millior2013 compared to cash provided by financing/éigts of $60.5 million in 2012. In
2013, we issued $350.0 million of 2021 notes ampaictour $225.0 term loan and $139.7 million of @@btes. The remaining change in 2013
is primarily due to $15.6 million in payments offeleed loan costs related to our 2013 facility #mel2021 notes. In 2012, our net cash
provided by financing activities of $60.5 millioraw primarily due to the $62.1 million of proceedsf the amendment to our term loan, ne
debt discount, partially offset by $1.6 million méiyments of deferred loan costs.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures vary depending on prevailingifiess factors, including current and anticipategket conditions. Historically,
capital expenditures have for the most part renth@rieelatively low levels in comparison to the @iing cash flows generated during the
corresponding periods. We expect our 2015 capxadrditures to be approximately $25-$30 milliommarily related to rolling stock,
equipment and facility improvements to support aperations.

DISCLOSURES OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCI AL COMMITMENTS
The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@s of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Perioc

Contractual obligations Total Lessthan1yea 1-3years 3-5years More than 5 years
Long-term debt $ 383,90: $ 30,07 $ 277 $ 112 $ 353,44(
Interest on lon-term debt(1 177,73¢ 28,25: 56,09 54,83: 38,56+
Operating lease 106,23! 24,55¢ 39,82% 25,23t 16,61¢
Uncertain tax positions(: — — — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 667,87( $ 82,88( $ 96,19* $ 80,18. $ 408,62.

(1) We had $30.0 million in borrowings under ttgd. 3 facility as of December 31, 2014. Borrowingsl@mthe 2013 facility bear interest at a
variable rate. Therefore, actual interest may diffem the amounts presented above due to anyditorrowing activity under the 2013
facility.

(2) We have $0.4 million of uncertain tax posisaecorded in long-term liabilities or as a reduttio operating loss carryforwards. We also
have $0.3 million in interest and penalties accmaated to these uncertain tax positions. It israasonably possible to predict at this
time when (or if) any of these amounts will be Iseit

The amounts reflected in the table above for opegdéases represent future minimum lease paymertsr non-cancelable operating
leases with an initial or remaining term in exceene year at December 31, 2014. Purchase ord&eed into in the ordinary course of
business are excluded from the above table bethegare payable within one year. Amounts for whighare liable under purchase orders
reflected on our consolidated balance sheet asiatepayable and accrued liabilities. We plan éséeadditional delivery equipment during
2015 to support anticipated sales growth. Theseatipg leases are not included in the table above.

OTHER CASH OBLIGATIONS NOT REFLECTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

In accordance with accounting principles generadlgepted in the United States, commonly referrestGAAP, our operating leases
not recorded in our balance sheet. In additioméoléase obligations included in the above tabéehawve residual value guarantees on certain
equipment leases. Under these leases we havetiba op(1) purchasing the equipment at the entheflease term, (2) arranging for the sale
of the equipment to a third party, or (3) returnthg equipment to the lessor to sell the equipmétite sales proceeds in either case are less
than the residual value, then we are requireditolrarse the lessor for the deficiency up to a djgetievel as stated in each lease agreement.
The guarantees under these leases for the resiglugls of equipment at the end of the respectiegating lease periods approximated
$2.8 million as of December 31, 2014.

Based upon the expectation that none of thesedesssets will have a residual value at the entlefdase term that is materially less
than the value specified in the related operatiagé agreement or that we will purchase the equipat¢he end of the lease term, we do not
believe it is probable that we will be requireddad any amounts under the terms of these guaranteegements. Accordingly, no accruals
have been recognized for these guarantees.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting policies are those that bothiarportant to the accurate portrayal of a compafipancial condition and results, and
require subjective or complex judgments, often essalt of the need to make estimates about tleetedf matters that are inherently uncertain.
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In order to prepare financial statements that confio GAAP, we make estimates and assumptionsaffedt the amounts reported in
our financial statements and accompanying notedai@esstimates are particularly sensitive dud&rtsignificance to the financial statements
and the possibility that future events may be Sicguntly different from our expectations.

We have identified the following accounting polgigat require us to make the most subjective mmpdex judgments in order to fairly
present our consolidated financial position andltseof operations.

Vendor Rebateddany of our arrangements with our vendors provimteus to receive a rebate of a specified amourdigayto us when
we achieve any of a number of measures, generd#iyed to the volume of purchases from our vendlesaccount for these rebates as a
reduction of the prices of the vendor’s productsiolw reduces inventory until we sell the produttyhich time these rebates reduce cost of
sales. Throughout the year, we estimate the anaiusbates based upon our historical level of pasels. We continually revise these estin
to reflect actual purchase levels.

If market conditions were to change, vendors mange the terms of some or all of these progranthoffh these changes would not
affect the amounts which we have recorded relatgutdduct already purchased, it may impact ourgnoargins on products we sell or sales
earned in future periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Related Resel¥e maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses due to the
failure of our customers to make required paymants perform periodic credit evaluations of our oasérs and typically do not require
collateral. However, we have, in some cases, reduiustomers to collateralize their debt with usngistent with industry practices, we
typically require payment from most customers witBO days. As our business is seasonal in ceragioms, our customerbusinesses are al
seasonal. Sales are lowest in the winter montltspanpast due accounts receivable balance axarage of total receivables generally
increases during this time. Throughout the yearregerd estimated reserves based upon our higtarita-offs of uncollectible accounts,
taking into consideration certain factors, suclagisg statistics and trends, customer paymentrgisttdependent credit reports, and
discussions with customers. Periodically, we penfarspecific analysis of all accounts past duevarite off account balances when we have
exhausted reasonable collection efforts and deterntihat the likelihood of collection is remote. \Wharge these write-offs against our
allowance for doubtful accounts. Any future declineéhe macroeconomic factors that affect the di/ausing industry or our specific
customers’ business could cause us to revise tiurage of expected losses and increase our allosvBoraloubtful accounts.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assetng-lived assets, including property and equipmare reviewed for possible impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Thgiegramount of a long-lived asset group is
not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the umdisted cash flows expected to result from the nseeaentual disposition of the asset group.
Our long-lived assets and liabilities are groupethe lowest level for which identifiable cash flewre largely independent of the cash flows o
other groups of assets and liabilities. Our assmifgs consist of geographical markets, which aeelewel below our reporting units. Our
judgment regarding the existence of impairmentdattirs is based on market and operational perfazenddetermining whether impairme
has occurred typically requires various estimatesassumptions, including determining which castvé are directly related to the potentially
impaired asset, the useful life over which castwdlavill occur, their amount, and the asset’s regidalue, if any. In turn, measurement of an
impairment loss requires a determination of falugawhich is based on the best information avéglab

We use internal cash flow estimates, quoted mamkets when available and independent appraissisppropriate, to determine fair
value. We derive the required cash flow estimatas four historical experience and our internal bess plans and apply an appropriate
discount rate. These cash flow estimates are tieereimaining useful lives of the assets within eaahket. Forecasted housing starts for each
market are used to help estimate future revenusotitial trends are then used to project gross im@aemnd operating expenses based upon
various revenue levels. If these projected cashdlare less than the carrying amount, an impairiosstis recognized based on the fair value
of the asset group. Due to the uncertainties aatutivith these projections, actual results coiffdrdrom projected results, and further
impairment of long-lived assets could be recordedure non-cash impairment of long-lived assetsld/bave the effect of decreasing our
earnings or increasing our losses in such periotdwbuld not impact our current outstanding debigaitions or compliance with covenants
contained in the related debt agreements.

We recorded no significant asset impairment chairgesntinuing operations in 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the amount we tpaicquire businesses over the estimated failevafl tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired, less litds assumed. At December 31, 2014, our goodailance was $139.8 million, representing
24.0% of our total assets.

We test goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarbf each year or at any other time when impaitrivaficators exist by comparing t
estimated implied value of a reporting units’ godbte its book value. Examples of such indicattirat could cause us to test goodwill for
impairment between annual tests include a sigmifichange in the business climate, unexpected ciitiopeor a significant deterioration in
market share. We may also consider market capitadiz relative to our net assets. Our industry
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experienced a significant and severe downturntiegan in mid-2006. As such, we have closely moaditdhe trends in economic factors and
their effects on operating results to determireniimpairment trigger was present that would waraareassessment of the recoverability of th
carrying amount of goodwill prior to the requirathaial impairment test and performed interim impaintrtests when warranted. Housing
starts are a significant sales driver for us. dfréhis a significant decline or an expected dedtirteousing starts, this could adversely affect our
expectations for a reporting unit and the valuthaf reporting unit. We did not have any goodwilpiairments in continuing operations in
2014, 2013 or 2012.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmemtdlves the determination of fair value of our reppg units. Our reporting units:
Atlantic, Raleigh, Southeast, Florida, Dallas andtf Texas represent financially discrete, seltasngg components. We evaluate goodwiill
for impairment using a two-step process. The §itep is to identify potential impairment by comparthe fair value of a reporting unit to the
book value, including goodwill. If the fair valud @ reporting unit exceeds the book value, goodwitiot impaired. If the book value exceeds
the fair value, the second step of the processrf®pned to measure the amount of impairment.dp sto, the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit is allocated to all other assets ladallities of that reporting unit based on thegspective fair values. The excess of the fairevalu
of the reporting unit over the amount allocatedg@ssets and liabilities is the implied fair valf goodwill. Goodwill impairment is measured
as the excess of the carrying value over its indpfiéér value. The fair value of a reporting unieistimated based upon the projected discounte
cash flow expected to be generated from the remptthit using a discounted cash flow methodologheYe available and appropriate,
comparative market multiples are used to corroleaitse results of the discounted cash flow.

We developed a range of fair values for our repgrtinits using a five-year discounted cash flowhodblogy. Inherent in such fair
value determinations are estimates relating taréutash flows, including revenue growth, gross rimsrgperating expenses and long-term
growth rates, and our interpretation of currentnecoic indicators and market conditions and thepait on our strategic plans and operations
Due to the uncertainties associated with such eséis) interpretations and assumptions, actualtsesoilild differ from projected results, and
further impairment of goodwill could be recorded.

Significant information and assumptions utilizecestimating future cash flows for our reportingtarincludes publicly available
industry information on projected single-family ling starts and lumber commodity prices which @eduo project revenue. Projected gross
margins and operating expenses reflect currentdoesd levels and cost structure and are flexedturé years based upon historical trends at
various revenue levels. Long-term growth was bagexh terminal value earnings before interest, tadtegreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) multiples of 5.5x for all reporting unite reflect the relevant expected acquisition prieeiscount rate of 11.3% was used for all
reporting units and is intended to reflect the waegg average cost of capital for a potential mapketicipant and includes all risks of owner:
and the associated risks of realizing the streaprajécted future cash flows. Decreasing the l@rgitgrowth to an EBITDA multiple of 4.5x,
or increasing the discount rate by 1.0% to 12.3%yld/not have changed the results of our impairnesiing.

At December 31, 2014, the fair values of each eporting units were substantially in excess ofrthespective carrying values. The
excess (or “cushion”) of the implied fair valuegzfodwill over the carrying value of goodwill foraaof our six reporting units which have
remaining goodwill balances ranged from $33.1 wrillto $277.9 million. The cushion for one of oupaeing units at December 31, 2014, \
$33.1 million. Nonetheless, moderate deviationmffrojected cash flows for this reporting unit @brasult in future goodwill impairment.
This reporting unit had a goodwill balance of $1thillion at December 31, 2014. Factors that cowdatively impact the estimated fair value
of our reporting units and potentially trigger adhial impairment include, but are not limited tmexpected competition, lower than expected
housing starts, an increase in market participaigimed average cost of capital, increases in mahtarlabor cost, and significant declines in
our market capitalization. Future non-cash impairhtd goodwill would have the effect of decreasing earnings or increasing our losses in
such period, but would not impact our current artding debt obligations or compliance with coversamintained in the related debt
agreements.

Deferred Income Taxe¥/e evaluate our deferred tax assets on a qualiasig to determine whether a valuation allowancedsired.
In accordance with thkncome Taxetopic of the Accounting Standards Codification (tifecation”) we assess whether it is more likelgith
not that some or all of our deferred tax assetsnail be realized. Significant judgment is requine@stimating valuation allowances for
deferred tax assets. The realization of a defdeedsset ultimately depends on the existenceffifigmt taxable income in the applicable
carryback or carryforward periods. We consider regtfrequency, and severity of current and cumdaltbsses, among other matters, the
reversal of existing deferred tax liabilities, bistal and forecasted taxable income, and tax janstrategies in our assessment. Changes in
our estimates of future taxable income and taxmtanstrategies will affect our estimate of thelizdion of the tax benefits of these tax
carryforwards.

Poor housing market conditions have contributesutocumulative loss position for the past seveearg. While we generated income in
2014, we still have a cumulative loss for the thyear period ending December 31, 2014. We belieise &s well as uncertainty around the
extent and timing of the housing market recovespresents significant negative evidence in consigevhether our deferred tax assets are
realizable. Further, we do not believe that relyamgprojections of future taxable income to supplmetrecovery of deferred tax assets is
sufficient. Based on an evaluation of positive ardative evidence, we concluded that
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the negative evidence regarding our ability toireabur deferred tax assets outweighed the postidence as of December 31, 2014.

In 2014, we reduced our valuation allowance by $illon due to the utilization of net operatingskes against federal and state taxabl
income. In 2013, we recorded a valuation allowasfcgpproximately $15.3 million related to our doming operations, which is exclusive of
$0.6 million related primarily to reversals of uneén tax positions due to statute expirations #ffgcted our net operating loss carryforward
and valuation allowance. In 2012, we recorded aatan allowance of approximately $19.6 millionateld to our continuing operations.

Without continued improvement in housing activitye could be required to establish additional vatuaallowances. However, we had
positive earnings before taxes in 2014. To thergxte continue to generate sufficient taxable ineamthe same jurisdictions in the future to
utilize the tax benefits of the related net defeiax assets, we may reverse some or all of theatiah allowance. We currently estimate that
we will likely transition into a three year cumulat income position on a rolling three year per@dome time during the year ending
December 2015. However, there continues to be taingr around housing market projections. Simplgnow out of a cumulative loss is not
viewed as a bright line and may not be consideufficient positive evidence to reverse some opathe valuation allowance if there are other
offsetting negative factors. In upcoming quarters,will closely monitor the positive and negatiwedence surrounding our ability to realize
our deferred tax assets.

We base our estimate of deferred tax assets dbititiess on current tax laws and rates. In certases, we also base our estimate on
business plan forecasts and other expectationd &ltave outcomes. Changes in existing tax lawsates could affect our actual tax results,
and future business results may affect the amdumtirodeferred tax liabilities or the valuationair deferred tax assets over time. Due to
uncertainties in the estimation process, partitylhaith respect to changes in facts and circumstaric future reporting periods, as well as the
residential homebuilding industry’s cyclicality asdnsitivity to changes in economic conditionss fpossible that actual results could differ
from the estimates used in previous analyses.

Accounting for deferred taxes is based upon estimat future results. Differences between the gated and actual outcomes of these
future results could have a material impact onamnsolidated results of operations or financialitpms.

Insurance We are insured for general liability, auto lialyiland workers’ compensation exposures, subjectductible amounts. The
expected liability for unpaid claims, including imced but not reported losses, is determined usia@ssistance of a third-party actuary and is
reflected on our balance sheet as an accruedtyafiihe amount recoverable from our insurance jl@vis reflected as an other asset. Our
accounting policy includes an internal evaluatiod adjustment of our reserve for all insured lossea quarterly basis. At least on an annual
basis, we engage an external actuarial professiorniatlependently assess and estimate the totdlityeoutstanding, which is compared to the
actual reserve balance at that time and adjustaatdiagly.

Stock-Based Compensati@alculating stock-based compensation expense esthie input of subjective assumptions. We deteymin
the fair value of each option grant using the Bi&ckoles option-pricing model with assumptions dasémarily on historical data. Specific
inputs to the model include: the expected lifehaf $tock-based awards, stock price volatility, divid yield and risk-free rate.

The expected life represents the period of timeoffiteons are expected to be outstanding. We haae the simplified method for
determining the expected life assumption due tdtdidhhistorical exercise experience on our stodioog. The expected volatility is based on
the historical volatility of our common stock owbe most recent period equal to the expected fita@option. The expected dividend yield is
based on our history of not paying regular divideimdthe past and our current intention to not yggplar dividends in the foreseeable future.
The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treaswalg urve in effect at the time of grant and h&sran equal to the expected life of the options.
We record expense for the unvested portion of gramér the requisite service (i.e., vesting) peviod

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In January 2015 the FASB issued an update to tistirex guidance under tHacome Statememopic of the Codification. This update
eliminates the concept of extraordinary items dredrequirement to assess whether an event or ttésrsés both unusual in nature and
infrequent in occurrence and to separately premeysuch items on the statement of operations iafteme from continuing operations. Under
the updated guidance such items will either begmesl as a separate component of income from econgroperations or disclosed in the note:
to the financial statements. This guidance is @&ffedor interim and annual periods beginning afbecember 15, 2015. Early adoption is
permitted provided that the guidance is appliedhftbe beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, ot required. The guidance allows either
prospective or retrospective methods of adoptioa.dd not currently expect that the adoption of tiudate will have an impact on our
financial statements.
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In November 2014 the FASB issued an update toxistieg guidance under tHgusiness Combinationspic of the Codification. This
update allows, but does not require, an acquiréityegn apply pushdown accounting in its stand-aléinancial statements upon occurrence of
an event in which an acquirer obtains control efdlquired entity. The decision to apply pushdoegoanting may be made independently for
each change in control event. This new guidanceeffastive on November 18, 2014 and can be appgdspectively. This updated guidai
did not have an impact on our financial statemens.will assess the need to apply pushdown acamyiftr future acquisitions on an
individual basis, when necessary.

In August 2014, the FASB issued an update to tliwtieg guidance under theresentation of Financial Statememtgic of the
Codification. This update requires management tiopa interim and annual assessments on whetheg dre conditions or events that raise
substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to thioue as a going concern within one year of the dlaé financial statements are issued and to
provide related disclosures, if required. This reudance is effective for the annual period endifigr December 15, 2016, and for annual an
interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is pétaai, but not required. We are currently evaluatimgimpact of this guidance on our financial
statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to the iegiguidance under tHeevenue Recognitidapic of the Codification which is a
comprehensive new revenue recognition model reguaicompany to recognize revenue to depict timsfea of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xeleange for those goods or services. This
new guidance is effective for annual reporting @e&sibeginning after December 15, 2016. Accordinglywill adopt this guidance beginning
January 1, 2017. Early adoption of this guidasasot permitted. This guidance allows either fettospective or modified retrospective
methods of adoption. We are currently evaluatirgitipact of this guidance on our financial statetsien

In April 2014, the FASB issued an update to thetinxg guidance under tliresentation of Financial StatememtsdProperty, Plant,
and Equipmentopics of the Codification. This update changesdfiteria for determining which disposals can besgnted as discontinued
operations and modifies related disclosure requeérgm Under the previous guidance any componean eftity that was a reportable segm
an operating segment, a reporting unit, a subsidearan asset group was eligible for discontinapdrations presentation. The revised
guidance only allows disposals of components dfyetitat represent a strategic shift that has, iirhave, a major effect on an entity’s
operations and financial results to be presenteddiscontinued operation. This update is effediivdiscal years, and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2014. Early adoptopermitted, but not required. The guidance apjpliespectively to new disposals and new
classifications of disposal groups as held for aftler the effective date. We do not expect thatatioption of this update will have an impact
on our financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Maat Risk

We may experience changes in interest expenser# there changes in our debt. Changes in marleesttrates could also increase
these risks. Our 2021 Notes bear interest at a fiate, therefore, our interest expense relat¢idet@021 Notes would not be affected by an
increase in market interest rates. Borrowings uttte2013 facility bear interest at either a bade or eurodollar rate, plus, in each case, an
applicable margin. At December 31, 2014, a 1.0%eiase in interest rates would result in approxitgai®.3 million in additional interest
expense annually as we had $30.0 million in outtanborrowings under the 2013 facility. The 20a8ility also assesses variable
commitment and outstanding letter of credit feeseleon quarterly average loan utilization.

Our share price and, to a lesser extent, the Reatarolatility of our common stock are the primdagtors in the changes to our fair va
measurements related to our outstanding warratitettfer inputs being equal, an increase or deer@asur share price or volatility would
result in an increase or decrease in the fair vafurir warrants and an increase or decreaseéneisitexpense. Based on the warrants
outstanding and the historical volatility of oumemon stock as of December 31, 2014, a 10% changerishare price would result in
approximately a $0.5 million change in our interegbense. Based on the warrants outstanding arshate price as of December 31, 2014, ¢
10% change in the historical volatility of our commstock would result in approximately a $0.1 roillichange in our interest expense.

We purchase certain materials, including lumbedpots, which are then sold to customers as welkas as direct production inputs for
our manufactured products that we deliver. Shartitehanges in the cost of these materials andetated in-bound freight costs, some of
which are subject to significant fluctuations, acenetimes, but not always, passed on to our custo®er delayed ability to pass on material
price increases to our customers can adverselgtafte operating income.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Build&rstSource, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenfenpei@ations and comprehensive
income (loss), stockholders’ equity and cash flpnesent fairly, in all material respects, the ficiahposition of Builders FirstSource, Inc. and
its subsidiaries at December 31, 2014 and DeceBhe2013, and the results of their operations et tash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2014 in conformitl accounting principles generally acceptechim United States of America. Also in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mateeapects, effective internal control over finalceporting as of December 31, 2014, base
on criteria established in Internal Control - Intgd Framework (2013) issued by the CommitteepohSoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's managementpensgle for these financial statements, for maimg effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in Management's Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Ourpessibility is to express opinions on these finahstatements and on the Company's interne
control over financial reporting based on our iméégd audits. We conducted our audits in accomlanth the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Statd¥)ose standards require that we plan and perfioenaudits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeat$e® of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audfithe financial statements included examinimgadest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfisam estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statementgméstion. Our audit of internal control over filcéal reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financiglaging, assessing the risk that a material weakegwsts, and testing and evaluating the de
and operating effectiveness of internal controklasn the assessed risk. Our audits also inclpdgdrming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audits provide a reasonable basisupppinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over fittgal reporting includes those policies and procedithat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financatkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeionrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(idiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thentiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2015
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Sales
Cost of sale:

Gross margir
Selling, general and administrative exper
Asset impairment
Facility closure cost

Income (loss) from operatiol
Interest expense, n

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:

Income tax expens
Income (loss) from continuing operatic

Loss from discontinued operations (net of incomxeetgpense of $0 in 2014, 2013 anc

2012)

Net income (loss

Comprehensive income (los

Basic net income (loss) per sha
Income (loss) from continuing operatis
Loss from discontinued operatic
Net income (los:

Diluted net income (loss) per shal
Income (loss) from continuing operatis
Loss from discontinued operatic
Net income (los:

Weighted average common shares outstanc
Basic

Diluted

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands, except per share amountt

$ 160409 $ 148989 $ 1,070,67
1,247,09: 1,169,97: 856,11(
356,99° 319,92( 214,561
306,50t 271,88t 222,26

— — 48

471 @ 95¢

50,01¢ 48,04 (8,709
30,34¢ 89,63¢ 45,13
19,66¢ (41,59) (53,847

1,111 76¢ 577

18,55¢ (42,36%) (54,419

(408) (326) (2,437)

$ 18,15( $ (42,69) $ (56,85¢)
$ 18,15( $ (42,69) $ (56,85¢)

$ 0.1¢ $ (0.42) $ (0.57)

(0.00) (0.00) (0.09)

$ 0.1¢ $ 0.49) $ (0.60)

$ 0.1 $ (0.42) $ (0.57)

(0.00) (0.00) (0.09)

$ 0.1 $ 0.49) $ (0.60)
98,05( 96,44¢ 95,46:
100,52: 96,44¢ 95,46:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands, except per share amount

ASSETS

Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 17,77 $ 54,69¢
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $3,153%%605 for 2014 and 2013, respectiv 148,35 143,03t
Inventories 138,15¢ 123,63t
Other current asse 27,25¢ 9,79:
Total current asse 331,54( 331,16:
Property, plant and equipment, | 75,67¢ 49,39
Goodwill 139,77: 111,19:
Intangible assets, n 17,22¢ 827
Other assets, n 18,84« 23,26¢
Total asset $ 583,06! $ 515,83¢

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 75,86¢ $ 81,04¢
Accrued liabilities 66,22¢ 45,31(
Current maturities of lor-term debt 30,07 67
Total current liabilities 172,16 126,42:

Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 353,83( 353,90
Deferred income taxe 6,441 6,67(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 10,42; 13,47
Total liabilities 542,86! 500,47:

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000 sharéered; zero shares issued and outstanding al
December 31, 2014 and 20 — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares apglalp 98,226 and 97,905 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respéc 982 973
Additional paic-in capital 380,09: 373,41
Accumulated defici (340,87 (359,02)

Total stockholder equity 40,20( 15,36¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 583,06! $ 515,83¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $ 18,15( $ (42,69) $ (56,85¢)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,51¢ 9,30t 11,12(
Asset impairment — — 48
Amortization and writ-off of deferred loan cos’ 2,43: 4,067 744
Amortization and writ-off of debt discoun — 7,794 1,42t
Fair value adjustment of stock warra (45€) 1,50z 4,99;
Deferred income taxe 524 917 45¢
Bad debt expens (274) 90C 751
Net nor-cash expense (income) from discontinued opera — (195 1,06¢
Stock compensation exper 6,157 4,24¢ 3,62¢
Net gain on sales of assi (119 (2849) (39
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable! 4,50z (26,53) (41,727
Inventories (9,109 (14,637 (31,919
Other current asse (8,18)) a77) (710
Other assets and liabiliti¢ (660) (1,349 (195
Accounts payabl (5,17¢) 1,64¢ 30,77¢
Accrued liabilities 10,17 7,904 9,581
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 27,49: (47,576) (66,85()
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (25,716 (15,05) (120,399
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 213 2,592 23C
Cash used for acquisitions, 1 (69,337 — —
Decrease in restricted ca — 13,03( 1,13¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (94,840) 571 (9,039)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under revolving credit facili 30,00( 30,00( —
Payments under revolving credit facil — (30,000 —
Proceeds from issuance of long term c — 350,00 62,07¢
Payments of lor-term debt and other loa (67) (364,779 (54)
Deferred loan cost (39 (15,639 (1,639
Payment of recapitalization cot — (37 —
Exercise of stock optior 1,831 1,75¢ 59¢€
Repurchase of common stc (1,306 (1,036 (49€)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 30,42 (29,73)) 60,48:
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (36,927 (76,736) (15,409
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 54,69¢ 131,43. 146,83:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 17,77 $ 54,69¢ $ 131,43.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

Balance at December 31, 20
Issuance of restricted stock, net of forfeitt
Vesting of restricted stoc
Stock compensation exper
Exercise of stock optior
Repurchase of common stc

Comprehensive los

Net loss
Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 20
Issuance of restricted stock, net of forfeitt
Vesting of restricted stoc
Stock Compensation Expen
Exercise of stock optior
Exercise of stock warran
Repurchase of common stc
Comprehensive los

Net loss
Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 20
Vesting of restricted stoc
Stock compensation exper
Exercise of stock optior
Repurchase of common stc
Comprehensive los

Net income
Total comprehensive incon

Balance at December 31, 20

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

Common Stock

Additional Paid

in

Capital

EQUITY

Accumulated Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Total

| Snl ~
B~

(In thousands)

359,75( $ (259,470 $

(7
3,62¢
594
(494)

(56,85¢)

$ 101,22

3,62¢
59¢€
(496

(56,85¢)
(56,85¢)

©
g

Rool ~l

—~
~

363,47

(7
4,24¢
1,74¢
4,99¢

(1,039

(316,33))

(42,697

48,09¢

4,24¢
1,75¢
5,00(
(1,036)

(42,69:)
(42,69.)

373,411
(6)
6,157
1,82¢
(1,309

(359,02}

18,15(

15,36¢

6,157
1,831
(1,306)

18,15(
18,15(

380,09. $ (340,87) $

$ 40,20(




BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Business

Builders FirstSource, Inc., a Delaware corporafmed in 1998, is a leading supplier and manufactaf structural and related
building products for residential new constructinrihe United States. We serve 34 markets in @statrincipally in the southern and eastern
United States. We have 56 distribution centers&nchanufacturing facilities, many of which are lzhon the same premises as our
distribution centers. We serve a broad customes basging from production homebuilders to smaltaoshomebuilders.

In this annual report, references to the “compatyg,” “our,” “ours” or “us” refer to Builders FitSource, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or the cootberwise requires.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements presentebiglts of operations, financial position, and démhs of Builders FirstSource, Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant im@mpany transactions have been eliminated in dioladion.

Accounting Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting principléSAAP”) in the United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuingtions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effiteancial statements, and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could materially differ frahmose estimates.

Estimates are used when accounting for items ssicev@nue, vendor rebates, allowance for retuisspdnts and doubtful accounts,
employee compensation programs, depreciation amdtaation periods, income taxes, inventory valuesyrance programs, goodwill, other
intangible assets and long-lived assets.

Sales Recognitiol

We recognize sales of building products upon defite the customer. For contracts with service elets, sales are generally recogn
on the completed contract method as these con@eetssually completed within 30 days. Contractzoglude all direct material and labor,
equipment costs and those indirect costs relatedrtract performance. Provisions for estimateddeon uncompleted contracts are
recognized in the period in which such losses aterthined. Prepayments for materials or servicesleferred until such materials have been
delivered or services have been provided. All sedesgnized are net of allowances for discountsemtichated returns, based on historical
experience. We present all sales tax on a net lmasig consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on mahdlihighly liquid investments with an originaktarity date of three months or less.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash consists of amounts used to callate outstanding letters of credit and other ptéé casualty insurance obligations i
is classified as a current or non-current asseatdas its designated purpose.

Financial Instruments

We use financial instruments in the normal couffdeusiness as a tool to manage our assets antitighiWwe do not hold or issue
financial instruments for trading purposes.

We issued detachable warrants in 2011, which asesuared at fair value on a recurring basis as disclis) Note 9.
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Accounts Receivabl

We extend credit to qualified professional hometers and contractors, in many cases on a non-edleted basis. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on management’s assetsiitbe amount which may become uncollectibléhimfuture and is estimated using
specific review of problem accounts, overall pditfguality, current economic conditions that méfget the borrower’s ability to pay, and
historical experience. Accounts receivable aretemioff when deemed uncollectible. Other receivalblensist primarily of vendor rebates
receivable.

Accounts receivable consisted of the following acBmber 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Trade receivable: $ 142,20: $ 136,35¢

Other 9,301 10,28:

Accounts receivable 151,50! 146,64:

Less: allowance for returns and doubtful accot 3,15:¢ 3,60¢

Accounts receivable, ne $ 148,35: $ 143,03¢

The following table shows the changes in our allegeafor doubtful accounts:
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Balance at January : $ 241 % 1,86¢ $ 1,441
Additions charged to expens (274 90C 751
Deductions (writ-offs, net of recoveries (40%) (35)) (32f)
Balance at December 3. $ 1,73¢  $ 2,417 $ 1,864

We also establish reserves for credit memos anomes returns. The reserve balance was $1.4 miliar2 million, and $1.0 million at
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.atkivity in this reserve was not significant &arch year presented.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of materials purséd for resale, including lumber, sheet goods, airs] doors and millwork, as well as
certain manufactured products and are stated dbwer of cost or market. Cost is determined ushrgweighted average method, the use of
which approximates the first-in, first-out meth&dde accrue for shrinkage based on the actual histioshrinkage results of our most recent
physical inventories adjusted, if necessary, forant economic conditions. These estimates are aoedpwith actual results as physical
inventory counts are taken and reconciled to theig# ledger.

During the year, we monitor our inventory levelsrbgrket and record provisions for excess invensdoesed on slower moving
inventory. We define potential excess inventoryh@samount of inventory on hand in excess of tk&hical usage, excluding special order
items purchased in the last three months. We thply @ur judgment as to forecasted demand and ddletors, including liquidation value, to
determine the required adjustments to net reakzaalue. Our inventories are generally not susbkpto technological obsolescence.

Our arrangements with vendors provide for rebatesspecified amount of consideration, payable wtentain measures, generally
related to a stipulated level of purchases, haes laehieved. We account for estimated rebateseduation of the prices of the vendor’'s
inventory until the product is sold, at which timgch rebates reduce cost of sales in the accomppoghsolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss. Throughout the year wmatdithe amount of the rebates based upon thetexidewel of purchases. We continually
revise these estimates based on actual purchasds.lev

Shipping and Handling Cost

Handling costs incurred in manufacturing activiee included in cost of sales. All other shippamgl handling costs are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses iratt®empanying consolidated statements of operatindsomprehensive income (loss) and
totaled $79.7 million, $71.1 million and $58.5 riwh in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes utilizing the liabilibethod described in tHecome Taxewopic of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards CodificatiorC@dification”). Deferred income taxes are recorttedeflect consequences on future
years of differences between the tax basis of aisset liabilities and their financial reporting amts at each ye-end based on enacted tax
laws and statutory tax rates applicable to theoglsrin which differences are expected to affechlbéexearnings. We record a valuation
allowance to reduce deferred tax assets if it isentikely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized.

Warranty Expense

We have warranty obligations with respect to moatufactured products; however, the liability foe tharranty obligations is not
significant as a result of third-party inspectiodacceptance processes.

Deferred Loan Costs and Debt Discou

Loan costs are capitalized upon the issuance gflerm debt and amortized over the life of theteglalebt. Loan costs incurred are
amortized using either the straight-line methothereffective interest method. Debt discount is dined over the life of the related debt using
the effective interest method. Amortization of dedd loan costs and the debt discount are inclim@derest expense. Upon changes to our
debt structure, we evaluate debt issuance cosisciordance with thBebttopic of the Codification. We adjust debt issuaoests as necessary
based on the results of this evaluation, as digclissNote 9.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atazabstepreciated using the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the
assets. The estimated lives of the various classassets are as follows:

Buildings and improvemen 20 to 40 year

Machinery and equipme! 3to 10 year:

Furniture and fixture 3to 5 year:

Leasehold improvemen The shorter of the estimated useful life or theaimmg lease terr

Major additions and improvements are capitalizeldijevmaintenance and repairs that do not extendgskéul life of the property are
charged to expense as incurred. Gains or lossesdigpositions of property, plant and equipmentraoerded in the period incurred. We also
capitalize certain costs of computer software dmyadl or obtained for internal use, including insgrerovided that those costs are not researc
and development, and certain other criteria are met

We periodically evaluate the commercial and stiategeration of the land, related buildings andriowements of our facilities. In
connection with these evaluations, some facilitiesyy be consolidated, and others may be sold oededdet gains or losses related to the sale
of real estate and equipment are recorded asgaljeneral and administrative expenses.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, other than gdbder impairment when events or changes in anstances indicate, in our
judgment, that the carrying value of such assetsmoéibe recoverable. The determination of whetinarot impairment exists is based on
estimate of undiscounted future cash flows befoterést attributable to the assets as compardg:toet carrying value of the assets. If
impairment is indicated, the amount of the impaintmecognized is determined by estimating thevalue of the assets based on estimated
discounted future cash flows and recording a pionifor loss if the carrying value is greater tlemtimated fair value. The net carrying valu
assets identified to be disposed of in the futsireoimpared to their estimated fair value, usuaiyquoted market price obtained from an
independent third-party less the cost to sell g@iednine if impairment exists. Until the assetsdisposed of, an estimate of the fair value is
reassessed when related events or circumstancegech@sset impairment charges are presented ioatheolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss) for the respeytiags.

43




Insurance

We have established insurance programs to coviiénsurable risks consisting primarily of phyaifoss to property, business
interruptions resulting from such loss, workersinpensation, employee healthcare, and comprehegsiveral and auto liability. Third party
insurance coverage is obtained for exposures g@determined deductibles as well as for thoses risguired to be insured by law or
contract. Provisions for losses are developed fralations that rely upon our past claims expegemdich considers both the frequency and
settlement of claims. We discount our workers’ cemgation liability based upon estimated future paynstreams at our risk-free rate.

Net Loss per Common Shau

Net loss per common share, or earnings per sheRS"), is calculated in accordance with Eernings per Sharpic of the
Cadification which requires the presentation ofibasd diluted EPS. Basic EPS is computed usingvitighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EP®mputed using the weighted average number ofrmamnshares outstanding during the
period, plus the dilutive effect of potential conmghares.

The table below presents a reconciliation of weidhdverage common shares used in the calculatibasi¢ and diluted EPS for the
years ended December !

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands)
Weighted average shares for basic E 98,05( 96,44¢ 95,46:
Dilutive effect of options 2,472 — —
Weighted average shares for diluted E 100,52. 96,44¢ 95,46!

Our restricted stock shares include rights to rexdividends that are not subject to the risk offiture even if the underlying restricted
stock shares on which the dividends were paid doest. In accordance with tiarnings Per Shartopic of the Codification, unvested share-
based payment awards that contain non-forfeitaghgs to dividends are deemed participating seiesrdnd should be considered in the
calculation of basic EPS. Since the restrictedksstiares do not include an obligation to sharessés, they will be included in our basic EPS
calculation in periods of net income and excludedfour basic EPS calculation in periods of nes.|éscordingly, there were 27,000
restricted stock shares included in our basic E#&utation for 2014 as we generated net incomeréelvere 610,000 and 1,229,000 restricted
stock shares excluded from the computation of HaBIS in 2013, and 2012, respectively, because wergeed a net loss.

For the purpose of computing diluted EPS, weiglateetage shares outstanding have been adjustedrfonen shares underlying
6,246,000 options, 700,000 warrants, and 1,855:88@icted stock units (“RSUs”") for 2014. In adaitj $0.5 million of income due to fair
value adjustments related to the warrants was dedlifrom net income in the computation of dilutd®S=or 2014. Options to purchase
4,933,000, and 5,514,000 shares of common stock marincluded in the computations of diluted ER2013, and 2012, respectively,
because their effect was anti-dilutive. Warrantpuechase 700,000 and 1,600,000 shares of comraok wsere not included in the
computations of diluted EPS in 2013 and 2012 bexthesr effect was anti-dilutive.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Intangibles subject to amortizatic

We recognize an acquired intangible asset apart §oodwill whenever the intangible asset arisesifoontractual or other legal rights,
or whenever it can be separated or divided fromattwaiired entity and sold, transferred, licensented, or exchanged, either individually or in
combination with a related contract, asset or lighimpairment losses are recognized if the cagyalue of an intangible asset subject to
amortization is not recoverable from expected fizash flows and its carrying amount exceeds iiated fair value.

Goodwill

We recognize goodwill as the excess cost of aniesjentity over the net amount assigned to assefsired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basid between annual tests whenever impairmendisated. This annual test takes place a
of December 31 each year. Impairment losses aognézed whenever the implied fair value of goodislless than its carrying value.
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Stoclk-based Compensation
We have four stock-based employee compensatios plarich are described more fully in Note 10. Waissnew common stock shares
upon exercises of stock options, grants of resulistock, and vesting of RSUs.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidoiy model with the following
weighted average assumptions for the year endedrblser 31:

2014 2012
Expected life 5.8 years 6.0 year:
Expected volatility 92.1% 94.4%
Expected dividend yielc 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free rate 1.83% 1.18%

The expected life represents the period of timeoffiteons are expected to be outstanding. We usedithplified method for determining
the expected life assumption due to limited his@lrexercise experience on our stock options. Kpeceed volatility is based on the historical
volatility of our common stock over the most recpatiod equal to the expected life of the optione Expected dividend yield is based on our
history of not paying regular dividends in the pasdtl our current intention to not pay regular dévids in the foreseeable future. The risk-free
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfeceat the time of grant and has a term equ#iéoexpected life of the options. We did not
grant any stock option awards in 2013.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

In January 2015 the FASB issued an update to tistirx guidance under tHacome Statememdpic of the Codification. This update
eliminates the concept of extraordinary items dredrequirement to assess whether an event or ttéorsés both unusual in nature and
infrequent in occurrence and to separately premeysuch items on the statement of operations iafteme from continuing operations. Under
the updated guidance such items will either begmesl as a separate component of income from econgroperations or disclosed in the note:
to the financial statements. This guidance is @&ffedor interim and annual periods beginning afbecember 15, 2015. Early adoption is
permitted provided that the guidance is appliedhftbe beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, ot required. The guidance allows either
prospective or retrospective methods of adoptioa.dd not currently expect that the adoption of tiudate will have an impact on our
financial statements.

In November 2014 the FASB issued an update tosttstieg guidance under tHeusiness Combinatioriepic of the Codification. This
update allows, but does not require, an acquirdéitydn apply pushdown accounting in its stand-aléinancial statements upon occurrence of
an event in which an acquirer obtains control efdlequired entity. The decision to apply pushdoegoanting may be made independently fo
each change in control event. This new guidanceeffastive on November 18, 2014 and can be appégdspectively. This updated guidai
did not have an impact on our financial statemams.will assess the need to apply pushdown acamyifvr future acquisitions on an
individual basis, when necessary.

In August 2014, the FASB issued an update to thigtieg guidance under theresentation of Financial Statememtgic of the
Cadification. This update requires management tiopa interim and annual assessments on whetheg Hre conditions or events that raise
substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to tiene as a going concern within one year of the dla¢ financial statements are issued and to
provide related disclosures, if required. This reudance is effective for the annual period endifigr December 15, 2016, and for annual an
interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is pétaai, but not required. We are currently evaluatimgimpact of this guidance on our financial
statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to the iegigiuidance under tHeevenue Recognitidopic of the Codification which is a
comprehensive new revenue recognition model reguaicompany to recognize revenue to depict tmsfea of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xeleange for those goods or services. This
new guidance is effective for annual reporting @esibeginning after December 15, 2016. Accordingky will adopt this guidance beginning
January 1, 2017. Early adoption of this guidamsaeot permitted. This guidance allows either fettospective or modified retrospective
methods of adoption. We are currently evaluatirggitipact of this guidance on our financial statetsien
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In April 2014, the FASB issued an update to thestinxg guidance under tliresentation of Financial StatememtsdProperty, Plant,
and Equipmentopics of the Codification. This update changesdiiteria for determining which disposals can besgnted as discontinued
operations and modifies related disclosure requeérgm Under the previous guidance any componean eftity that was a reportable segm
an operating segment, a reporting unit, a subgidaaran asset group was eligible for discontinapédrations presentation. The revised
guidance only allows disposals of components dfyetitat represent a strategic shift that has, iirhave, a major effect on an entity’s
operations and financial results to be presenteddiscontinued operation. This update is effediivdiscal years, and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2014. Early adoptopermitted, but not required. The guidance apjpliespectively to new disposals and new
classifications of disposal groups as held for aftier the effective date. We do not expect thatatioption of this update will have an impact
on our financial statements.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ahangquity (net assets) of a business enterptisagla period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner ssuftconsists of net income (loss) and otherggaimd losses affecting stockholdergquity
that, under GAAP, are excluded from net income.N&@ no items of other comprehensive income (lassthie years ended December 31,
2014, 2013, and 2012.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥dthg at December 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Land $ 17,33¢ % 14,43
Buildings and improvement 64,77¢ 58,97
Machinery and equipmer 113,60¢ 100,10¢
Furniture and fixtures 18,93¢ 17,73¢
Construction in progres 13,34: 4,97¢
Property, plant and equipme 227,99¢ 196,23.
Less: accumulated depreciatis 152,31 146,84(
Property, plant and equipment, r $ 75,67¢ $ 49,39:

Depreciation expense was $8.5 million, $8.9 milleord $10.7 million, of which $2.5 million, $2.4 fioin and $3.1 million was included
in cost of sales, in 2014, 2013, and 2012, respsyti

4. Discontinued Operations

In the second quarter of 2009, we announced oentirib exit the entire Ohio market based upon sév¥actors, including the
unfavorable conditions that affected our industigl @ poor competitive position which preventedrosnfgenerating profitable results. We
completed our exit plan in the second quarter @2&nd have no further significant, continuing ilvement in these operations. The cessatiol
of operations in these markets was treated asmtisc@d operations as they had distinguishable flashand operations that have been
eliminated from our ongoing operations. As a reshl operating results of the Ohio market fore¢heent and prior periods have been
aggregated and reclassified as discontinued opagaiin the consolidated statements of operatiodssamprehensive income (loss) for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and :

We recognized $0.4 million, $0.4 million, and $in8lion of expense in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respebtj which was primarily related
to future minimum lease obligations on closed faes, and revisions to sub-rental income estimatbese amounts are included in loss from
discontinued operations in the accompanying codatdd statement of operations and comprehensivei@¢loss) for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

In December 2012, an Ohio facility met the critdaaheld for sale classification. As such, it waslassified from property, plant, and
equipment to other assets. We recorded a $1.lomilinpairment charge to adjust the value of thapprty to its fair value. This amount was
included in loss from discontinued operations ia éitcompanying consolidated statement of operaindsomprehensive income (loss) for
the year ended December 31, 2012. In April 2018, fdtility was sold and the resulting gain of appmately $0.2 million was included in Ic
from discontinued operations in the accompanyingsobdated statement of operations and comprehemstome (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2013.
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An analysis of our facility closure reserves redat our discontinued operations for the periodieceed is as follows:

2012 Additions Payments 2013 Additions Payments 2014
(In thousands)

Facility and other exit costs, net of estimated-laase
rental income $ 2611 $ 37 $ (867 $ 2,117 % 417 $ (772) $ 1,76

The facility and other exit cost reserves relatedur discontinued operations at December 31, 25r¢ $1.8 million, of which $1.0
million is recorded as other long-term liabiliti@the reserves are primarily related to future mimmlease payments on vacated facilities.

Our loss before income taxes attributable to oscahtinued operations were $0.4 million, $0.3 williand $2.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, resplgctive

5. Acquisitions

On June 30, 2014 the Company acquired certainsaardtthe operations of Slone Lumber Company,(18tone”) for $8.7 million in
cash (including certain adjustments). Based in HoysTexas, Slone is a full-line building materiaigplier. Slone’s product offerings include
lumber, engineered beams, interior and exterior dads, moulding, trim, and cabinets. Slone alfers installation services on exterior doc
shutters, and cabinets.

On July 31, 2014 the Company acquired certain assat the operations of West Orange Lumber Compaay(“West Orange”) for
$9.8 million in cash (including certain adjustm@nBased in Groveland, Florida, West Orange supplimmber, roof and floor trusses, custom
windows and doors, as well as installation serviteboth residential homebuilders and commer@atmctors in central Florida.

On August 6, 2014 the Company acquired certainsssa the operations of Truss Rite, LLC (“TrusgeRifor $14.6 million in cash
(including certain adjustments). Based in Sherriiamas Truss Rite primarily manufactures wood rawf loor trusses for large multi-family
and commercial projects throughout Texas and péu@klahoma. Truss Rite predominately serves d@eoand general contractors in the
multi-family residential housing sector.

On October 1, 2014 the Company acquired certaietassd the operations of Trim Tech of Austin, [titrim Tech”) for $19.4 million
in cash (including certain adjustments). Trim Techased in Hutto, Texas, which is approximateln8@s north of downtown Austin. Trim
Tech is a turn-key supplier of custom cabinetgriot and exterior doors, stair parts, and custahwoerk and molding.

On December 22, 2014 the Company acquired cersaiet®and the operations of Empire Truss, Ltd. @iEef) for $16.8 million in cas
(including certain adjustments). Empire is a Telkased manufacturer of custom designed roof trumse$loor trusses, and a distributor of
engineered wood products with its primary operatilmtated in Huntsville, Texas, approximately 6%esnorth of downtown Houston. Emp
also operates a manufacturing facility in Ferrisxds, which is 20 miles southeast of Dallas. Eewpiprimary focus is on multi-family and
light commercial customers.

These transactions were accounted for by the atiqnisnethod, and accordingly the results of ofgerst were included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements froeir ttespective acquisition dates. The purchase pvies allocated to the assets acquired
based on estimated fair values at the acquisitate, dvith the excess of purchase price over thmatid fair value of the net assets acquired
recorded as goodwill. The allocations shown intttide below are preliminary and are subject to stdjent. Pro forma results of operations ar
not presented as these acquisitions are not matedigidually or in the aggregate.

We incurred $0.6 million in acquisition related toduring the year ended December 31, 2014. Tteste mclude due diligence costs
and transaction costs to complete the acquisitimmd have been recognized in selling, general dndrastrative expense in the accompanying
condensed consolidated statements of operationsangrehensive income (loss) for the year endectidber 31, 2014.
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The following table summarizes the aggregate falues of the assets acquired and liabilities asduahthe acquisition dates for Slone,
West Orange, Truss Rite, Trim Tech, and Empirgh@usands):

Accounts Receivabl $ 9,54«
Inventory 5,417
Property, plant and equipme 8,58(
Other intangible assets (Note 17,46°
Other asset 34
Goodwill (Note 6) 28,58:
Current liabilities (28€)

Total net assets acquir $ 69,33’

6. Goodwill

The following table sets forth the changes in theying amount of goodwill for the years ended Deber 31, 2014 and 2013 (in
thousands):

2014 2013
Balance as of January

Goodwill $ 155,82¢ $ 155,82¢

Accumulated impairment loss (44,636 (44,636)

111,19 111,19

Acquisitions and other purchase price adjustm 28,58: —
Balance as of December :

Goodwill $ 184,41( $ 155,82¢

Accumulated impairment loss (44,636 (44,636)

$ 139,77: $ 111,19

In 2014 the change in the carrying amount of gotidsvattributable to our acquisitions of Slone, %®range, Truss Rite, Trim Tech,
and Empire. The amounts allocated to goodwill eesalt of these acquisitions is preliminary. Theare no changes to the carrying amount of
goodwill in 2013. The amount allocated to goodvslattributable to the assembled workforce of thguired companies as well as the
synergies expected to arise as a result of thapésitions. All of the goodwill recognized from geacquisitions is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes. The goodwill recognized from éhaequisitions will be amortized ratably over aygar period for tax purposes.

We closely monitor trends in economic factors drarteffects on operating results to determinanifrapairment trigger was present t
would warrant a reassessment of the recoverabilitiie carrying amount of goodwill prior to the tigd annual impairment test in accorda
with thelntangibles — Goodwill and Othéopic of the Codification.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmemtdlves the determination of fair value of our repg units. Inherent in such fair
value determinations are certain judgments anchastis relating to future cash flows, including mterpretation of current economic
indicators and market valuations and assumptionstatiur strategic plans with regard to our opereti®ue to the uncertainties associated
with such estimates, actual results could diffenfrsuch estimates resulting in further impairmeérgamdwill.

In performing our impairment analysis, we developgdnge of fair values for our reporting unitswgsa discounted cash flow
methodology. The discounted cash flow methodolaigitdishes fair value by estimating the presentievaff the projected future cash flows to
be generated from the reporting unit. The discoat® applied to the projected future cash flowartive at the present value is intended to
reflect all risks of ownership and the associatskirof realizing the stream of projected futursiciows. The discounted cash flow
methodology uses our projections of financial pemance for a five-year period. The most significasgumptions used in the discounted cast
flow methodology are the discount rate, the teriniadue and the expected future revenues, grosginsaand operating expenses, which vary
among reporting units. Significant assumptions usemlr financial projections include housing ssattmber commodity prices, and market
share gains.

We recorded no goodwill impairment charges in 2@D4,3, and 2012.
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7. Intangible Assets

The following table presents intangible assetsfd¥egember 31:

2014 2013
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(In thousands)

Customer relationship $ 18,42 $ (2,695 $ 3,33 $ (2,507)
Non-compete agreemer 392 (31) — —
Trade name 1,23¢ (95) — —
Total intangible asse $ 20,04¢ $ (2,820 $ 333 % (2,509)

In connection with the acquisitions of Slone, W@stnge, Truss Rite, Trim Tech, and Empire we resthidtangible assets of $17.5
million, which includes $1.2 million of trade nam&®.4 million of non-compete agreements and $ilgon of customer relationships. The
amounts allocated to intangible assets as a refkthiese acquisitions is preliminary. The weighdaedrage useful lives of the acquired asset
5.0 years for trade names and non-compete agregnaet 10.3 years for customer relationships.

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 20132@h8, we recorded amortization expense in relatidhe above-listed intangible
assets of $1.1 million, $0.4 million, and $0.4 ioifl, respectively. The following table presents éisémated amortization expense for these
intangible assets for the years ending Decemb¢in3housands):

2015 $ 2,281
2016 2,16:
2017 1,99t
2018 1,99t
2019 1,78%

8. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following ae&ember 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Accrued payroll and other employee related expe $ 18,97 $ 11,58¢
Accrued taxe:! 9,167 8,43¢
Selfinsurance reserve 10,38¢ 7,93¢
Accrued interes 2,32¢ 2,22
Facility closure reserve 1,64¢ 1,56¢
Casualty claims in excess of retained loss | 11,33t 2,08t
Deferred revenu 4,665 5,54(
Other 7,728 5,92
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 66,22f $ 45,31(
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9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at Decem®i.:

2014 2013
(In thousands)

2021 note: 350,00 350,00
2013 facility 30,00( —
Other lon¢-term debt* 3,90/ 3,971
383,90 353,97:

Less: current portion of lor-term debr 30,07 67
Total lon¢-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 353,83( & 353,90

* We completed construction on a new multi-purpfzsslity during 2006. Other long-term debt repmtsean unfunded lease obligation for
this facility. For accounting purposes, we are degtme owner. As a result, the building and thg{term lease obligation are included
on the consolidated balance sheet as a componéredfassets and other debt, respectiv

Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rate Nothse 201€

As of December 31, 2012, we had $139.7 millionggragate principal amount of Second Priority SeBiecured Floating Rate Notes
due 2016 (“2016 notes”) that matured on Februar20%6. Interest accrued on the 2016 notes at arg#mLIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor)
plus 10.0%. LIBOR was reset at the beginning oheparterly period. In May 2013, we repaid the $1B9.7 million in outstanding notes as
part of the 2013 refinancing transaction discudxeddw.

First-Lien Term Loan and Letter of Credit Facilitie

In December 2011, we completed a $160.0 milliostfien term loan (“term loan”) that included détable warrants that allow for the
purchase of up to 1.6 million shares of our commsimick at a price of $2.50 per share. These warresits exercisable immediately upon
issuance and expire in December 2018. The wargaeeament contains certain settlement adjustmetirfiesawhich preclude the warrants fr
being considered to be indexed to our stock. Sigadlif, it includes a “down-round” provision thaquires an adjustment to be made to the
exercise price and number of warrants upon the @omssuing additional common shares or convertibturities at a price that is less than
the exercise price of the warrants at that times adjustment would be required even if the issimemf the common shares or convertible
securities was at-market. As such, the outstandengants are considered to be derivative finaringttuments and are classified as liabilities.
As of December 31, 2014 there were 0.7 million aats outstanding.

At the same time, we entered into a $20.0 milliamd-alone letter of credit facility (“stand-alofaeility”). The term loan and the stand-
alone facility were both scheduled to mature ont&aper 30, 2015. The term loan, which was issu€¥ %, provided $119.6 million of net
proceeds after repaying the $20.0 million outstagdinder the existing senior secured revolvingitfadility, using $14.2 million to
collateralize letters of credit outstanding under hew stand-alone facility, and paying fees amkpges related to this transaction

In December of 2012, we amended our first-lien tkram to enhance our liquidity position to supdaoth current and anticipated
increases in sales volume. Terms of the amendmeluidied increasing the principal amount by $65.[iani reducing the minimum cash
requirement from $35.0 million to $15.0 million,didg a new $15.0 million letter of credit sub-fagil(“sub-facility”), and increasing the
minimum specified collateral value to $225.0 millicontingent upon maintaining certain levels ddliied cash. The additional term loan
amount, which was issued at 95.5%, provided $60If&mof net proceeds after paying fees and expsmslated to the transaction.

The term loan was collateralized by a first liensobstantially all of our assets, and was guardridgeall of our subsidiaries. Interest
accrued on the loan at 3-month LIBOR (subject 288@floor) plus 9.5%. The stand-alone facility indda a commitment fee of 0.5% on any
unused amount and assessed interest at a ra@6fo? any outstanding letters of credit. All lestef credit issued under the stand-alone
facility were collateralized by cash equal to 1068the face amount of the letters of credit. Thie-facility also included a commitment fee of
0.5% on any unused amount and assessed inteeeghtatof 3.0% on any outstanding letters of creditters of credit issued under the sub-
facility were not required to be cash collateralize

As of December 2012, we had outstanding letterseadit totaling $12.4 million under our stand-aldaeility that principally support
our self insurance programs. We collateralizedeHhetiers of credit with $13.0 million of restridteash. In January 2013, we finalized our
letter of credit sub-facility and at the same tittmansferred the $12.4 million of outstanding lettef credit from our standlone facility over tc
the new sub-facility. As such, we were able to &late the cash collateral requirement for our auding
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letters of credit, thus increasing our liquidity &y additional $13.0 million. We also amended thad-alone facility from $20.0 million down
to $10.0 million.

In May 2013, we repaid the full $225.0 million aatsding term loan as part of the 2013 refinanciagdaction discussed below. At the
same time, we terminated the term loan and lefteraalit sub-facility, as well as the amended stalwhe facility.

2013 Refinancing

In May 2013 we completed a private offering of $B6@illion in aggregate principal amount of 7.625&fior secured notes due 2021
(2021 notes”) at a price equal to 100% of thegefaalue. In conjunction with the offering, we atsttered into a new 5-year $175.0 million
senior secured revolving credit facility agreem@a013 facility”) provided by a syndicate of finaatinstitutions led by SunTrust Bank as
administrative agent.

We used the net proceeds from the offering of B&lhotes, together with cash on hand, to (i) ned$£39.7 million in aggregate
outstanding principal amount of our 2016 notesaatglus accrued and unpaid interest thereon teettiemption date, (ii) repay $225.0 million
in borrowings outstanding under our existing firets term loan plus a prepayment premium of appnately $39.5 million and accrued and
unpaid interest and (iii) pay the related commissjdees and expenses. The repayment of the 2@&6 aod the term loan was considered
an extinguishment. As such, we recognized a lo§gl8f4 million, which was recorded as interest esgen the second quarter of 2013. Of
$48.4 million loss, $39.5 million was due to thepsyment premium on the term loan, $6.8 million das to a write-off of unamortized debt
discount on the term loan and $2.1 million was tlue write-off of unamortized deferred loan cosidive 2016 notes and the term loan.

Upon the repayment of the outstanding borrowings@ayment of the prepayment premium and accruedest, we terminated the term
loan, which included the $15.0 million letter oédit sub-facility. The $12.7 million of outstanditegters of credit under the sub-facility at the
time were transferred to the 2013 facility. At #@mne time, we also terminated our $10.0 millioteletf credit stand-alone facility. There were
no letters of credit outstanding under the stawoth@facility at the time of termination.

In connection with the issuance of the 2021 notesemtering into the 2013 facility we incurred appmately $15.6 million of various
third-party fees and expenses. Of these costs2 $iillion were allocated to the 2021 notes and $dilllon were allocated to the 2013 facility.
These costs have been capitalized and will be @edrover the respective terms of the 2021 notdstas 2013 facility. The $0.9 million in
remaining unamortized deferred loan costs relaigtd sub-facility and stand-alone facility arerfgeamortized over the term of the 2013
facility.

Senior Secured Notes due 20

As of December 31, 2014, we have $350.0 milliorstautding in aggregate principal amount of 2021 s1that mature on June 1, 2021.
The 2021 notes were issued pursuant to an indertated as of May 29, 2013 (“Indenture”), by antieen us, certain of our subsidiaries, as
guarantors (“Guarantors”), and Wilmington TrusttiNaal Association, as trustee and notes collategaht (“Trustee”). Interest accrues on the
2021 notes at a rate of 7.625% per annum and shp@gemi-annually in arrears on June 1 and Deceinbkeach year.

The 2021 notes, subject to certain exceptionsgaaeanteed, jointly and severally, on a senior tbasis, by each of the Guarantors.
All obligations under the 2021 notes, and the guiaes of those obligations, will be secured by wutiglly all of our assets and the assets of
the Guarantors subject to certain exceptions amigied liens, including a first-priority securitgterest in such assets that constitute Notes
Collateral (as defined therein) and a second-piyi@@curity interest in such assets that constiige Collateral (as defined therein). An
intercreditor agreement (“ABL/Bond Intercreditor regment”), dated as of May 29, 2013, among usGilrantors, SunTrust Bank, as ABL
Collateral agent, and the Trustee, as Notes Caddladgent, will govern all arrangements in resédche priority of the security interest in the
ABL Collateral and the Notes Collateral.

“ABL Collateral” includes substantially all presgnbwned and after-acquired accounts receivablesritory, rights of an unpaid vendor
with respect to inventory, deposit accounts, inwestt property, cash and cash equivalents, andimsints and chattel paper and general
intangibles, books and records and documents cetatand proceeds of each of the foregoing. “N@ekateral” includes substantially all
collateral which is not ABL Collateral.

The Indenture contains certain restrictive covesiamhich, among other things, relate to the payrédtvidends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock, disoifsitasset sales and investments. At any timeangedeem some or all of the 2021 notes
at a redemption price equal to par plus a specffiethium that declines to par by 2019. In the ewe¢iat change of control, we may be requirec
to offer to purchase the 2021 notes at a purch@se @gqual to 101% of the principal, plus accrued anpaid interest.
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2013 Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

The 2013 facility provides for a $175.0 million mving credit line to be used for working capitaldageneral corporate purposes. The
available borrowing capacity, or borrowing basedesived primarily from a percentage of the Compswajigible receivables and inventory, as
defined by the agreement, subject to certain resefvhe 2013 facility is scheduled to mature on 28y2018. At December 31, 2014, the net
borrowing availability under the 2013 facility té¢d $129.4 million after being reduced by outstagdetters of credit of approximately
$15.6 million and $30.0 million of borrowings cunily outstanding. During the third quarter of 2044 borrowed $30.0 million under the
2013 facility at a weighted-average interest rdte.88%. During the second quarter of 2013 wedwed and repaid $30.0 million under the
2013 facility at a weighted-average interest rdité.0%.

Borrowings under the 2013 facility bear interesiar option, at either a base rate or eurododise, mplus, in each case, an applicable
margin. The applicable margin ranges from 0.75%.25% for base rate loans and 1.75% to 2.25% fardaliar rate loans, in each case base
on a measure of our availability under the revalevariable commitment fee, currently at a rat® &%, is charged on the unused amount of
the revolver based on quarterly average loan atitn. Letters of credit issued and outstandingeutide 2013 facility are assessed a fee at a
rate equal to the applicable eurodollar rate mamginrently 1.75%, and is payable quarterly in @rseat the end of March, June, September ar
December. They are also assessed a fronting feeast of 0.125%.

All obligations under the 2013 facility will be gzanteed jointly and severally by us and all oursidilaries that guarantee the 2021 nc
All obligations under the 2013 facility, and theagantees of those obligations, will be securedubpgtantially all of our assets and the
guarantors subject to certain exceptions and pthliens, including a first-priority security imést in such assets that constitute ABL
Collateral and a second-priority security inteiestuch assets that constitute Notes Collateral.

The 2013 facility contains certain restrictive coaats, which, among other things, relate to tharmnce of indebtedness, payment of
dividends, repurchase of common stock, distribgj@sset sales and investments. The agreemerttogitsons a financial covenant requiring
the satisfaction of a minimum fixed charge coveragi® of 1.00 to 1.00 if our excess availabiliigfined as the sum of our net borrowing
availability plus qualified cash, falls below theegter of $17.5 million or 10% of the maximum beviog amount. Qualified cash is defined as
cash on deposit that is subject to a control agee¢in favor of the agent. As of December 31, 2@14,excess availability was $146.1 million,
which includes $129.4 million in net borrowing aeaility and $16.7 million in qualified cash. Thgraement governing the 2013 facility also
includes customary events of default, includingngeaof control. If an event of default occurs, lgmders under the 2013 facility would be
entitled to take various actions, including theederation of amounts due under the revolver anddaiibns permitted to be taken by a secured
creditor (subject to the terms of the ABL/Bond heteditor Agreement).

At December 31, 2014, we were not in violation 0§ @ovenants or restrictions imposed by any ofdabt agreements.

Fair Value

TheFair Value Measurements and Disclosutegic of the Codification provides a framework foeasuring the fair value of assets and
liabilities and establishes a fair value hierartigt requires an entity to maximize the use of plad#e inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.flevalue hierarchy can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessiblaiby
Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the matketpother than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntptaee and significant to the valuation

If a financial instrument uses inputs that faltifferent levels of the hierarchy, the instrumeiit e categorized based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair valgalculation.

The only financial instruments measured at faiugadn a recurring basis were our warrants.
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The tables below present the effect of our denreafinancial instrument on the consolidated stat@mef operations and comprehensive
income (loss) for the years ended December 3h@ndands):

Amount of Gain (Loss)

Derivative Not Designatec Recognized in Income
as Hedging Instruments Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Incom 2014 2013 2012
Warrants Interest expense, n 45k (1,509 (4,997)

We use the income approach to value our warrantsing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. \gsiinis model, the risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yietdecin effect on the valuation date. The expetiteds based on the period of time until the
expiration of the warrants. Expected volatilitypsed on the historical volatility of our commoacht over the most recent period equal to the
expected life of the warrants. The expected divitgrld is based on our history of not paying regulividends in the past and our current
intention to not pay regular dividends in the feeable future.

These techniques incorporate Level 1 and Levep@ts Significant inputs to the derivative valuatfor the warrants are observable in
the active markets and are classified as LeveltBarhierarchy.

The following fair value hierarchy table presemformation about our financial instrument measwaefhir value on a recurring basis
using significant other observable inputs (Leve{i@)thousands):

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
As of December 31 Measurementas o As of December 31 Measurement as o
2014 December 31, 201 2013 December 31, 201
Warrants (included in Other lo-term liabilities) $ 3,37t $ 3,37t $ 3,83C $ 3,83(

We have elected to report the value of our 202%k8lat amortized cost. The fair value of the 202feBlat December 31, 2014 was
approximately $356.8 million and was determineahgdievel 2 inputs based on market prices.

Other Long-Term Debt

In 2006, we completed construction on a new multppse facility. Based on the evaluation of thestauttion project in accordance
with theLeasegopic of the Codification, we were deemed the owafehe facility during the construction period fédtively, a sale and
leaseback of the facility occurred when constructi@s completed and the lease term began. Thisacéion did not qualify for sale-leaseback
accounting. As a result, the building and the Iterga lease obligation are included on the constditidalance sheet as a component of fixed
assets and other long-term debt, respectively.

Future maturities of long-term debt as of Decen#igr2014 were as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 30,07
2016 83
2017 92
2018 10z
2019 11z
Thereaftel 353,44(
Total lon¢-term debt (including current portio $ 383,90:
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10. Employee StockBased Compensation

2014 Incentive Plan

Under our 2014 Incentive Plan (“2014 Plan”), ther@any is authorized to grant awards in the fornmoéntive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock sharestricted stock units, other common stock-baseddsand cash-based awards. The maximum
number of common shares reserved for the granvafds under the 2014 Plan is 5.0 million, subjeadjustment as provided by the 2014
Plan. All 5.0 million shares under the Plan mayrzle subject to options, stock appreciation rift88Rs"), or stock-based awards. Stock
options and SARs granted under the 2014 Plan melyawe a term exceeding 10 years from the dateasftgThe 2014 Plan also provides that
all awards will become fully vested and/or exersisaupon a change in control (as defined in the42@lan) if those awards (i) are not assume
or equitably substituted by the surviving entity(iorhave been assumed or equitably substitutethéysurviving entity, and the grantee’s
employment is terminated under certain circumstan©¢her specific terms for awards granted unde014 Plan shall be determined by our
Compensation Committee (or the board of directioss idetermined by the board of directors). Awaydmted under the 2014 Plan generally
vest ratably over a four year period. As of Decenddg 2014, 3.7 million shares were available $suance under the 2014 Plan.

2007 Incentive Plan

Under our 2007 Incentive Plan (2007 Plan”), then@uany is authorized to grant awards in the fornmoéntive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, eatbemmon stock-based awards and chabed awards. In January 2010, our sharehc
approved an amendment to our 2007 Plan which isectshe number of shares of common stock that reegrénted pursuant to awards
under the 2007 Plan from 2.5 million shares tordillion shares. The maximum number of common shaessrved for the grant of
awards under the 2007 Plan is 7.0 million, subjecdjustment as provided by the 2007 Plan. No riwa&a 7.0 million shares may be
made subject to options SARs granted under the P07, and no more than 3.5 million shares may bhdarsubject to stock-based
awards other than options or SARs. Stock optiots @#ARs granted under the 2007 Plan may not haeena éxceeding 10 years from
the date of grant. The 2007 Plan also providesahawards will become fully vested and/or exeabie upon a change in control (as
defined in the 2007 Plan). Other specific termsamards granted under the 2007 Plan shall be datethby our Compensation
Committee (or the board of directors if so deteradgiby the board of directors). Historically, awagtanted under the 2007 Plan
generally vest ratably over a three to four-yeaique As of December 31, 2014, 25,000 shares wgeaglable for issuance under the
2007 Plan, 25,000 of which may be made subjestdok-based awards other than options or SARs.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

Under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“2005 Planig are authorized to grant stock-based awardseifiorm of incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, restricteatktand other common stock-based awards. The maximumber of common shares reservec
for the grant of awards under the 2005 Plan igidlbon, subject to adjustment as provided by tB@2 Plan. No more than 2.2 million shares
may be made subject to options or SARs grantedrithde2005 Plan, and no more than 1.1 million sharay be made subject to stock-based
awards other than options or SARs. Stock optiois@KRs granted under the 2005 Plan may not hageradxceeding 10 years from the date
of grant. The 2005 Plan also provides that all awavill become fully vested and/or exercisable uparhange in control (as defined in the
2005 Plan). Other specific terms for awards graoteder the 2005 Plan shall be determined by ourcboidirectors (or a committee of its
members). Historically, awards granted under th@sZBlan generally vest ratably over a three-yedog@eAs of December 31, 2014, 2,700
shares were available for issuance under the 2@0% 2,700 of which may be made subject to stodetdawards other than options or SARs.

1998 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stocleirive Plan (“1998 Plan”), we were authorized suésshares of common stock
pursuant to awards granted in various forms, inolyéhcentive stock options, non-qualified stockiops and other stock-based awards. The
1998 Plan also authorized the sale of common siadlerms determined by our board of directors.

Stock options granted under the 1998 Plan genechiffyvest after a period of seven to nine yeaithwertain option grants subject to
acceleration if certain financial targets were riéte expiration date is generally 10 years subsadoedate of issuance. As of January 1, 2!
no further grants will be made under the 1998 Plan.

54




The following table summarizes our stock optioriatgt

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Remaining Aggregate

Options Price Years Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) (In thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 493 $ 4.01
Grantec 1817 $ 7.61
Exercisec (492 $ 3.7z
Forfeited (12 $ 7.0t
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 6,24¢ $ 5.0¢ 6.4 $ 12,78:
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 4,37¢ $ 4.04 52 $ 12,61«

The outstanding options at December 31, 2014 imchmtions to purchase 4,113,000 shares granted the2007 Plan, 1,319,000
shares granted under the 2005 Plan and 814,008sspianted under the 1998 Plan. As of Decembe2(HY, options to purchase 2,796,000
shares under the 2007 Plan, 769,000 shares ured20@b Plan and 814,000 shares under the 199&Riamls were exercisable. The weightec
average grant date fair value of options grantathduhe years ended December 31, 2014 and 2012 $%71 and $2.83, respectively. No
option awards were granted during 2013. The totahisic value of options exercised during the gesarded December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012 were $2.0 million $1.8 million and $0.4 miliiorespectively. We realized no tax benefits focktoptions exercised during the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Outstanding and exercisable stock options at DeeeBib, 2014 were as follows (shares in thousands):

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Remaining Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Shares Price Years Shares Price
$3.15 814 $ 3.1t 7.€ 814 $ 3.1t
$3.19- $3.72 2,65 $ 3.21 5.2 2,59 $ 3.2C
$6.70- $7.15 967 $ 7.0€ 8.8 967 $ 7.0¢€
$7.67 1,81 $ 7.61 9.1 — $ —
$3.15- $7.67 6,24¢ $ 5.0¢ 6.4 4,37¢ $ 4.04

The following table summarizes restricted stochvitgtfor the year ended December 31, 2014 (shardéisousands):

Weighted

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 61C $ 3.4z
Grantec — 3 —
Vested (589 $ 3.4C
Forfeited — 3 —
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 27 $ 3.72

The outstanding restricted stock units (“RSUsDatember 31, 2014 include 1,300,000 units grantei@iuthe 2014 Plan and 555,000
units granted under the 2007 Plan. The weightecageegrant date fair value of RSUs granted dutiegyear ended December 31, 2014 was
$7.48. No RSUs were granted during 2013 or 2012.

The following table summarizes restricted stock antivity for the year ended December 31, 2014u(shin thousands):

Weighted

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C — % —
Grantec 1,85¢ % 7.4¢
Vested — 3 —
Forfeited 3 $ 7.52
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 1,85t $ 7.4¢
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Our results of operations included stock compeosatkpense of $6.2 million ($6.2 million net of ¢z, $4.2 million ($4.2 million net
of taxes) and $3.6 million ($3.6 million net of &) for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@t#] respectively. The total fair value
options vested during the years ended Decemb&034, 2013, and 2012 were $3.0 million, $3.0 milland $3.1 million, respectively. The
total fair value of restricted stock vested durihg years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 202326 million, $2.1 million and $2.0
million, respectively. There were no RSUs whichtedsn 2014, 2013, or 2012.

As of December 31, 2014, there was $17.4 milliototd] unrecognized compensation cost related mevested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the Alhascost is expected to be recognized over a wedghverage period of 3.0 years.

11. Facility Closure Costs

In 2014, we recognized $0.5 million in expense pariify related to the minimum future lease obligat®n a facility in Tennessee,
which was closed in 2014, return condition obligasi on a previously closed facility in South Caraliand revised sutental income estimat
on a previously closed facility in Tennessee. Wgaized this expense in facility closure costs iatetest expense, net in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations and compréleimcome (loss).

In 2013, we recognized $0.1 million in expense jarifyg related to revisions of sub-rental incomereates on a previously closed
facility in Tennessee and future minimum leasegaiions on our vacated facilities, net of estimateb-rental income. We recognized this
expense in facility closure costs and interest rgpgenet in the accompanying consolidated stateafeygerations and comprehensive income
(loss). There were no new facility closures in 2013

In 2012 we recognized $1.1 million in expense, Whi@s primarily related to revisions of stdntal income estimates on two previot
closed facilities in South Carolina and Tennessekfature minimum lease obligations on our vacdéeilities, net of estimated sub-rental
income. Of the $1.1 million expense we recognizexnd) 2012, $1.0 million was included in facilitiosure costs and $0.1 million was
included in interest expense, net in the accompanydnsolidated statement of operations and coreps#e income (loss). There were no
facility closures in 2012.

An analysis of our facility closure reserves foe theriods reflected is as follows:

2012 Additions Payments 2013 Additions Payments 2014
(In thousands)

Facility and other exit costs, net of estimated-laase
rental income $ 283 % 82 $ (1,21¢ $ 1,70C $ 51 $ (1,068 $ 1,147

The facility and other exit cost reserves of $lilliom at December 31, 2014, of which $0.3 millimrecorded as other long-term
liabilities, are primarily related to future minimulease payments on vacated facilities.

As plans to close facilities are developed and etezl; assets that can be used at other faciliteeg@nsferred and assets to be aband
or sold are written down to their net realizabl&reaincluding any long-lived assets. In situatiarigere multiple facilities serve the same
market we may temporarily close, or idle, faciktiwith plans to reopen these facilities once demmahdns to the market. At December 31,
2014, we had four idled facilities; two in Floridad two in South Carolina. In these situationdiditived assets continue to be depreciated an
assessed for impairment. Should conditions in cankets worsen, or recovery take significantly lanidpan forecasted, we may temporarily
idle or permanently close additional facilitiesydtich time we may incur additional facility closucosts or asset impairment charges. Future
non-cash impairment charges would have the effedéoreasing our earnings or increasing our losssesch period, but would not impact our
current outstanding debt obligations or compliawite covenants contained in the related debt agee¢snWe continuously monitor economic
conditions in all our markets, and while at thesgr& time there are no plans to close or idle amfdit facilities, changes in market conditions
may warrant future closings or idling of facilities
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12. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefityded in continuing operations were as follows far years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Current:
Federa $ — 3 (599 $ —
State 587 44¢€ 11¢
587 (14€) 11¢
Deferred:
Federa 457 827 37¢
State 67 90 80
524 917 45¢
Income tax expens $ 1,111 $ 76 $ 577

Temporary differences, which give rise to defeti@dassets and liabilities, were as follows as e€&mber 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets related

Accrued expense $ 1,76 % 1,891
Insurance reserve 4,461 3,59¢
Facility closure reserve 1,12¢ 1,48¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 8,06¢ 7,94:
Accounts receivabl 65¢ 921
Inventories 6,394 5,113
Operating loss and credit carryforwa 106,59: 116,92t
Goodwill and other intangible ass: 1,99¢ 2,59:¢
Property, plant and equipme 5,931 6,307
Other 512 43¢
137,50t 147,22:
Valuation allowanct (133,18 (143,68
Total deferred tax asse 4,32 3,53¢
Deferred tax liabilities related t
Prepaid expenst (2,227 (1,389
Goodwill and other intangible ass: (8,28)) (7,817
Total deferred tax liabilitie (10,509 (9,195
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (6,180 $ (5,65¢)

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to our effective rate for continuing opesas is provided below for the years
ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income 5.2 0.1 3.t
Valuation allowanct (36.5) (36.9) (36.9)
Permanent difference 1.¢ 1.3 (3.9
Other = 1.2 =
5.6% (1.9% (1.1)%

We have $434.4 million of state operating lossycéorwards, which includes $2.6 million of state txedit carry-forwards expiring at
various dates through 2032. We also have $254lomif federal net operating loss carry-forwardattwill expire at various dates through
2033. The federal and state operating loss camyeis exclude approximately $6.7 million of greeadfall tax benefits from stock option
exercises that have not been recorded as of Dece8hb2014. These deferred tax assets will be dezbas an increase to additional paid in
capital when the related tax benefits are realiZedhe extent we generate sufficient
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taxable income in the future to fully utilize thextbenefits of the net deferred tax assets on wdicdluation allowance was recorded, our
effective tax rate may decrease as the valuatiowahce is reversed.

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code imposesaiimitations on the utilization of net operatiloss (“NOL”) carryforwards, othe
tax carryforwards, and certain built-in losses uparownership change as defined under that se¢tigyeneral terms, an ownership change
may result from transactions that increase theexgde ownership of certain stockholders in the Gomwijs stock by more than 50 percentage
points over a three year testing period (“Secti®® @wnership Change”)i the Company were to experience a Section 382&siip Changt
an annual limitation would be imposed on certaithef Company’s tax attributes, including NOL angita loss carryforwards, and certain
other losses, credits, deductions or tax basis.

We evaluate our deferred tax assets on a qualiaslg to determine whether a valuation allowancedsired. In accordance with the
Income Taxetopic of the Codification we assess whether it agerlikely than not that some or all of our defdrtax assets will not be realiz
Significant judgment is required in estimating \&lan allowances for deferred tax assets. Theza#din of a deferred tax asset ultimately
depends on the existence of sufficient taxablerimem the applicable carryback or carryforward pesi We consider nature, frequency, and
severity of current and cumulative losses, amohgramnatters, the reversal of existing deferreditdilities, historical and forecasted taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in our assagsi@banges in our estimates of future taxablerimeand tax planning strategies will affect
our estimate of the realization of the tax benefftthese tax carryforwards.

Poor housing market conditions have contributesutocumulative loss position for the past seveearg. While we generated income in
2014, we still have a cumulative loss for the threar period ending December 31, 2014. We belieige &s well as uncertainty around the
extent and timing of the housing market recovegpresents significant negative evidence in consigavhether our deferred tax assets are
realizable. Further, we do not believe that relyamgprojections of future taxable income to suppiwetrecovery of deferred tax assets is
sufficient. Based on an evaluation of positive ardative evidence, we concluded that the negatiigdence regarding our ability to realize
deferred tax assets outweighed the positive evielasmf December 31, 2014.

In 2014, we reduced our valuation allowance by $illon due to the utilization of net operatingskes against federal and state taxabl
income. In 2013, we recorded a valuation allowasfcgpproximately $15.3 million related to our daming operations, which is exclusive of
$0.6 million related primarily to reversals of unieén tax positions due to statute expirations #ffgcted our net operating loss carryforward
and valuation allowance. In 2012, we recorded aatan allowance of approximately $19.6 millionateld to our continuing operations.

Without continued improvement in housing activitye could be required to establish additional vatuaallowances. However, we had
positive earnings before taxes in 2014. To thergxt@ continue to generate sufficient taxable ineamthe same jurisdictions in the future to
utilize the tax benefits of the related net defeiax assets, we may reverse some or all of theatiah allowance. We currently estimate that
we will likely transition into a three year cumulat income position on a rolling three year per@dome time during the year ending
December 2015. However, there continues to be taingr around housing market projections. Simplgnow out of a cumulative loss is not
viewed as a bright line and may not be consideu#ficient positive evidence to reverse some opbfathe valuation allowance if there are other
offsetting negative factors. In upcoming quarters,will closely monitor the positive and negatiwedence surrounding our ability to realize
our deferred tax assets.

We base our estimate of deferred tax assets dbititiess on current tax laws and rates. In certases, we also base our estimate on
business plan forecasts and other expectationg &ltave outcomes. Changes in existing tax lawsatas could affect our actual tax results,
and future business results may affect the amdumtirodeferred tax liabilities or the valuationair deferred tax assets over time. Due to
uncertainties in the estimation process, partityhaith respect to changes in facts and circumstaric future reporting periods, as well as the
residential homebuilding industry’s cyclicality asdnsitivity to changes in economic conditionss fpossible that actual results could differ
from the estimates used in previous analyses.

Accounting for deferred taxes is based upon estisat future results. Differences between the goatied and actual outcomes of these
future results could have a material impact onamnsolidated results of operations or financialitpms
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The following table shows the changes in our vadmaallowance:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Balance at January $ 143,68: $ 127,70C $ 112,39:
Additions charged to expens
Continuing operation — 15,87¢ 19,55¢
Discontinued operatior 131 17¢ 90t
Reductions credited to expen
Continuing operatiot (7,179 — —
Discontinued operatio — — —
Deductions (3,452) (74) (5,156
Balance at December 2 $ 133,18. $ 143,68. $ 127,701

We accrue interest and penalties on our unceraipasitions as a component of our provision fobme taxes. We accrued no
significant interest and penalties in 2014, 2013@k2. We had a total of $0.3 million and $0.2 imillaccrued for interest and penalties for ou
uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2014281@, respectively.

The following table shows the changes in the amot@ipur uncertain tax positions (exclusive of tfifeet of interest and penalties):

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Balance at January $ 95C $ 2,080 % 2,251
Tax positions taken in prior perioc

Gross increase 2 — 22

Gross decreast — — (64)
Tax positions taken in current peric

Gross increase 13 11 7
Settlements with taxing authoriti — — (142)
Lapse of applicable statute of limitatic (587) (1,14) —
Balance at December 2 $ 37¢ § 95C $ 2,08(

The balance for uncertain tax positions was $0l4amias of December 31, 2014 excluding penaltias iaterest. If this balance were
recognized, the tax provision would decrease bg #illion excluding the impact to the valuationcallance.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as vegiheome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Basedcompleted examinations and the

expiration of statutes of limitations, we have daded all U.S. federal income tax matters for yelarsugh 2004. We report in 17 states with
various years open to examination.

13. Employee Benefit Plans

We maintain one active defined contribution 40X(lan. Our employees are eligible after completimgrsonths of employment to
participate in the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 4QRlan. Participants can contribute up to 15% efrtannual compensation, subject to federally
mandated maximums. Participants are immediateliedds their own contributions. We match a cerfa@ncentage of the contributions made
by participating employees, subject to IRS limdas. Our matching contributions are subject tocarpta five-year vesting schedule. We
recognized expense of $0.4 million, $0.4 milliord&®.3 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivédy contributions to the plan.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

We lease certain land, buildings and equipment usegerations. These leases are generally acobfimt@s operating leases with
initial terms ranging from one to 20 years and thegerally contain renewal options. Certain opegpkeases are subject to contingent rentals
based on various measures, primarily consumer préex increases. Total rent expense under opgrigases was approximately $25.4
million, $20.5 million and $19.0 million for the ges ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, tespgc

In addition, we have residual value guaranteeseotain equipment leases. Under these leases welihaeption of (a) purchasing the
equipment at the end of the lease term, (b) arngnigir the sale of the equipment to a third pasty(c) returning
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the equipment to the lessor to sell the equipniétite sales proceeds in any case are less thaedftual value, we are required to reimburse
the lessor for the deficiency up to a specifiectlas stated in each lease agreement. If the padeseds exceed the residual value, we are
entitled to all of such excess amounts. The guaesninder these leases for the residual valuegugdraent at the end of the respective
operating lease periods approximated $2.8 mill®onfeDecember 31, 2014. Based upon the expectdtamone of these leased assets will
have a residual value at the end of the leasettetris materially less than the value specifiethanrelated operating lease agreement or that
we will purchase the equipment at the end of thedderm, we do not believe it is probable thawiliebe required to fund any amounts under
the terms of these guarantee arrangements. Acglydimo accruals have been recognized for thesegtees.

Future minimum commitments for noncancelable ojrgdeases with initial or remaining lease termssxgess of one year are as
follows:

Related Party Total*
(In thousands)

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 63€ $ 24,55
2016 33< 21,75¢
2017 28E 18,07:
2018 24z 15,97¢
2019 227 9,257
Thereaftel 1,07¢ 16,61¢

$ 2,801 % 106,23!

* Includes related party future minimum commitmeatsibncancelable operating leas:

As of December 31, 2014, we had outstanding letteesedit totaling $15.6 million under our 2013ck#y that principally support our
self insurance programs.

We received $0.6 million from litigation settlemeim 2012. These settlements were recorded asuatied of selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying catestelil statement of operations and comprehensieei@¢loss) in 2012.

We are a party to various legal proceedings irotldénary course of business. Although the ultindisposition of these proceedings
cannot be predicted with certainty, managemenebet the outcome of any claim that is pending i@atened, either individually or on a
combined basis, will not have a material adverfecebn our consolidated financial position, cdsiwé or results of operations. However, tt
can be no assurances that future costs would noigberial to our results of operations or liquidity a particular period.

15. Segment and Product Information

We offer an integrated solution to our customeos/joling manufacturing, supply, and installationadull range of structural and related
building products. We provide a wide variety oflding products and services directly to homebuildetomers. We manufacture floor trus
roof trusses, wall panels, stairs, millwork, windgwnd doors. We also provide a full range of aoisibn services. We group our building
products and services into five product categopestabricated components, windows & doors, lungb&rmber sheet goods, millwork, and
other building products & services. We have oneaafigg segment with centralized financial and operal oversight.

Sales by product category were as follows for sy ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Prefabricated componer $ 330,85. $ 294,00¢ $ 203,68
Windows & doors 356,89 308,60 233,11:
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 522,65! 526,63: 348,13.
Millwork 160,24 136,88: 104,16!
Other building products & servici 233,45( 223,76:; 181,58:
Total sales $ 1,604,09 $ 1,489,89. $ 1,070,67!
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16. Related Party Transactions

An affiliate of JLL Partners, Inc. was a princifneficial owner of PGT, Inc. until late 2013. Fiidy. Sherman, our chief executive
officer, serves on the board of directors for PGIE, We purchased windows from PGT, Inc. totaligg3®million, $5.0 million and $4.4 millic
in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We had adsquayable to PGT, Inc. in the amounts of $0.8iamland $0.5 million as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, we paid approximately $@ilBon, $0.8 million and $1.2 million, respectiyglin rental expense to employees
or our non-affiliate stockholders for leases ofdamd buildings.

17. Concentrations

We maintain cash at financial institutions in exxetfederally insured limits. Accounts receivaptgentially expose us to concentrati
of credit risk. We provide credit in the normal c&iof business to customers in the residentiatcoction industry. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers and maintdowalnces for potential credit losses. Because ouste are dispersed among our various
markets, our credit risk to any one customer destaonomy is not significant.

Our customer mix is a balance of large national éouilders, regional homebuilders and local homeleud. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, our top 10 customers accouateapproximately 25.1% of our sales, and no siegktomer accounted for more than 8%
of sales.

We source products from a large number of suppliéesmaterials purchased from any single suppépresented more than 10% of our
total materials purchased in 2014.

18. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information was as folloassthe years ended December 31.:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Cash payments for intere $ 28,33¢ $ 78,23. $ 37,84¢
Cash payments (refunds) for income ta 45¢€ 407 281
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19. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following tables summarize the consolidatedriguly results of operations for 2014 and 2013tliousands, except per share
amounts):

2014
First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 34590¢ $ 426,540 $ 43490 $ 396,73
Gross margir 74,91¢ 93,79¢ 97,64 90,63¢
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (3,319)(2) 10,62((2) 8,73¢3) 2,511(4)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (72 (11) (235) (90)
Net income (loss (3,389 10,60¢ 8,50¢ 2,421
Basic net income (loss) per shi

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.09(1) $ 0.112) $ 0.0¢3) $ 0.0z(4)

Loss from discontinued operatio (0.00 (0.00 (0.00) (0.00

Net income (loss $ (0.0 % 011 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0Z
Diluted net income (loss) per sh:

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.09(1) $ 0.0¢(2) $ 0.073) $ 0.0z(4)

Loss from discontinued operatio (0.00 (0.00 (0.00 (0.00)

Net income (loss $ (0.0 % 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0Z

2013
First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 319,70 $ 398,14¢ $ 40293 $ 369,11:
Gross margin 62,34’ 82,23: 92,49¢ 82,84
Income (loss) from continuing operatiol (11,605 (5) (48,289(6) 12,9547) 4,57(8)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neagf (203) 83 (158 (48)
Net income (loss] (11,809 (48,20¢) 12,79 452¢
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per st

Income (loss) from continuing operatiol $ (0.19)(5) $ (0.50)(6) $ 0.157) $ 0.0%(8)

Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (0.00 (0.00 (0.00 (0.00

Net income (loss) $ 0.12) $ (050 % 0.1: $ 0.0f

(1) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsasf $1.2 million as discussed in Note 9 and aatdn allowance of $1.0 million as
discussed in Note 1.

(2) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsasf $(1.2) million as discussed in Note 9, an@laation allowance of $(4.1) million as
discussed in Note 1.

(3) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsaf $(1.3) million as discussed in Note 9, fagitilosure costs of $0.1 million as discussed

in Note 11, and a valuation allowance of $(3.3)ioml as discussed in Note 1

(4) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsaf $0.9 million as discussed in Note 9, facitgsure costs of $0.2 million as discussed i

Note 11, and a valuation allowance of $(0.9) millas discussed in Note 1

(5) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsasf $0.4 million as discussed in Note 9 and aatdn allowance of $4.4 million as
discussed in Note 1.

(6) Includes a pre-payment premium on the term lafe$39.5 million as discussed in Note 9, debcalimit write-off of $6.8 million as
discussed in Note 9, debt issuance cost writefdB2al million as discussed in Note 9, fair valufuatments for the warrants of $0.3
million as discussed in Note 9, and a valuatioavedince of $17.0 million as discussed in Note

(7) Includes fair value adjustments for the warrant$(6t2) million as discussed in Note 9, facilitpslire costs of $(0.2) million as discus
in Note 11, and a valuation allowance of $(3.4)ioml as discussed in Note 1

(8) Includes fair value adjustments for the watsasf $0.9 million as discussed in Note 9, faciitgsure costs of $0.1 million as discussed i

Note 11, and a valuation allowance of $(2.6) millas discussed in Note 1

Earnings per share is computed independently fdn eathe quarters presented; therefore, the sutmeofuarterly earnings per share
may not equal the annual earnings per share.
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20. Subsequent Event

On February 6, 2015 the Company acquired cert@etasnd the operations of Timber Tech Texas (fiianber Tech”)for $5.8 millior
in cash (including certain adjustments). TimberiTscbased in Cibolo, Texas, which is approximagHymiles northeast of downtown San
Antonio. Timber Tech is a manufacturer of roof s, floor trusses, wall panels and sub-componasitsell as a supplier of glue laminated
timber and veneer lumber beams.

This transaction will be accounted for by the asijiain method, and accordingly the results of opena will be included in the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements froenabquisition date. The purchase price will becalted to the assets acquired based on
estimated fair values at the acquisition date, Withexcess of purchase price over the estimabedaiae of the net assets acquired recorded ¢
goodwill. The accounting for this acquisition hag heen completed at the date of this filing gittes proximity to the acquisition date.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants arcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls Evaluation and Related CEO @D Certifications. Our management, with the participation of our pipal
executive officer (“CEO”) and principal financiaffizcer (“CFO”), conducted an evaluation of the efigeness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of theoéthe period covered by this annual report. Gtwtrols evaluation was conducted by our
Disclosure Committee, comprised of senior repregeas from our finance, accounting, internal aualitd legal departments under the
supervision of our CEO and CFO.

Certifications of our CEO and our CFO, which arguieed in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as
amended (“Exchange Act”), are attached as exhibitsis annual report. This “Controls and Procedusection includes the information
concerning the controls evaluation referred tdmdertifications, and it should be read in conjiamcwith the certifications for a more
complete understanding of the topics presented.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Control¥e do not expect that our disclosure controls@nodedures will prevent all errors and all
fraud. A system of controls and procedures, noenabw well conceived and operated, can providg mdsonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the system are met. Becatigee limitations in all such systems, no evaluattan provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, withe Company have been detected. Furthermorelgbign of any system of controls and
procedures is based in part upon certain assunsptibout the likelihood of future events, and there be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under adirgit! future conditions, regardless of how unlkd@ecause of these inherent limitations in a
cost-effective system of controls and procedurésstatements or omissions due to error or fraud ocayr and not be detected.

Scope of the Controls Evaluatioithe evaluation of our disclosure controls and pdoces included a review of their objectives and
design, the Company'implementation of the controls and proceduresthadffect of the controls and procedures onrfarination generate
for use in this annual report. In the course ofdhaluation, we sought to identify whether we hag data errors, control problems or acts of
fraud and to confirm that appropriate correctiviéaa; including process improvements, were beingeutaken if needed. This type of
evaluation is performed on a quarterly basis sbabaclusions concerning the effectiveness of éseldsure controls and procedures can be
reported in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. iahthe components of our disclosure controls mmetedures are also evaluated by our
internal audit department, our legal departmenttangdersonnel in our finance organization. The allgoals of these various evaluation
activities are to monitor our disclosure contratsl @rocedures on an ongoing basis, and to maititain as dynamic systems that change as
conditions warrant.

Conclusions regarding Disclosure ControlBased on the required evaluation of our disclosordrols and procedures, our CEO and
CFO have concluded that, as of December 31, 20&4naintained disclosure controls and procedurdsatbie effective in providing
reasonable assurance that information require@ widtlosed by us in the reports that we file dmsitt under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieniods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thatl such information is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including &® @nd CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely deaisigegarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting. Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Rule 1B&{) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervisiod aith
the participation of our management, including 6&0O and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of thetffness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework setfamtinternal Control —ntegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Commifegponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basedusrevaluation under the framework set forth irrfnal Control — Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our iateantrol over financial reporting was effectivea December 31, 2014.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal cortka@r financial reporting as of December 31, 2014% been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registmiblic accounting firm, as stated in their rémdrich appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial RepoginDuring the quarter ended December 31, 2014, there no changes in our

internal control over financial reporting identiién connection with the evaluation described alibed have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
Disclosure pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securés Exchange Act of 1934

Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act, vag be required to disclose in our annual and qugnteports to the SEC whether we or any
of our “affiliates” knowingly engaged in certaintatties, transactions or dealings relating to lmarwith certain individuals or entities targeted
by US economic sanctions. Disclosure is generatiyiired even where the activities, transactiordeatings were conducted in compliance
with applicable law. Because the SEC definesehm t'affiliate” broadly, it includes any entity uadcommon “control” with us (and the term
“control” is also construed broadly by the SEC).

The description of the activities below has beavialed to us by Warburg Pincus LLC (“WP”), affilest of which (i) beneficially own more
than 10% of our outstanding common stock and amahees of our board of directors and (ii) benefigiawn more than 10% of the equity
interests of, and have the right to designate mesniifethe board of directors of, Endurance Inteomatl Group (“EIG”) and Santander Asset
Management Investment Holdings Limited (“SAMIH"EIG and SAMIH may therefore be deemed to be undemaon “control” with

us. However, this statement is not meant to badamission that common control exists.

The disclosure below relates solely to activitienducted by EIG and SAMIH and their non-U.S. adtiis that may be deemed to be under
common “control” with us. The disclosure does redate to any activities conducted by us or by WWE does not involve our or WP’s
management. Neither we nor WP has had any invawéeim or control over the disclosed activitiesS&MIH or EIG. Neither we nor WP hi
independently verified or participated in the pmgpian of the disclosure. Neither we nor WP isrespnting as to the accuracy or complete
of the disclosure, nor do we or WP undertake ardigation to correct or update it.

As to EIG:

We understand that EIG’s affiliates intend to disel in their next annual or quarterly SEC repaat:tton July 2, 2013, the billing information
for a subscriber account, or the Subscriber Accauast updated to include Seyed Mahmoud Mohaddddpbaddes. On September 16, 2013,
the Office of Foreign Assets Control, or OFAC, desited Mohaddes as a Specially Designated Nation&IDN, pursuant to 31 C.F.R. Part
560.304. On or around September 26, 2014, duriogiine compliance scan of new and existing subscrccounts, EIG discovered that
Mohaddes, a SDN, was named as an account contabef@ubscriber Account. EIG promptly suspended3tbscriber Account, locked the
domain name IOCUKLTD.COM, which was registeredhite Subscriber Account, and reported the domain nar@-AC as potentially the
property of a SDN subject to blocking pursuant xe&utive Order 13599. Since September 16, 2013nwhehaddes was added to the SDN
list, charges in the total amount of $120.35 weeslento the Subscriber Account for web hosting awdain privacy services. EIG has ceased
billing for the Subscriber Account. To date, EIGsmt received any correspondence from OFAC reggrithis matter.”

“On July 10, 2014, OFAC designated each of Stami@Holding, or Stars, and Teleserve Plus SAL,ele3erve, as SDNs under Executive
Order 13224, and their property became subjecktcking pursuant to the Global Terrorism SanctiBegulations, 31 C.F.R. Part 594. On
July 15, 2014, as part of EIG’s compliance revieacpsses, EIG discovered that the domain namesiassbwith each of Stars,
STARSCOM.NET, and Teleserve, TELESERVEPLUS.COMcdaltectively, the Stars/Teleserve Domain Namesgwegistered through
EIG’s platform. EIG immediately took steps to suspand lock the Stars/Teleserve Domain Names teeptehem from being transferred or
resolving to a website, and EIG promptly reportesl Domain Names as potentially blocked proper@kAC. EIG did not generate any
revenue from the Stars/Teleserve Domain Names keetwhen they were added to the SDN list on Juh20@4 and when EIG discovered t
they were registered through EIG’s platform on JiBy 2014. To date, EIG has not received any cporedence from OFAC regarding the
matter.”

“On July 15, 2014 during a compliance scan of athdin names on one of our platforms, EIG identiffeeldomain name
KAHANETZADAK.COM, or the Domain Name, which wastégl as an ‘also known as,’ or AKA, of the entityHeme Chai which operates as
the American Friends of the United Yeshiva. Kah@hai was designated as a SDN on November 2, 20@Lat to Executive Order 13224.
Because the Domain Name was transferred into amestaccount of one of EIG’s resellers, there wadirect financial transaction between
EIG and the registered owner of the Domain Name. Dbmain Name was suspended upon EIG’s discovérogEIG’s platform, and EIG
reported the Domain Name to OFAC as potentiallyptoperty of a SDN. To date, EIG have not receiaay correspondence from OFAC
regarding the matter.”

As to SAMIH:

We understand that SAMIH’s affiliates intend todise in their next annual or quarterly SEC repmat “Santander UK holds frozen savings
and current accounts for three customers residethei U.K. who are currently designated by the {b6terrorism. The accounts held by each
customer were blocked after the customer’s desigmaind remained blocked and dormant throughoutt 2Rb revenue has been generated b
Santander UK on these accounts. The bank accelohfdr one of these customers was closed in thgHauarter of 2014.”
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“An Iranian national, resident in the U.K., whocisrrently designated by the U.S. under the IraRiaancial Sanctions Regulations and the
Weapons of Mass Destruction Proliferators Sanctiegulations (“NPWMD sanctions program”), holds artgage with Santander UK that
was issued prior to any such designation. No furdnawdown has been made (or would be permittedguthis mortgage although Santander
UK continues to receive repayment installments2Qf4, total revenue in connection with the mortgags approximately £2,580 and net
profits were negligible relative to the overall fit® of Santander UK. The same Iranian nationad &lslds two investment accounts with
Santander Asset Management UK Limited. The accdwante remained frozen during 2014. The investrmegntns are being automatically
reinvested, and no disbursements have been made toistomer. Total revenue for the Santander isimaeonnection with the investment
accounts was £250 and net profits in 2014 wereigibtg relative to the overall profits of Banco $amder, S.A.”

“In addition, during the third quarter 2014, SamtanUK identified two additional customers: a UKioaal designated by the U.S. under the
NPWMD sanctions program held a business accounttréhsactions were made and the account was cioskd fourth quarter of 2014. I
revenue or profit has been generated. A secondatibnal designated by the US for reasons of tismoheld a personal current account and
personal credit card account, both of which weosadl in the third quarter of 2014. Although tramtisas took place on the current account
during the third quarter of 2014, revenue and [gafenerated were negligible. No transactions fake on the credit card.”
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govarce

The information required by this item appears in aefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetirigtockholders to be held May -
2015 under the captions “Proposal 1 — Election isé@ors,” “Continuing Directors,” “Information Regding the Board and Its Committees,”
“Corporate Governance,” “Section 16(a) Beneficiar@rship Reporting Compliance,” and “Executive €dfis of the Registrant,” which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Builders FirstSource, Inc. and its subsidiarieseavor to do business according to the highestadthitd legal standards, complying v
both the letter and spirit of the law. Our boardiwéctors approved a Code of Business ConducEamds that applies to our directors, offic
(including our principal executive officer, prinaipfinancial officer and controller) and employe@sir Code of Business Conduct and Ethics i
administered by a compliance committee made uppressentatives from our legal, human resourcesnéi@ and internal audit departments.

Our employees are encouraged to report any susbeiciations of laws, regulations and the Code o$iBess Conduct and Ethics, and
all unethical business practices. We provide cawtirsly monitored hotlines for anonymous reportiggemployees.

Our board of directors has also approved a Suppisah€ode of Ethics for the Chief Executive OfficBresident, and Senior Financial
Officers of Builders FirstSource, Inc., which isw@idistered by our general counsel.

Both of these policies are listed as exhibits te #mnual report on Form 10-K and can be foundién“investors’section of our corpora
Web site at: www.bldr.com.

Stockholders may request a free copy of theseipsllzy contacting the Corporate Secretary, Buil&&stSource, Inc., 2001 Bryan
Street, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75201, UniteteStaf America.

In addition, within four business days of:

« Any amendment to a provision of our Code of Businésnduct and Ethics or our Supplemental Codelut&for Chief Executive
Officer, President and Senior Financial OfficerBoflders FirstSource, Inc. that applies to ouetleixecutive officer, our chief
financial officer or controller; o

« The grant of any waiver, including an implicit waiy from a provision of one of these policies te afi these officers that relates to
one or more of the items set forth in Item 406(biRegulation -K.

We will provide information regarding any such amerent or waiver (including the nature of any wajibe name of the person to
whom the waiver was granted and the date of theexpon our Web site at the Internet address akanwve such information will be available
on our Web site for at least a 12-month periocaddition, we will disclose any amendments and waite our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics or our Supplemental Code of Ethics for CEirécutive Officer, President and Senior Finan©fficers of Builders FirstSource, Inc. as
required by the listing standards of the NASDAQcRtMarket LLC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item appears inaefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetirigtockholders to be held May =
2015 under the captions “Executive CompensationGther Information,” “Information Regarding the Bdaand its Committees —
Compensation of Directors,” and “Compensation Cottarilnterlocks and Insider Participation,” whidlfiarmation is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners @Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item appears in aefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetirigtockholders to be held on
May 27, 2015 under the caption “Ownership of Semsg'l and “Equity Compensation Plan Information fiieh information is incorporated
herein by reference.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsdairector Independence

The information required by this item appears inaefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetiriggtockholders to be held May Z
2015 under the caption “Election of Directors andridgement Information,” “Information Regarding B@ard and its Committees,” and
“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transastiovhich information is incorporated herein bjerence.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item appears inaefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetiriggtockholders to be held May :
2015 under the caption “Proposal 2 — Ratificatibi$election of Independent Registered Public ActiognFirm — Fees Paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,” which informatiomisarporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) See the index to consolidated financiakstents provided in Item 8 for a list of the finestatements filed as part of this rep

(2) Financial statement schedules are omitted lsectney are either not applicable or not material.

(3) The following documents are filed, furnishedrosorporated by reference as exhibits to this rea® required by Item 601 of
Regulation S-K.

Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8+

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioBuilders FirstSource, Inc. (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement ®Qbmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Bichange Commission on
June 6, 2005, File Number -122788)

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Builders FirstSguirc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2he Company’s Current
Report on Form-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia March 5, 2007, File Numbe-51357)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan2&ay2010, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLLUiRas Fund V, L.P., and
Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorpohtey reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’sr€nir Report on Form B; filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onalgri22, 2010, File Number-51357)

Indenture, dated as of May 29, 2013, among BuilBestSource, Inc., the guarantors party theratd,Wilmington Trust Company,
trustee (form of Note included therein) (incorpechby reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’sréuirReport on Form 8-K, filed
with the Securities Exchange Commission on Jurg®33, File Number-51357)

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2013, amanitfiBrs FirstSource, Inc., as borrower, the addéldorrowers party thereto, the
lenders party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as adtraive agent, swing line lender, and letter efdirissuer (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities Exaga Commission on June 3,
2013, File Number-51357)

ABL/Bond Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of M&y 2013, among Builders FirstSource, Inc. and gedhits subsidiaries, as
grantors, SunTrust Bank, as ABL agent, and WilnongErust, National Association, as notes collatagant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities Exaga Commission on June 3,
2013, File Number-51357)

Notes Collateral Agreement, dated as of May 29320% and among Builders FirstSource, Inc. andagedf its subsidiaries, ¢
grantors, and Wilmington Trust, National Associafias collateral agent (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Securities Exchange CommissionJane 3, 2013, File Numbe-51357)

Security Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2013, layaanong Builders FirstSource, Inc. and certairto$ubsidiaries, as grantors, and
SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent and colidtegent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Company Current Repo
on Form &K, filed with the Securities Exchange CommissionJane 3, 2013, File Numbe-51357)

Guaranty, dated as of May 29, 2013, among BuilB&stSource, Inc., the other guarantors party togrem time to time, and
SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent and colidtegent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Company Current Repo
on Form &K, filed with the Securities Exchange CommissionJane 3, 2013, File Numbe-51357)

Warrant Issuance Agreement, dated as of Decemi2812, by and among Builders FirstSource, Inc. hHiglge Principal Strategies —
Senior Loan Fund I, L.P., Highbridge Onshore Seimwestments, LLC, and Highbridge Senior Loan 8eétInvestment Fund, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to therpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on December 8, 2011, File Numk-51357)

Form of Warrant issued pursuant to the Warrantasse Agreement dated December 2, 2011 (incorpobsteeference to Exhibit 4.2
to the Company’s Current Report on ForrK Sfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 8, 2011, File Num|
0-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stock IncentivenPks amended, effective March 1, 2004 (incorpdrhtereference to Exhibit 10.4
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement ®Qbmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Bxchange Commission on
April 27, 2005, File Number 3:-122788)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.9+

10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22*+
10.23+

10.24+

Amendment No. 7 to Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1888k Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencEsthibit 10.6 to the Company’
Annual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed whth Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc
2007, File Number-51357)

2004 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Sthdentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@nt¢orporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 1 to the RegistraiStatement of the Company on Form S-1, filedhwlie Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File Numii&i-122788)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equity IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 toehdment No. 4 to the
Registration Statement of the Company on Form féet], with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodane 6, 2005, File
Number 33-122788)

2007 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equityentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option AgreemiemtEmployee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on March 5, 2007, File Numb-51357)

2012 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Director Restricted Stock Agreen{a@rmorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, il the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 1, 2012, File Nun®-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Annex D of the Compadgfnitive Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A, filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission on December 15, 2009, File Numi51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (irpmmated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filéth the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Numt-51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incoaped by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrt 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filéth the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Numt-51357)

2010 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement forfifayee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to @wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadled December 31, 2009,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiarch 4, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

2014 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Restricted Stock Unit Award Certificatec@rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, filgd the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 1, 2014, File Nun®-51357)

2014 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Clectite (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QuaytB#port on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septerdd, 2014, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on NovembedB4,Z-ile Number -51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2014 Incentive Plan diporated herein by reference to Appendix A ofGlmenpany’s Definitive Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securdied Exchange Commission on April 11, 2014, FilenWar (-51357)

2014 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2014 InosenPlan Restricted Stock Unit Award Certificatec@rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, filgd the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 1, 2014, File Nun®-51357)

2015 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2014 InsenPlan No-Statutory Stock Option Award Certifica

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Amended and Restateddbar Compensation Policy (incorporated by refeeencExhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaattedd December 31, 2013, filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange Commission
on February 28, 2014, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Form of Director Indefiggtion Agreement (incorporated by reference thiBi 10.13 to Amendment
No. 3 to the Registration Statement of the Companirorm -1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comrmissin May 26,
2005, File Number 3:-122788)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

141

14.2

211

23.1*
24.1*
31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2001 deetBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and Floyd F. Sheriraorporated by referen
to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1 to the RegistratStatement of the Company on Formi,Siled with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on April 27, 2005, File Number -122788)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Juned5,2fetween Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Floy8Herman (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 4 s Registration Statement of the Company on Formfetl with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on June 6, 2005, File NuB@&-122788)

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, datedi@ct29, 2008, between Builders FirstSource, Ind.Floyd F. Sherman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to@wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yesaledd December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioarch 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2010, éstvBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and M. Chad Crowdiporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk @K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossitin on February 26, 2010,
File Number -51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, lestBeilders FirstSource, Inc. and Morris E. Tollycorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report onrRdi0-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, fitgd the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 5, 2008, File Numl-51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Octobe2@08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and MdEr Tolly (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s AalriReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer3lieR008, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2, ZBi®Number -51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, eetBeilders FirstSource, Inc. and Donald F. McABe(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuaytBdport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septerdd, 2005, filed with the
Securities Exchange Commission on November 2, 2805Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Octobe2@08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and bRaMcAleenan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to@wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yezaledd December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomarch 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Code of Business Conduct Ethics (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitLlto the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ5, filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 13, 2006,
File Number -51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Supplemental Code ofdstfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.2hte@ €Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200&d fitith the Securities and Exchange Commission arcM13, 2006, File
Number (-51357)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgnesice to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Repo Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securéies Exchange Commission on March 4, 2010, File Narf-51357)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperRiegistered Public Accounting Fir
Power of Attorney (included as part of signaturgg)i

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant17 CFR 240.13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant tao8e302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chieddttive Officet

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant17 CFR 240.13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant t@8e32 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, signed by M. Chad Crow as Chief FinahOfficer

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3% adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,edigoy Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive Officet . Chad Crow as Chief
Financial Officel
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Exhibit
Number Description

101*  The following financial information from BuildergrstSource, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on March 3, 20idrmatted in eXtensible
Business Reporting Language (“XBRL"): (i) Consoliglé Statements of Operations and Comprehensivenadhoss) for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (ii) Cateted Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and @ijlGonsolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended DemeBih 2014, 2013 and 2012, (iv) Consolidated 8tates of Changes in
Stockholder Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20032012, and (v) the Notes to Consolidated FirsduStatements

* Filed herewitr

**  Builders FirstSource, Inc. is furnishing, buttrfiling, the written statement pursuant to Titie@ United States Code 1350, as added by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 loydF F. Sherman, our Chief Executive Officer, and@®mhad Crow, our Chief
Financial Officer.

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatomygplarrangemer

(b) A list of exhibits filed, furnished or incorpated by reference with this Form 10-K is providédwe under ltem 15(a)(3) of this
report.Builders FirstSource, Inc. will furnish a copy of any exhibit listed above to any stockholder withoutharge upon written request
to Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and éeral Counsel, 2001 Bryan Street, Suite 1600, Dadl, Texas 75201.

(c) Not applicable
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc

SIGNATURES

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

March 3, 2015

The undersigned hereby constitute and appoint RidhRaMcAleenan and his substitutes our true andubattorneys-in-fact with full
power to execute in our name and behalf in theatips indicated below any and all amendments i®réport and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comigtissand hereby ratify and confirm all

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC.

/s FLOYD F. SHERMAN

Floyd F. Sherma
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

that such attorney-in-fact or his substitutes sla&ifully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptie following persons on beh

of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/sl FLOYD F. SHERMAN

Floyd F. Sherma
/s M. CHAD CROW

M. Chad Crow
/s PAUL S. LEVY

Paul S. Levy
/s/ DAVID A. BARR

David A. Barr
/s/ CLEVELAND A. CHRISTOPHE

Cleveland A. Christoph
/s DANIEL AGROSKIN

Daniel Agroskin
/sl MICHAEL GRAFF

Michael Graff
/s/ ROBERT C. GRIFFIM

Robert C. Griffin
/s/ KEVIN J. KRUSE

Kevin J. Kruse
/s BRETT N. MILGRIM

Brett N. Milgrim
/s CRAIG A. STEINKE

Craig A. Steinke

Chief Executive Officer and Directt
(Principal Executive Officer

President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Firiah
Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Offig«

Chairman and Directc

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 10.22
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC.
NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION AWARD CERTIFICATE
Non-transferable

GRANT TO

(“Grantee”)
the right to purchase from Builders FirstSource, [the “Company”)
shares of its common stock, $0.01 par yalube price of $ per share (the “Option”).

The Option is granted pursuant to and subjecta@tbvisions of the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 20dgentive Plan (the “Plan”) and this
Nonstatutory Stock Option Award Certificate (“Certificate”), including without limitation the tens and conditions (the “Terms and
Conditions”) beginning on page 2 hereof. By acicgpthe Option, Grantee shall be deemed to haveedgio the Terms and Conditions set
forth in this Certificate and the Plan. Capitatizerms used herein and not otherwise defined bha# the meanings assigned to such terms |
the Plan.

Unless vesting is accelerated as provided in Sedtieereof or otherwise in the discretion of thenB@dttee, the Option shall vest (become
exercisable) in accordance with the following saiedprovided that Grantee remains in Continuousi&e with the Company or its Parent or
any of their subsidiaries on each applicable vgdtate:

Vesting Date Percent of Option Shares Ves

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Builders FirstSource, Inc.,iagtby and through its duly authorized officerss ltaused this Certificate to be duly
executed.

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. Grant Date:

By:




TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Vesting of Option The Option shall vest (become exercisable) toatance with the vesting schedule shown on thercpage of th
Certificate. Notwithstanding the vesting schedtihe Option shall become fully vested and exerdésapon (i) the termination of Grantee’
Continuous Service with the Company or its Parerdry of their subsidiaries due to death or Disghi(ii)) a Change in Control, unless
Option is assumed by the surviving entity or otieexequitably converted or substituted in connectiith the Change in Control, or (iii) if t
Option is assumed by the surviving entity or othieewequitably converted or substituted in connectidth a Change in Control, t
termination of Grantee’s employment without Caus&mantee resigns for Good Reason after the effectate of the Change in Control.

2. Term of Option and Limitations on Right to Eise. The term of the Option will be for a period eht(10) years, expiring at 5:00 p.
Eastern Time, on the tenth anniversary of the Giaté (the “Expiration Date”)To the extent not previously exercised, the ve&iption will
lapse prior to the Expiration Date upon the earlie®ccur of the following circumstances:

(@) Three (3) months after the date of terminatidriGrantees Continuous Service with the Company or its Paognany of thei
subsidiaries for any reason other than (i) for @aws(ii) by reason of Grantee’s death or Disapilit

(b) Twelve (12) months after the date of terminatad Grantees Continuous Service with the Company or its Pacerdny of thei
subsidiaries by reason of Grantee’s Disability.

(c) Twelve (12) months after the date of Grantel=ath, if Grantee dies while employed, or during tireemonth period described
subsection (a) above or during the twelve-montiopetescribed in subsection (b) above and befarébtion otherwise expires.

(d) Immediately upon the date of termination of i@Geg's Continuous Service with the Company or its Paoeriny of their subsidiari
for Cause.

If Grantee or his or her beneficiary exercises@mtion after termination of GranteeContinuous Service, the Option may be exercisdy
with respect to the Shares that were otherwiseedesh termination of Grantee'Continuous Service, including Option Shares e$iy
acceleration under Section 1 or otherwise at tkereiion of the Committee. Any unvested portiorthaf Option that is not accelerated u
termination of Grantee’s Continuous Service wilpigg upon such termination of Grante€ontinuous Service with the Company or its Pi
or any of their subsidiaries.

3. Exercise of Option The Optionshall be exercised by (a) written notice directedhie Secretary of the Company or his or her desig
the address and in the form specified by the Sagrétom time to time and (b) payment to the Conypianfull for the Shares subject to si
exercise (unless the exercise is a brasmisted cashless exercise, as described belbte person exercising an Option is not Grantael
person shall also deliver with the notice of exarappropriate proof of his or her right to exardlee Option. Payment for such Shares shi
(a) in cash, (b) by delivery (actual or by attastat of Shares previously acquired by the purcha@rby withholding of Shares from 1
Option, or (d) any combination thereof, for the number b&fs specified in such written notice. The valfi8hares surrendered or witht
for this purpose shall be the Fair Market Valuegthe last trading day immediately prior to theeeise date. To the extent permitted u
Regulation T of the Federal Reserve Board, andestp applicable securities laws and any limitagias may be applied from time to time
the Committee (which need not be uniform), the @ptnay be exercised through a broker in a so-catlashless exercisethereby the brok
sells the Option Shares on behalf of Grantee alidede cash sales proceeds to the Company in payofi¢ine exercise price.

4. Withholding. The Company or any its Parent or any of thelrsgliaries has the authority and the right to deduavithhold, or requir
Grantee to remit to the employer, an amount sefficto satisfy federal, state, and local taxediting Grantees FICA obligation) required t
law to be withheld with respect to any taxable éwamising as a result of the exercise of the Optidhe withholding requirement may
satisfied, in whole or in part, by withholding frothe Option Shares having a Fair Market Value an date of withholding equal to 1
minimum amount (and not any greater amount) reduinebe withheld for tax purposes, all in accorganith such procedures as such ofi
establishes. The obligations of the Company uttderCertificate will be conditional on such payrenarrangements, and the Company,
where applicable, its Parent or any of their subsigs, will, to the extent permitted by law, habhe right to deduct any such taxes from
payment of any kind otherwise due to Grantee.

5. Limitation of Rights The Option does not confer to Grantee or Graateeneficiary any rights of a stockholder of then(pany unless ai
until Shares are in fact issued to such persorommection with the exercise of the Option. Nothinghis Certificate shall interfere with
limit in any way the right of the Company or anyfidite to terminate Granteg’service at any time, nor confer upon Granteeraght tc
continue in the service of the Company or any #sfd.

6. Restrictions on TransferNo right or interest of Grantee in the Optionyniee pledged, hypothecated, or otherwise encumbtered ir
favor of any party other than the Company or iteeRaor any of their subsidiaries, or be subjettedny lien, obligation, or liability of Grant
to any other party other than the Company or iteftaor any of their subsidiaries. The Option @& assignable or transferable by Gra
other than by will or the laws of descent and dstiion; provided, however, that the Committee nlayt need not) permit other transfers.
Option may be exercised during the lifetime of Geamonly by Grantee or any permitted transferee.

-2-




7. Restrictions on Issuance of Shard§at any time the Committee or the Board shaliermine, in its discretion, that registratiostifig, o
qualification of the Shares covered by the Optiporuany Exchange or under any foreign, federate sta local law or practice, or the cons
or approval of any governmental regulatory bodyjésessary or desirable as a condition to the eseeof the Option, the Option may not
exercised in whole or in part unless and until stedistration, listing, qualification, consent grpaoval shall have been effected or obta
free of any conditions not acceptable to the Cottemior the Board.

8. Amendment The Committee may amend, modify, or terminate @ertificate without approval of Grantee; proxddéowever, that su
amendment, modification, or termination shall mathout Grantees consent, reduce or diminish the value of thisrdwigtermined as if it hi
been fully vested (i.e., as if all restrictionstbe Option hereunder had expired) on the dateaf amendment or termination.

9. Plan Controls The terms contained in the Plan are incorporatdand made a part of this Certificate. Thistifleate shall be govern:
by and construed in accordance with the Planhérewvent of any actual or alleged conflict betwsenprovisions of the Plan and the provis
of this Certificate, the provisions of the Planlsha controlling and determinative.

10. _SuccessorsThis Certificate shall be binding upon any sesce of the Company, in accordance with the terfiibis Certificate and tt
Plan.

11. Compensation Recoupment Polidyhis Award shall be subject to any compensatemoupment policy applicable by its terms to Gra
that the Company may adopt from time to time to plymwvith the rules or regulation of any governméiatathority or to comply with the rul
and regulations of any stock exchange upon whietCibmpanies’ securities are registered.

12. Notice. Notices hereunder must be in writing and eijmensonally delivered or sent by registered or iedtiUnited States mail, rett
receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices taCthrapany must be addressed to Builders FirstSoumce, 2001 Bryan Street, Suite 16
Dallas, TX 75201; Attn: General Counsel, or anyeotaddress designated by the Company in a writhéicento Grantee. Notices to Grar
will be directed to the address of Grantee thenetitly on file with the Company, or at any othed@bs given by Grantee in a written notic
the Company.

13. _Entire Agreement This Certificate, including, without limitatiothe terms and conditions set forth herein, andPfhe contain the enti
agreement and understanding of the parties heréto respect to the subject matter contained heagith therein and supersede all p
communications, representations, and negotiatiomsspect thereto.

14. Confidentiality. By accepting this Certificate and the relatecualy Grantee agrees to keep confidential and ndistdose to any pers
or entity information concerning the terms of thiertificate, the number of Options or Shares caVvdne this Certificate, or any transacti
between the Grantee and the Company pursuantst@thitificate, except as required by applicable law

-3-



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Forr8$333-199955, 333-192596) and Forms S-8
(Nos. 333-128430, 333-147107, 333-169001 and 3%343) of Builders FirstSource, Inc. of our repaatatl March 3, 2015, relating to the
financial statements and the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting, which appear this Form 16K. We also consent to the
references to us under the heading “Selected FHalabata” in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Floyd F. Sherman, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaard for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeaditsclosure controls and procedures and presentbs report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@spersons performing the
equivalent functions

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisattifole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/s FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Sherman
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 3, 2015



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, M. Chad Crow, certify that:
I have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omstéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaard for, the periods presented in
this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgmiisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduties ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeaditsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period couwydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportitttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@spersons performing the
equivalent functions

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
President and Chief Financial Offic

Date: March 3, 2015



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.CSection 1350
(Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-@y Act of 2002)

In connection with the annual report of BuilderssEsource, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe fieriod ended December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), we, Floyd F. $hem, as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and M. Chad Crow, as President and ClniefhEial Officer of the Company, certify pursuamtl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A20602, that, to the best of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934; ar
(2) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finaremaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Sherman
Chief Executive Office

/s/ M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
President and Chief Financial Offic

Dated: March 3, 2015

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyné| be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff upon reque



